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Introduction to Whatman

The Whatman Business

Whatman is regarded as the world’s leading innovator,
developer, producer and distributor of high-end
lahoratory separations products including filter papers,
membranes, syringe filiers, filters for usa in breathing
apparatus, automated platforms and surgical devices.
From collection, storage and manipulation of DNA for
forensic applications, Whatman provides world class
solutions for life sciences, worldwide. Solutions that
enable engineers, scientists and medical staff to carry
out their work rmare easily, quickly, accurately and safely.

Corporate headquarters
Brentford, West London

Sales and marketing offices

» Dassel, Germany (North Europe)

» Maidstone, UK (South Europe)

* Florham Park, New Jersey, USA (North America)
» Singapore {Asia Pacific)

* Tokyo (Japan).

Principal manufacturing locations
* Banbury, UK

+ Maidstone, UK

« Sanford, Maine, USA

+ Dassel, Germany.

Whatman'’s distribution, sales and service organisation
covers more than 70 countries worldwide.

For contact details, see page 60.
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Whatman Board

Chairman and Chief Executive

Also Chairman of Southern Water and Astron Group.
Previously Group Chief Executive of North West Water
and of The Staticnery Office; 22 years in healthcare with
Glaxo, Abbott Laboratories and Nove Nordisk and

non-executive directorships with Celitech and Medeval.
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Deputy Chairman (and Non-executive Director)

Also a member of the Investment Commitiee of ACTIV
Investments Fund, and a business consultant and author.
Previcusly Director of Business Development, Nortel
Europe, and founder of Mondiale Information
Technology Associates.

oo WeNaiy?

Vice Chairman

Appointed as Vice Chairman on 1 January 2005 with
executive responsibility for the Group’s research and

development, business development and sales functions;

non-executive director of the Company since March 2003.

Also a direcior of Pediatric Clinical Trials Internaticnal.
Previously 25 years in heatthcare with Abbott Laborataries.
o NMorarg coant

Non-executive Director

Also a venture partner with MPM Capita), and a director
of Zeolita Mira and Panmedix.

T Hiprich Kaner®

Non-executive Director

Appointed 1 January 2005. Also Chief Executive of
ConCap GmiH and Chairman of ConCert GrmioH, ..
DIA-Nielsen MicroTech GmbH, Hahnemihie FineArt
GmbH and S&8 Secunity Printing GmbH, Previcusly
Chairman of Schisicher & Schuell GmbH and Chairman

and Chief Executive Cfficer of Sebaldus Group.

“hil Greenha'gh

Finance Director

Sl Bonnar

Operations Director

Lol et micnos

Company Secretary

' Chairman of the Nomination Gommittee.

2 Chairman of the Audit Commities, member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees, and Senior Independent Director,

3Member of the Nomination Committee: uniil 31 December 2004,
also Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of
the Audit Committee.

* Member of the Nomination Cornmittee; until 29 January 2004,
alse a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committeas,

$ Chairman of the Remuneration Commities, member of the
Norination and Audit Committees.
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Highlights of the Year
“Qperating Profit* up 29%"

Financial Highlights

& Underlying sales™ up §% (excluding Biometra,
in liquidation)

* Cperating proft* up 29% to £18.2 milion
2003: £14.7 million)

¢ Operating margins* rise to 23% (2003: 17%):
LabSciences margins up ta 35% (2003: 32%)

» Adjusted EPS* up 39% to 10.45p (2003: 7.52p)

+ Total dividend increased by 7.5% to 4.61p per share
(2003: 4.29p).

Statutory Resuits

« Turnover £82.8 million (down 1% on
2003: £83.8 million}

* Operating profit £2.9 million {down 78%
on 2003: £13.4 million)

» Profit bhefore tax £1.4 million (down 46%
on 2003: £2.6 million}

« Basic loss per share of 0.41p (increase
of 72% on 2003: loss of 1.49p).

Operating Highlights

* Solid sales growth in LabSciences {up 7.1%) and
BioScience {up 16.8%) offset by weaker performance
in MedTech (down 3.7%) all at constant exchange rates

» FTA sales up 39% at constant exchange rates
to £4.8 million and licensirg discussions prograssing

» Rationalisation of pre-acquistion Whatman
manufacturing facilities largely completed, on
schedule and within budget

* Successful acquisition of Schisicher & Schuell,

and integration defivering synergies on schedule

Search for new CEO well underway

+ On track to deliver earnings accretion targets
announced [ast November.

pre-goodwill amartisation and exceptional charges and excluding
acquisitions and disposals
* at constant exchange rates and excluding acquisitions and disposals

Highkghts of the Year | 3




Chairman’s statement

Overview

Two years on, and the renaissance of Whatman is well
underway. The initial restructuring of the organisation has
generated benefits to shareholders; sales have started to
grow ahead of the market, margins have improved and
the strengthening of the management has begun.

Nevertheless, there is still much to do:

+ we have had some setbacks with key appointments,
in particular with the CEO and some of the regional
sales managers

» the organisation, pricr to the acguisition of Schleicher
& Schuell GmbH ("S&S™), is now broadiy the right size
and shape, but the process of building additional skills
has barely begun

» whilst our LabSciences products have been growing
faster than the market, they have yet 1o realise their
full potentiat

« BioScience news was mixed:

- organic growth of FTA — largely in the forensics
market — continued, but the out-licensing
programme is taking longer than we had hoped

— however, with increased knowledge of the potential
markets for FTA, our expectations for both the
forensics market and the applications for which
we are negotiating licences are considerably higher

~ multiwells ended the year most encouragingly,
after a slow start

* in MedTech, the OEM sales are by nature lurmpy and
we continue to believe in their potential, but we shall
be reviewing the future of some of the lower margin,
lower growth product ranges in this segment

* the margin improvements achieved in the year
exceseded expectations and we believe that therg is
still a considerabile way to go. The process improvemant
programme has only just begun in all our factories.

Overall, the promised improvement in profitability
resulting from the upgrading of existing operations
hag heen substantially achisved and is starting to
yigld improverments in business performance.

The acquisition of S&3S towards the end of the year has
provided a unigue opportunity. The integration has got
off 10 a good start and is expected to mest the earnings
accretion targets published at the time of the acquisition.

Financial Resuits

Excluding Bicmetra and S&S, sales were £74 million;
at constant exchange rates and excluding disposals
this represents a 6% increase over 2003. This reflects
a strong performance in the LabSciences segment
where we grew the business by 7.1% to £47.9 million
and in which we are outperforming the market. Total
Group sales in 2004 were £82.8 million, including cne
month of S&S sales {2003: £83.8 million).

QOrperating profit (EBITA) in the year to 31 December
2004, including Biometra [in voluntary liquidation), but
excluding geodwill amartisaticn and exceptional charges,
was £18.3 miition, up 30% (40% at constant exchange
rates) on 2003 (£14.1 million). This improvement has
resulted largely from further benefits of the restructuring
programme which started in early 2003,

Operating profit (EBITA) of continuing operations,

excluding S&S, goodwill amortisation and exceptional

charges, was £18.2 million, up 29% on 2003 (40% at

censtant exchange rates). Operaling (EBITA) margin

of the continuing operaticns increased to 23%

(2003: 17%), resulting from:

*+ a solic improverment in LabSciences from 32% (2003)
{0 35% (2004)

* an encouraging improvernent in BioScience 1o near
breakeven against last year's loss of 24%

* a limited improverent from MedTech, which increased
10 points from a loss of 5% in 2003 to a profit of
5% in 2004.

Earnings per share for the year, before gocdwil
amortisation and exceptional charges, were 10.45p,
39% higher than the 7.52p in 2003.

The Group has provided in the 2004 Accounts

for exceptional charges of £15.8 miilion (excluding

amortisation of goodwill):

s £12.4 mifion for the rationalisation of S&S facilities,
integration of the S&S product range and stock write
downs within S&5

« £2.3 million relating to onerous leases and continuing
restructuring within the established Whatman operations

+ £1.1 million in respect of Biometra in order to maintain
a full provision over its net assets.

After these exceptional charges and amortisation of
goodwill, the Group's profit before tax was £1.4 miflion
(2003: £2.6 millicn) and the loss per share was 0.41p
(2003: ioss of 1.49p).

The Group incurred a tax rate on underlying profits
before goodwill and exceptional items of 25% in 2004
{2003: 32%}. It is anticipated that the ongoing tax rate
of the combined Group in the near term will be 25%
at current levels of profit, with incremental profits
taxed at 35%.

Operating cash flow in the year was £13.8 million
(2003: £8.7 million). The total consideration for the
acquisition of S&S was €58.8 million {£40.9 million),
which was financed entirely by debt.

At 31 December 2004, the Group's net debt was
£30.3 million, a gearing ratio of 75%. interest cover
at 31 December 2004 was 43 iimes, based on the
combined 2004 profit of Whatman and S&S before
goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges.

Chairman's statement | §




Chairman'’s statement continued

In the announcement of the acquisition of S&5, the
Board indicated that the acquisition would be 17%
accretive to earnings in 2005, 39% accretive in 2006
and 48% accretive in 2007. With this expectation for
very substantial improvement in profitability, but prudently
planning te repay the debt, the Board has decided to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.87p
per share, making a total dividend for the year of 4.61p
per share, 7.5% higher than in 2003 (4.29p). This will
be paid on 27 May 2005 to sharehotders con the
register at 22 April 2005.

Business Restructuring

The restructuring projects initiated in 2002 are

all substantially completed:

« headcount within the pre-acquisition Whatman

business fie prior to the acquisition of S&8) is

now steady at about 725 (down from 1,050

at the beginning of 2003)

reduction of the pre-acquisiticn Whatman range

af praducts firom 16,000 lines to 4,000 lines was

completed. A further 500 lines were identified for

deletion, but implernentaticn of this programme

has been combined with the rationalisation of the

S&S range (see below)

+ raticnalisation of the principal Whatman pre-acquisition
manufacturing facilities is complete, on schedule and
within budget, with production now concentrated at
Banbury and Maidstone in the UK and Sanford in
the USA, all of which have 1SC2001 certification.
Registration of the Banbury and Sanford sites to

ISC 13485 will be completed during 2005, Relocation
of the membrane etching plant from Scarborcugh to
Sanford was completed in October, also within budget

+ relocation of the North America headquarters from
Clifton to Florham Park, New Jersey and of the Japan
office to an improved |ocation in Tokyo is also complste

» standardisation and upgrading of the Group’s integrated

business software and telecom systems will be

substantially completsd during the first half of 2005

disposal and letting of surplus propertigs continues

to progress:

- agreement has been reached for the sale of the
Clifton site, with completion of the sale scheduied
for June

- leases of the Newton and Scarborough facilities
have been surrendered

—the Ann Arbor facility has been sublet for the full
remaining period of the lease.

Acquisition of Schieicher & Schuell

The acquisition of S&S was compléteci on 30 Novermber
2004 for a consideration of €58.8 million (£40.9 milliony),
financed entirely by debt.

S&8's leading position in Germany complements

Whatman's established presence in the UK and the
USA, and the combined Group is now the clear

6 1Cnairman’s statemant

numiber three in the global LabSciences markst,
with a 16% share.

The acquisition will allow the Group to offer a more
comprehensive product line with the same superior
quality our customers have come to expect. The
acqguisition has also opened new doors for Whatman
in markets and geographies in which Whatman has
not, historically, been present or strong.

Integration of the Whatman and S&S customer sehvice
and sales groups has been successfully completed
during the first quarter of 2005. Based in Florham Park,
New Jersey (North America), Maidstone, UK (South
Europe), Dassel, Germany [Nosth Europe), Singapore
(Asia Pacific} and Tokyo (Japan), the combined teams
are now positionsd to provide existing and new
customers with a substantially broader product and
improved service capability. In North America and

the UK, the established Whatman presence will benefit

from the increased selling resources and additional

products, including:

« within the microbiology market (part of the LabSciences
segment), a range of leading products in focd and
beverage QA/QC applications with industry-wide
application, including microbiological monitors and
media for culturing samples

» in the DNA blotting market (part of the BioScience
segment), S&S blotting membranas, which are
considered the premier brand available in the
market and complement Whatman blotting paper

« in the diagnostics lateral flow market (part of the
MedTech segment}, combined S&S and Whaiman
praduct offerings provide customears with an optimised
range of products for lateral flow, making Whatman
the most comprehensive supplier of material for
lateral flow tests

« in Neonatal testing (part of the BioScience segment),
S&S dominates the supply of printed cards for sample
collection using the 803 media.

The geographical strength of S&S in Germany and
Central Europe provides a considerable opportunity
to offer the combired product range to S8S's strong
loyal customer base,

Integration and rationzlisation of the combined product
range wili be completed by the fourth quarter of 2005,
The pre-acquisition Whatman range had already been
reduced from 16,000 products to under 4,000. A similar
programme to reduce the S&S product range from
17,000 items, together with a further reduction of the
Whatman pre-acquisition range, is well underway and
will result in a combined offering of 7,000 products.

Initial stages of the integration of operations are
progressing well:
» relocation of the S&S LabSciences facility from Florida
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to Sanford will be completed in April 2008, earlier than

criginally planned and within bidget

relocation of the &S BioScience manufacturing and

R&D activities from New Hampshire 1o Sanford will

be completed by August, and the New Hampshire

freehold site has been put up for sale

» absorption of 3&S head cffice functions into the
Whatrman organisation was completed in the first
guarter of 2005.

Migration of S&S business operating systems to

the upgraded Whatrman platform is on schedule, for
completion by the end of 2005. Compietion of these
initial integration projects will reduce the combined

workforce from 1,170 at the date of acquisition to
980 by the end of the year.

A further stage of the integration wili combing the
existing paper conversion operations at Banbury and
Dassel. This project will be completed by the end of the
year and wili achieve a further reduction in headcount.

Segmental Review

As announced at the beginning of 2004, the Group now
has three reporting segmentis. The segment previously
named “Filtration and Separation” is now divided inio
“LabSciences” and "MedTech”, The segment previously
named “Biotechnology” is now called “BioScience”.

The statutory accounts for 2004 include one monih of S&S sales, post-acquisition. The analysis in the following table
shows the unaudited proforma total sales of the Group for the whole of 2004:

_ ... Whatman
Underlying
e .. growth® %
LabSclences _ _ i . L
Medlech . . BN
BioScience 16.8
Ongeing operations 60
Biometra (15.7)
Total 4.0

* at constant exchange rates

LabSciences

LahSciences is the preparation of non-cellular samplas
prior to analysis, including envirenmental applications. It
comprises cellulose and glass filtration media, membranes
and chromatography. In addition to iraditional products,
this segment includes syringe filters, capsules and other
encapsulated products, and micrebiological products.

Underlying sales (at canstant exchange rates and
excluding the filter cartridge business which was scld
at the end of 2003) were up 7.1% in a market which
grew by about 3%, Within this overall growth, some
weakness in European demand was cutweighed by
particularly strong activity in the United States.

The fraditional celfufose and glass fibre macrofiftration
products continued to hold their own, together achieving
a 4% Increase in sales (at constant exchange ratesj in

a steady market,

Membrane salgs in this segment were up 20% at constant
exchange rates, helped by the award of a five year US
contract for air pollution monitoring.

The Company's latest generation of innovative products

continues to provide new oppartunities:

» Mini-UniPrep, used in HPLC sample preparation,
achieved a 53% vear on year Increase in sales

.. Standalone S&3 Proforma Combined Group

2004 Undertying 2004 Undedying

... B0 growth% o £000  growth" %
o.2eer 78 8881 72
o.B3sr 92 2080 08
9,031 7.9 18779 125

. 24988 79 108950 686
- - 6,429 (15.7)
34,989 79 115379 5.0

* GD/X, providing simple preparation of hard-to-fitter
samples, achieved 18% sales growtn

* Purash, a high purity silica gel for flash chromatography,
was successfully launched mid year,

The unique features of these new products offer cur
customers user-friendly and cost-reducing solutions
in a wide range of applications, from QC testing in
an environmentally friendly process which extracts
ethanol from corn te preparation of HPLG samples
in organic synthesis.

About hatlf the Group's sales in the LabSciences sector
are through specialist laboratory distributors. Recent
changes in this distribution channel, while creating some
short term uncertainty in the market, provide the Group
with an opportunity for improved longer term growth.

MedTech

MedTech comprises filtration compaonents supplied on
an OEM hasis to manufacturers of medical devices and
clinical diagnostics tests.

Underlying sales weare disappointingly down 4% at
constant exchange rates, due to a shortfall in sales
of relatively low margin drug reconstitution products
resulting fror a subcontract supply problem. This
shortfall was expected 1o be filled by increased sales
of membranes for clinical diagnostics. In the gvent,

Chairman's statement | 7




Chairman’s statement continusd

this did not core through in the second half of 2004
but we remain confident that this will happan in 2005,
as further applications continue to be found for the
Group's unique portfolic.

In addition, Fusion 5, which enables five processes in
lateral flow diagnostic assays to be combined into a
single process, was successfully launched during the
year and has already achieved sales to a number of
global diagnostics manufacturers.

BioScience

BioScience is the preparation of cellular sampies prior
to analysis and storage for study of nucleic acids or
proteins. It comprises FTA, multiwell plates, column
based DNA separation, electrophoresis products,
protein microarrays, blotting and nac-natal paper.

Underlying sales were up 17% year on year at constant
exchange rates, with particularly strong second half growth.

Sales of FTA products, the unigue technclogy for collection,
archiving and purification of DNA, were up 39% on the
prior year. The technology is now well estabiished as the
worldwide standard in forensics applications. In adgition,
we are now achieving sales to other sectors, inciuding
entry into the food and agriculture marketplace and a
first application for epidemiological studies i the
pharmacogenomics sector.

Negotiations are progressing with potential partners
who will be licensed 1o markst the FTA technology in
applicational areas which are not directly accessible
through existing Whatman channels.

The margin on FTA sales continues to improve, resulting
from koth manufacturing efficiency and customers’
evaluation of the effectiveness of the technclogy.

Sales of multiwell products were up 4% at constant
exchange rates, at last showing some signs of the
potential for specialised plates to OEM customers.

Biometra

Sales from Biometra, which was put into voluntary
liguidation in mid 2003, fell during the periad in fine with
market conditions, but some significant progress was
achieved toward a resclution of the intellectual property
disputes. We continued to provide for the full net asset
value of this business pending resolution of these disputes.

Product Development

An extended R&D tacility was commissioned at Sanford
in the first guarter of 2005 and the S&S R&D teamn wili
relocate during the second quarter, establishing an
excellent combined vesource for membrane, FTA,
microarrays and engingering research and development.
Additionally, the S&S acquisition brings further expertise

in membrane engineering based at Dassel in Germany.
R&D expenditure for the combined group wili constitute
around 2% of total revenue.

The Group's FTA technology continues to be strengthened,
with three new US patents, for clone archiving, diagnostics
and DNA elution, and cne Furopean patent having been
granted in 2004, and a further US patert, for sample
visualigation, granted since the year end. Formats for
use in fully automated applications have been completed
and data collection for CE marking and for US 510k
FDA registration was also completed.

All three market segments continue to benefit from

exiensions of the Group’s established technologies:

+ in LabSciences, further development of the Mini-
UniPrep technology includes Mini-UniPrep amber,
for light sensitive samples, for example in vitamin
analysis, and Mini-UniPrep slit septa, for applications
requiring the use of very fine needles, for example
in HPLC autosamplers

» EasyClone, launched on the market in December
2004, is a 384 well multiplate incorporating FTA
fechnology for high throughput manipulation and
archiving of bacterial clones, employed in
genomics projects

¢ Fusion 5, described in the Segmental Analysis above,
was faunched in April 2004.

The acauisition of 3&S brings to the Group a new protein
microarray technology, which atthough stili in its infancy
has exciting potential for high throughput proteomics
applications, a new market area for Whatman.

Board and Staff

The search for a new CEQ is now well underway and
we hope to be in a position 10 make an announcement
in the near future. Pending the appointment of a new
CEG, | am personally overseeing the integration and
restructuring of &S while also continuing to direct the
overall renaissance of the Group. Additionally, Finance,
Operations and Administration are reporting fo me until
the new CEO is appointed.

Dr Hinrich Kehler {previously Chairman of the Advisory
Board of 545) joined the Board as a non-executive
director on 1 January 2005 and brings extensive
business experience in addition 1o his knowledge

of the S&S operations.

Tom McNally, who joined the Board in a non-executive
capaciy in 2003 following an outstanding career with
Abbott Laborateries, has taken on executive responsibiity
for the R&D, Business Development and Sales functions,
pending the appointment of a new CEQ.

A Scientific Adviscry Board has been established
and the Group is very fortunate to have appointed

_ﬁ ilﬂilﬁ im's statement
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Dr Roger Ford, Professar of Innovation and Technology
Strategy at the University of Salford, and Dr Geoff
Moggridge, Senior Lecturer in Chemical Engineering
at the University of Camibridge, to the Advisory Board.

| am very pleased to welcome the S&S employees
to Whatman and | am sure they will add considerably
fo the strength of the Group’s human resources.

1 would again fike to record my thanks to all cur staff for
their continuing commitment to the business through
another year of transformation.

Outlook

The achievement of an acceleration of top line growth

in Q1 has been hampered by the lack of sales leadership
foliowing the departure of our CEO and two regional
sales managers in Q4 2004, This year get off 1o a slow
start which continued through January and February.

The Business Devetopment and Sales reins were picked
up by Tom MceNally in January, and March saw a pick up
in sales and orders. Cverafi, G 2005 was behind our
own expectations, but we befieve that Q2 will see us
back on track.

In our search for a new CED we have a good shortlist of
candidates from which we hope to make an appointment
in the near future. In addition, the full complement of
regional sales managers s now in place and this should
allow us to regain sales growth momenturn,

Meanwhile, the integration plans and proguct
rationalisation announced at the time of the acguisition
of S&8S are coming through on schedule and we are on
track to deliver the eamings accretion targets announced
at that time.

We still have some way to go on the restructuring of
the combined group and we shall be commencing a
manufacturing improverment programms at the baginning
of the sumrmer which we expect to furtner enhance
operating margins.

Overall, we continue to make good progress and
| arn confident that there is considerable further
upside to come.

(i fhrin

Bab Thian
Chairman
8 April 2005
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Financiai review

Turnover

Group turnover of £82.8 million was £1.0 million (1%)
below 2003. Turnover excluding Biometra and Schisicher
and Schuell was £74.0 million, £2.0 million (3%) below
2003, the reduced level of activity being principally in
LabSeiences and MedTech, £2.3 million (5%) and

£0.8 mifiicn (5%, below 2003 respectively. BioSclence
turnover was £1.0 million {10%) above 2003,

On a like for like basis, excluding acquisitions, disposals
and exchange effects, LabSclences saies were 7% up

Operating profit

After goodwill
amortisation
& exceptional items
. ..... .. tontinuing
2004 2003
LabSciences 146 118
Medlech ... .05 0.8
BioSclence (e 28
Schigicher & Schuell 12.3) -
Total ongoing 2.2 73
Biometra & Hemasure 0.7 6.1
Total 2.9 13.4

The improvement in the adjusted cperating profit margin
for LabSciences from 32% 1o 35% of sales was due to
the increased sales volume and improvements in gross
prcfit margins resuiting from a reduction in sales of lower
margin pleated encapsulated products.

MedTech made an adjusted operating profit margin of
5% compared to a loss of 5% in the previcus year as a
result of savings in sales and administrative overheads
and the {oss of some lower margin business.

The adjusted operating ioss of BioScience reduced from
24% 1o less than 1% of sales, largely due to improved
gearing as a result of the high sales growth and
improvements in FTA gross profit margins.

The Schigicher & Schuell business generated an operating

profit of £0.1 million before goodwill amortisation and
exceptional items for the ohe month since acquisition.

The adjusted operating profit of Biometra reduced to
£0.7 million from £0.9 million.

_._£m._... P

on the prior year, with membrane sales growing by
20% and encapsulated product sales growing by
10%; MedTech sales were 4% below last year largely
as a result of a 9% decline in sales of encapsulated
medical filters; BioScience sales were 17% above last
year, resulting from a growih of 39% in FTA sales.

Sales of Biometra in liquidation on a like for like basis
were 16% down on last year.

Before goodwill

amortisation

& exceptional items Adjusted operating

.. _ continuing L profit margin

2004 2003 2004 2003
JEm o Bm LI %
188 163 < <
. 08 L . @
oy el T 24
0.1 - 4 -
e 182 24 17
0.7 0.9 11 12
18.3 141 22 17

Exceptional charges

Exceptional charges, including amortisation of goodwill,
of £186.4 million includes £12.4 milion for redundancies,
closure costs and stock write-downs in connection with
the integration of Schleicher & Schuell, £2.3 million
relating 1o increases in existing onerous lease provisicns
and further redundancies and £1.1 million to maintain

a full provision over the net assets of Biometra.

interest

The net interest charge for the vear increased by

£0.2 million to £0.4 million as a result of an increase

in interest rates and the increase in debt to fund the
Schieicher & Schuell acquisition. Excluding goodwill
amortisation and exceptional charges, interest was
covered 43 times {68 times in 2003). Including goodwili
amartisation and exceptional iterns, interest cover was
4 times (13 times in 2003).

Profit/(loss) before tax

The pre-tax profit for the year of £1.4 million (2003:
£2.6 million) was after charging goodwill amortisation
and exceptional charges of £16.4 million. The profit
before tax, before goodwill amortisation and exceptional
charges was £17.8 million (2003: £13.8 million).

Financtal review i 11




Financial review continued

Taxation

There is a tax charge of £1.9 milion (228%) on the 2004

profit of £1.4 million. Reconciliation to the standard UK
rate of 30% is set out in the notes to the Accounts,

The tax rate cn undetlying profits before goedwill and
exceptional itemms was 25% compared to 329 in 2003,
realising the benefit from the Group's rationalisation and
internal refinancing. Tax of £3.4 million is recoverable
against profits in prior periods and advance payments,

Earnings per share

Loss per share was 0.41p, dewn from a less per share
of 1.49p in 2003. Earnings per share, before goodwill
amortisation and exceptional charges, which reflects
the underlying performance of the Group, was 10.45p,
up from 7.52p in 2003.

Dividend
It is proposed 10 pay a final dividend of 2,.87p per share,
making a total dividend for the vear of 4.61p per share,

primarily in the USA and the UK. In addition there is an increase of 7.5% over last year, The dividend is covered
a deferred tax asset of £7.5 milion recoveratile 2.3 times (1.7 times in 2003} by eamings from continuing
against future profits, offset by deferred tax liability aperations before goodwill amortisation and exceptional

of £2.6 miffion. charges. Based on profit attributable to shareholders,

the dividend is not covered (2003: not covered).

2004 2003
Cash flow _ N S o . &m £m
Operating profit before goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges o o 183 1441
Depreciation and other non-cash items 7 S 21 53
Provisions utiised _ ) S o S es 127
Working capital movement 1.3 2.0
Operating cash flow S o o o 13.8 o ar
Net capital expenditure . ) o . S (46) (3.3
Interest _ S o S 0.2)
o Y I |
Free cash flow 7.4 2.4
Net acguisitions N B o R - X ) I
Sale of businesses o o N D X ¢
Dividends paid N X - B )
Shares issued o241 " 08
Movement in net borrowings {25.0) 2.1
There was a free cash infiow of £7.4 million in 2004, Net payments for acquisitions includes the total
after spending £6.4 milion on provisions, compared consideration of £40.9 million for S&5, offset by amounts
to £2.4 million in 2003. received in respect of excluded entities and other similar
adjustments of £4.9 million. Of this amount, £3.8 million {
Working capital increased by £1.3 million in the vear is deferred for payment until 30 November 2005. It
comprising increases in stock of £0.7 million, debtors includes transaction costs paid or accrued totalling
£0.3 millicn and a decrease in creditors of £0.3 million. £2.8 milion, but excludes bank arrangement fees of
£0.6 miflion. Cash acquired with the business amounted 3
Net capital expenditure was up £1.3 million on 2003, to £1.1 million.
primarity as a result of the relocation of manufacturing
operations to Sanford and the relocation of the North Proceeds from the sale of businesses in 2003 comprise
American headguarters to Florham Park NJ. £3.6 million for the HemaSure business and £0.4 millicn i
for the fiiter cartridge business.
Net tax paid reduced from £2.8 million in 2003 to
£0.4 milion in 2004, primarily due to a tax refund of
£2.2 million being received in the US in respect of
priar year losses.
;
3
§
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International financial reporting standards

The Group's plans to implernent IFRS are on track
and will ensure that full compliance with the statutory
requirements wilt be achieved,

Treasury

Treasury operates on a centralised basis as a cost
centre in ling with policies set by the directors. Primary
objectives of the policies are to manage the effects
associated with foreign exchange and interest rate
movements, to ensure the availability of a prudent level
of loan facilities on reasonable terms and to provide cash
management. Financial derivatives are used only

to reduce risk and speculation is not permitted.

The Group operates a finance company in Luxembourg
in order to improve the cost effectiveness of the Group’s
cash management. Cash management systems continue
to be used with a number of banks to help reduce the
niet intarest charge.

The Group hedgss its profits against short-term
exchange rate movements mainly by forward contracts
for periods of up to two years. Interest rate movements
are partially hedged by the use of interest rate swaps.
Foreign curency assets are partially hedged by matching
them to limited currency borrowings.

During the year the Group refinanced its borrowing
facilities replacing existing bilateral facilties with a single
facility syndicated with a small number of London banks,
This faciiity comprises a €35 million amortising five year
term loan te finance the acquisition and integration of
Schileicher and Schuell and a five year revolving credit
facility. Further details of the borrowings are given in

fhe notes to the Accounts.
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Directors’ report
Including Summaries of Operating Policies

Resulis
The directors present their report on the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Details of profits and propesed dividend payments are
included in the Financial Review.

Principal activities and development of the business
The principal activities of the Group continue 1o be the
development, manufacture and marketing of fitration and
separations products which are used by laboratories for
industrial, healthcare and environmental applications, as
described in more detail in the Chairman’s Statement.

On 30 November 2004, the Company acauired the entire
share capital of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH for a total
consideration of €58.8 million (£40.9 million), which was
financed in full by debt; further details are included in the
nctes to the Accounts. Schleicher & Schuell’s activities
are also in the development, manufacture and marketing
of filtration and separations products.

The voluntary liquidation of Biometra Biomedizinische
Analytik GmbH (“Biometra”}, which was announced
in July 2003, is continuing.

Future developments

The Group will continug to focus on the strategic and
operational development of its businesses, including the
integration of the Schieicher & Schuell companies, as
described in detail in the Chaiman’s Statement.

Research and development
Expenditure on the development of new products in
2004 amounted to £1.9 million (2003: £2.2 million).

Directors
The names of the directors are shown on page 2.

WMriar Bonnar was appoeinted a director on 29 January
2004 and was re-elected at the 2004 Annual
General Meeting.

Following the acquisition of Schleicher & Schuell in
November 2004 and the departure of Mr Howard Kelly
as Chief Executive Officer on 25 November 2004,

Mr Bob Thiar assumned additiona! respensibiliies as
Chairman and Chief Executive, including overseeing the
integration and restructuring of Schieicher & Schuell and,
pending the appeintment of a new Chief Executive, direct
responsibility for Operations, Finance and Adrministration.

The Board has been further strengthened by the
appointments, with effect from 1 January 2005, of

N Torm MolNahy as Viee Chaiman and Dr Hinron Keivs:
as a Non-executive Director.

Tom McNally, who originally joined the Board as a
Non-executive Director in 2003, has taken executive

responsibility for the R&D, Business Development and
Sales functions, pending the appointrent of a new chief
executive, the search for which is progressing with the
assistance of an external search consuftancy.

Dr Hinrich Kehler was previously Chairman of the Advisory
Board of Schlsicher & Schuell GmbH, and brings extensive
business experience in addition to his knowledge of the
S&S operations. He retires at the Annual Gengral Meeting
but, being eligible, ofiers himself for re-election. Dr Kehter
(through a majerity shareholding in ConCap Betelligungs
und Vermogensverwatiungs GmbH ("ConCap")) was a
shareholder of Schleicher & Schusll GmbH (S&S) uniil the
acquisition of S&S by Whatman in November 2004. The
former shareholders of S&S have provided indemnities

to Whatman in relation to representations and warranties
contained in the sale and purchase agreerment and
paymeant to them of part of the consideration for the
acquisition is subject to retention by Whatman through
a warranty period. In addition, Dr Kehler continues to be
a director and (through his shareholding in ConCap) has
keneficial shareholdings in a number of companies which
were previously subsidiaries of S&5 but excluded from
the acquisition of S&S by Whatman. These companies
are parties to certain contractual agreements with
Whatman companies by which, for a transition period,
they supply products and services to Whalman and
receive sarvices from Whatman, Accordingly, Dr Kehler
does not take part in any Whatman discussion or voting
in relation 10 any of the above-mentioned contracts.

At ne time during the year has any ather director had
any material interest in a contract with the Company, being
a contract of significance in relation to the Company’s
business {other than agreements for the payment of
directors’ fees to service companies, details of which
are included in the Remuneration Report).

Mr Bob Thian, whe was appointed a director on 7 October
2002, and Dr Simon May, who was appointed a director
on 30 June 1994, retire at the Annual General Meeting

but, being eligible, each offers himseif for re-election.

The beneficial interasts of directors in the shares of the
Company and details of service contracts are shown in
the Remuneration Report,

Litigation

On 12 March 2004, Biometra's appeal 1o the European
Patent Office in opposition to one of the patents which
have been the subject of infringement acticns against
Biometra was successful and the offending patent was
revoked by the EPO.

Some significant progress has been achieved toward

a resolution of the other inteliectual property disputes
relating to Bicmetra.
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Directors’ repori continued

Substantial shareholdings

The Cornpany has been advised within the provisions of sections 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1885 of the

following substantial shareholdings as at 8 April 2005:

Schroder Investment Management Lid.

J O Harmbro Capital Management Limited

North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc
Oryx Internat:onal Growth Fund Limited

Hermes Pensions Management Ltd N

Legal and General Investment Management l_td
Prudlential plc

Aegon Asset I\/Ianagement UK

Barclays plo

Shares % of issued

. . _sharecapnal
13,872,008 i 1075
6,535,000 507
éars7z2 501
5,117,089 - 3g7
5,102,775 _ _395
4 782 639 a7
3,921,894 3.04

The directors are not aware of any other interest of 3% or more in the shares of the Company which is required

1o be disclosed.

Issue of shares

During the year the Company issued 2,224,986 sharas
for a total consideration of £2.1 million to directors and
employees exercising share options under the Company’s
Share Option Schemes,

Denations
During 2004 no donations were made to charities or
political parties.

Authorities relating to share capital

At the last Annual General Meeting of the Company the
diractors were given authority, within defined limits, to allot
shares pursuant to sections 89 and 95 of the Companies
Act 1985 otherwise than to existing shareholders in
proporticn to their existing hotdings. Renewal of this
authority will be sought from shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

At the last Annual General Meeting the Company was given
authority, within defined limits, to purchase its own shares.
Although no such purchases have been made and thers are
no immediate plans to do so, renewal of this authority wil
be sought from shareholders at the forthcoming Anriuial
General Mesting.

Operating policies
The following are summaries of the Group’s policies
oh a number of important operational issues.

Human resources

The Group promotes to its employees the need for the
highest standards of integrity and ethics in business
dealings, including compliance with all relevant legislation
and codes of practice.

Employees are regarded as the key to being able 1o translate
policies and strategies into commercial success. The Group
is thersfore committed to providing a working environment In
which this process can flourish.

16 | Directors™ report

Pracedures have been established to ensure that all
employees have the oppertunity to understand and
appreciate the Group's objectives, policies and strategies,
and to ensure that all employees and applicants for
employment receive fair treatment and equal opportunity
without prejudice against age, disability or ethnic origin.
Employees who become disabled are retrained
wherever possible.

The Group aims to create oppertunity for participation
and involvement, to encourage the identification and
development of skills and to promote the use of initiative
and stimulate personal advancement. Reward systems
recognise success at both the corporate and individual level.

Health and safety

The Group safequards occupational health and hygiene by
providing a safe working environment and complying with
all relevant statutory obligations and codes of practice.

Working methods and procedures are properly
documented and appropriate risk assessment
programmes conducted. Specific responsibilities are
assigned to designated employees and appropriate
training provided for ali employees.

Social Respensibility

The Group provides active support to the communities in
which i operates, with pariicular involvernent with schools
and further education colleges, including provision of
work experience opportuniiies, encouragement of Group
employees to participate in governarships, and sponsorship
of local events.

Emvironment

The Group is sensitive to the needs of the environment,

not only in terms of compliance with relevant statutory
regulations and codes of practice, but more generally in
terms of the need to be efficient in the use of raw materials,
energy and water and in reducing the production of waste.




Procedures have been estabiished for the regular monitoring
and assessment of environmental impact, and targets set for
improvements in performance. The Operations Director has
overall responsibility for enviranmental management
including the identification and assessment of significant
risks and compliance with alt statutory obfigations, and
provides appropriate reports to the Group Board.

Quality

The Group is committed to maintaining its long-established
reputation as a developer, manufacturer and supplier of
quality goods and services. All employess are encouraged
10 regard the continuous improvement of quality standards
as a personal objective and performance is monitored
against defined quality targets.

Suppliers

The Group has incerporated the CBI's Prompt Paviment
Cods into the Group's operating paficy relating to the
payment of suppliers. The Company had no trade creditors
as at 31 December 2004. The Group's trade creditors as
at 31 December 2004 represented 35 days of average
purchases over the financial year 2003; 30 days).

Whatman Total Shareholder Returns

The graphs below show the total shareholder return on

a holding of Whatman plc Ordinary shares compared to
that of the Financial Times Al Share and FTSE techMARK
indices over the pericds 1 January 2000 to 31 Decermber
2004 and 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004. (The
directors consider these indices 1o be the most appropriate
as the Company is a constituent of the indices.)

An investment in Whatmarn shares an 1 January 2000
would have produced a positive return of 4% at

31 December 2004 compared to a negative return of
14% in the FTSE All Share Index and a negative return
of 57% in the FTSE techMARK Index over that pericd.

An investment in Whaiman shares on 1 January 2004
would have produced a positive return of 52% at

31 Decermber 2004 compared to a positive return of
13% in the FTSE All Share Index and a positive raturn
of 12% in the FTSE techMARK Index over that period.

Total shareholder return: 1 January 2000 - 31 December 2004
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Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterniouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated their wilingness to centinue in office, and a
resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
John Simmonds
Company Secretary

8 April 2005

‘——
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Key 1o performance graphs
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Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2004

This Report is unaudited except for those parts
which are indicated otherwise.

Policy for Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration policy of the Group, including

the policy for executive directors, is determined by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board, the
membership of which comprises solely non-executive
Board members.

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors
is determined by the Board.

In determining remuneration policy, the objectives of
the Committee are, in relation to both the current and
subsequent years, to provide competitive remuneration
arrangements for executive dirsctors and senior
executives, which are commensurate with those of
other companies of a similar nature, size and standing,
which reflect the Group's business and financial
ohjectives, and reward individuais’ personal
contributions to the Group's overall performance.

Remuneration arrangements are addressed within
the context of the Group’s current performance, its
progress towards sirategic objectives and individual
executives’ persenal performance. Arrangements are
taiiored to reflect good practice within the particutar
countries in which executives are based, and are
regularly reviewed.

In developing remuneration arrangements, the
Remuneration Committee (and, in regard to
non-executive directors, the Board) refers to external
market survey data and has received advice from
Lirklaters and Watson Wyatt LLP. In developing the
particular remuneration arrangements far the Chairman,
the Committee also consulted a nurmber of the Group'’s
major shareholders.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of the Chairman

Untii 25 November 2004, Mr Thian served as
Chairman. Subsequently he has served as Chairman
and Chief Executive pending the appointment of a
new chief executive.

His remuneration comprises salary and fees, and

he received a grant of share options under the terms
of the Whatman plc Incentive Option Scheme for the
Chairrnan, which was approved by sharehciders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 November

2004. Details are contained in the notes te this Report.

He does not participate in any of the Company’s
insurance, retirement, or other benefit schemes.

Remuneration of Nan-axecutive Directors
Non-executive directors received remuneration
comprising fees and payments for consultancy activities
as detailed in the notes to this Remuneration Report.

Non-executive directors are encouraged to receive part

of thelr fees in the form of ordinary shares in the Company,
which are purchased guarterly by the Company at the

full market price, and Dr Jovan, Dr Kehler, Dr May and

Mr McNally have all elected to do so.

Through 2004, Mr McNally served as a non-executive
director and received remuneration comprising fees
and payments for consultancy activities, details of which
are contained in the notes to this Remuneration Report.
Following his appointment as Vice Chairman on

1 January 2005, Mr McNally will participate in the
Whatrman plc Share Award Plan for the Vice Chairman,
details of which are also contained in the notes te this
Rermnuneration Report.

Remuneration of Executive Directors

In addition to base salaries, which are detarmined by
the Remuneration Committee in relation to specific job
responsibilities and individual capabilities, executive
directors participate in the Whatman Group Incentive
Scheme, with a maximum benus potential of 100% of
base salary subject to achievernent of defined Group,
operational and individual objectives, including targets
relating to net sales, gross margin and operating
expenses, and quantitative measures of achisvement
of strategic objectives. {Exceptionally in the first year
after appointment the Bemuneraticn Commitiee may
in appropriate circumstances award a guaranteed
element of bonus.)

Executive Directors also receive a cash ailowance

in lieu of a company car, participate in the Whatman
1998 Executive Share Opticn Scheme, in the Whatman
Cefined Contribution Pensicn Scheme and in the
Group's health, sickness and life insurance schemes.

Details of the elements of Executive Directors'
rernuneration are contained in the notes to this
Remiuneration Report.

Executive directors are also eligible afier an initial
period of service to participate in the Group'’s Save
As You Earn Scheme.

All share incentive arrangements incorporate performance
requirements, details of which are included in the notes to

this Remuneration Report.

There are no other current long-term incentive schemes.
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Service contracts

Executive directors (not including Mr McNally following
fis appointment to an executive roig) have contracts
which are terminable by the Company ot by the
executive on six months’ notice.

The Chairman and the non-executive directors do not
have service agreements. It is the Company’s policy
that non-executive directors serve for renewable three
year periods.

None of the directors to be proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a
service contract.

Membership of the Remuneration Committee
During 2004 membership of the Committee comprised
Mr McNally (Chairman), Dr Jovan (retired from the
Commitiee on 29 January 2004} and Dr May. Following
Mr McNally'’s appointment as Vice Chairman on 1 January
2005 he stepped down from the Remuneration
Committee, and | was appointed Chairman of the
Cgmemittes, with Or May continuing as a member.

y order of the Board
Hinrich Kehier
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
8 April 2005
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Remuneraticn Report continued

Notes

{Except for note (a), these nofes to the Remuneration Report comprise audited infermation. )

a | The composition of each director's remuneration (excluding share-based incentives} is targeted to be:

Non-performance related
ﬂ,,'u

Performance-related

%

J N Bonnar ' - - 55 ) 45
F Greerhalgh ) ) o 55 45
M Jovan ) ) 100 -
H Kehler ) ) o ) 100 -
S PW May ) N 100 -
T M MciNally _ 100 -
R P Thian 100 -
b | Directors’ monetary remuneration in 2004
) ) 2004 2003
Monetary vatue " Compensation -
Salary/ffees of benefits in kind Bonus for Loss of Dffice Total Total
£000 7 2000 ~ £ooe avioy £040 foeo
J N Bonnar
{appointed 28 January 2004) 130 8 - - 138 -
P Greenhalgh ) 130 - 6 - - 136 99
M Jovan . 47 - ) - - 47 30
H Kehler
(appointed 1 January 2003) o - - - - - -
H V Keily
(left 26 November 2004) 8 77 _ - 163 618 368
S P W May 63 - a - 63 48
T M McNally 7B ] _ - - - 76 37
R P Thian 185 - - - 185 265
Totals 1,009 N - 163 1,263 g47*
TTotal directors' monetary remuneration in 2003, including that oaid to directars who did not serve in 2004, was £1,126,000. The salary paid to
Mr Greenhalgh in 2003 was for the period from his appaintment on 4 August 2003.
1 Mr Kelly was the highest paid director in 2004. 5 The compensation paid to Mr Kelly was in accordance

with the ferms of a binding compromise agreement

2 Benefils in kind include the provision of a car
allowance, pension, medical and life insurances

between Mr Kelly and the Company.

and, in respect of Mr Kefly, reimbursement of 6 No payments were made to former directors during

relocation costs (pension contributions are
stated in section (f) below}.

2004 other than normal pension payments to the
former directors or their surviving spouses.

3 Of the remuneration of Mr Thian, £12¢,000 was 7 No expensge allowances chargeable to UK tax have

paid to Renex Ltd. in respect of executive services. been paid.

4 The amounts of salary/fees paid to non-executive
directors were inclusive of the following paymenits
for consultancy work: M Jovan £17,000; SP W
May £23,000; T M McNally £46,000.

20 | Bemuneration Repart




¢ | Directors’ interests in

The beneficial interests of directors and their families in the

JNBonnar -_ o o 7- B o
pGreenhalgh . -
MdJovan L
H Kehler

HV Kelly

§ P W May

TMMeNaly

R P Thian

1At date of leaving

There have been the sollowing changes in e
interests of the directors between 1 January and
8 April 2005:
1 Dr Jovan has acquired an additional 1,550 shares
in part payment of director's fees.
2 Dr Kehler has acquired 775 shares in part
payment of director's fees.
3 Dr May has acquired an ad
part payment of director’s fees.
4 Mr McNally has acquired an ad
in part payment of director’s fees.

ditional 827 shares in

ditional 620 shares

The market price of the shares at 31 December
2004 was 232p (31st December 2003 — 155.50)
The highest price during 2004 was 269p and the

lowest price 155.5p.

Information relating to total sharehoider returns is
incluced in the directors' report.

d | Save As You Earn Scheme
At 31 December 2004, My Greenhalghn held 5,936
options at an exercise price of 150.8p in the
Whatman pic Savings Related Share Cption Scheme

which matures in December 2007.

e ] Share-based Incentive Schemes
i | Whatman plc incentive Option S¢heme far
the Chairman
Mr Thian participates in the Whatman plc Incentive
Option Scheme for the Chairman, which was
approved by shareholders at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 30 Novemnber 2004.

Under this Scheme Mr Thian received a single grant
of 1,000,000 options on 30 Movember 2004, which
are exercisable at any time subject to the following
performance requirements. 500,000 cf these options
will be exercisable if there is an increase in the
Ordinary Share price of 15% over ihe exercise price,

the increase in price to pe anaverage measured over

&0 consecutive trading days.The rernaining 500,000
is an increase in

options will be exercisable if there

the share capital of the Company
Ordinary 1p shares of the Company were:

As at 31 Decerber

As at 3t Dacember
2003

2004

2175 14,739

- -

5082 o
. 6480 2704
1,686,220 842,610

the Ordinary Share pyice of 30% cver e exercise
price, the increase to be an average measured over
60 consecutive trading days. Shares acquired by the
exercise of these options cannot normalty be saleable
for as long as Mr Thian continues to be a director of

the Company.

ii | Whatman plc Share Award Plan for the

vice Chairman

Mr McNally participates in the Whatman plc

Share Award Plan for the Vice Chairman, which
was established in conneaction with Mr McNally’s
utive responsibilities with effect

assumption of exec
5 after the Chief Executive left

irom 1 January 200
the Company.

Under this Scheme Mr McMally was granted
250,000 restricted shares on 1 January 2005.
125,000 of these shares will vest if there is an
increase in the Ordinary Share price of 15% over the
price at 1 January 2006, increase in price 10 be an
average measured over 60 consecutive trading days,
hut subject to & minirmum hoiding period of 18
months from date of grant. The rernaining 126,000
restricted shares will vest if there is an increase in
the Ordinary Share price of 30% over the price at
4 January 2005, the increase to be an average
measured over 60 consecutive trading days. put
subject to a minimum holding period of 36 months

from date of grant.

fii | Whatman1998 Exacutive Share Option Scheme
Executive Direcicrs participate in the Whatman

1998 Executive Share Option Schems, which was
approved by shareholders in 1998. This comprises
an annual grant of up 125,000 options, the actual
number to be granted to each participant in gach
year being determined according to an assessment
of corperate and individual performance.

One third of each grant of options becomes

exercisable three years after the date of grant, a
further third becomes exercisable four years after
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Remuneration Report continued

the date of grant, and the final third becomes
exercisable five years after the date of grant, in
every case subject o the average of the middle
market quotations for Whaiman Ordinary Shares
aver any period of 20 consecuiive trading days being
at least 15% p.a. compound above the average
price over the five trading days prior to grant.

v | Whatman plc Long Term Incentive

Option Scheme

In January 2003, Mr Thian was granted 1,685,220
opticns under this Scheme. Of these options,
842,610 became exercisable when the Ordinary
Share price was higher than £1.00 over any pericd
of 20 consecutive days. The remaining 842,610
options became exercisable when the Ordinary
Share price was higher than £1.30 over any period
of 20 consecutive days.

v | Whatman ple Incentive Option Scheme for the
Chief Executive

Mr Kelly participated in the Whatman pic Incentive
Option Scheme for the Chief Executive.

Under this Scheme, Mr Kelly received an initial
grant of 500,000 options on joining the Company
on 25 August 2003 and was eligible to receive
further grants of up to 300,000 options per year,
the actual number to be granted in each year
being determined according to an assessment

of corporate and individual performance.

On Mr Kelly’s leaving the Company, the
Bemuneration Committee determined that 166,666
options would vest immediaiely, a further 166,666
options will become exercisable betwaen August
2005 and February 2008 and the remaining options
previously granted lapsed at the date of leaving.

The number of options held by directors under the share based incentive schemes described above were:

Whatman plc Incentive Option Scheme for the Chairman

At1.1.04 Grartted Lapsed  Exercised At 31.12.04 Exercise Market Price at  Date froim  Expiry date
during year  during year during year Price date of which
B o i B . B exercise  exercisable
R P Thian - 1,000,6C0 - - 1,000,000 251.33p t 301114

"These options become exercisable at any time in tranches upon achigvement of the performance requirements
described in sub-paragraph | (page 21), but shares acquired by the exercise of these options cannat normally be
saleable for as jong as Mr Thian continues to be a director of the Company.

Whatman 1998 Executive Share Cption Scheme

A111.04 Granted Lapsed

during year during year

J N Bonnar 100,000 - -
, - 28000 -
P Greenhalgh 25,000 - -

125,000 -

Exercised At 31.12.04
during year

Exercise Market Price at Date from  Expiry date

Price date of which
o .  exercise  exercisable o
- 100,000 148.3p - v 221043
- 125000 195.67p - : 11.05.14
- 25,000 148.3p - ' 221013
125,000 185.67p - : 11,0514

' One third become exercisable from 22 October 2008; one third from 22 October 2007: one third from

22 Cctober 2008.

2 One third become exercisabie from 11 May 2007; one third from 11 May 2008; one third from 11 May 2009.

Whatman plc Long Term Incentive Option Scherme

At1.1.04 Granted Lapsed  Exercised At31.12.04 Exercise Markei Priceat Date from Expiry date
duting year during year during year Price date of which
I _exercise exercisable
R P Thian
Option 2 842,810 - - 842,610 - 8533 159p - -

The gain arising from this exercise, calculated by reference fo the middie market quoted price at the relevant date,

was £620,751.
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Whatrman ple Incentive Option Scheme for the Chief Executive

Ar1,1.04 Granted Lapsed  Exercised
during year during year during vear

HViely 500000 - 166668
- 300,000 300,000

' See details in sub-paragraph v (page 22).

f1 Directors’ pensions
Executive Directors participate i the Whatman
Defined Contribution Pension Scheme. The
Company makes a contribution of 8.0% of base
salary in respect of each participant (in 2004,
£7,000 in respect of Mr Bonnar, £8,000 in respect
of Mr Greenhalgh and £15,000 in respect of

g | Directors’ Service Contracts

At 31.12.04 Exercise Market Price at  Date from  Expiry date
Price date of which
exercise exercisable

33332 1164p . a -

Mr Kelly). Participants contribute a minimum of
4.0% of base salary.

The Chairman and the non-executive directors
are not eligibiie for any pension entitements.

S ~ DaleotContragt . NoticePericd Gontractual Termination Provisions
J N Bonnar 2 June 2003 & months by Company, At the Company’s discretion,
{appointed a director 6 months by Directar, at any time payment in fieu of notice

L~ ... onZd8January 2064] e e
P Greenhalgh 19 May 2003 6 months by Company, At the Company’s discretion,
6 months by Director, at any time payment in licu of notice
MdJovan 28 March 2003 . “Not applicable”  Subject to rotational retirement
and re-glection
HKeher 1 January 2006 " Not applicable®  Subject to rotational retirement
(on appoimment and re-election

SPWMay 11 August 1994 " Notapolicabls®  Subjest to rotational retirerment
amended 7 Ceiober 2002 and re-glection

TMMcNaly 28 March 2003 " Not applicable®  Subject to rofational retrement
amended 1 January 2005 and re-glection

RPThian 3 October 2002 " 'Not applicable®  Subject to rotational retirement
amended 28 January 2003, and re-glection

23 July 2003 and 25 Felbruary 2008

subiect to rotational retirement and re-glection.

N

(oA

Centy

e
¢

&
I
I

*The contracts for non-executive directors do not include any provision for compensation in the event of termination, the term of appeintment biging
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Corporate Governance

Board of directars

The details of individual directors who served during the
year and changes in board membership are set out in
the Introductory Section of the Annual Report and in
the Directors’ Renport.

Non-executiva directors are usually appointed for periods
of three years, subject to Companies Act provisions.
Additionally, in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association, all directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three yaars.

All new directors receive full, formal and taiiored inducticn
on joining the Board, inchiding formal documents relating
to the management and aperation of the Company,
recent and cusrent strategic and operational plans and
reports, and statutory and management accounts of the
Group and its subsidiaries; they also mest the Group's
major shareholders and visit the Group’s operating sites,
meeting with executives, managers and staff,

Formal Board meetings are held at least eight times a
year. Additional meetings are arranged as necessary 10
consider urgent business. Information provided to the
Board includes monthly Group Operating Reperts and
Managsment Accounts, reports on treasury and foreign
exchange management, and specific business plans
and reports. The Board alsc meets for in-depth reviews

of strategy and discussions of particular business

issues and risks, including annual reviews of business
develocpment plans. The Board has a formal scheduie

of matters reserved for its approval; these mattars
include acquisition and disposal of businesses, issue of
shares, significant contractual commiiments, effectiveness
of rizsk management review processes and major

capital expenditure,

Committees of the Board include an Audit Committes,

a Nomination Committee and a Remuneration
Commitieg, all of which function within formal terms

of reference. Membership of the Committees is set
aut in the Intraductory Section of the Annuat Report,
The Audit Committee meets at least three times annually,
and its activities are outlined later in this Corporate
Governance Statement. The Remuneration Committee
meets as required to fuffil its responstbilities, which are
autlined in the Remuneration Repart,

The Nomination Gammittee mests as reguired to
consider appointments to the Board and to the position
of Company Secretary, both in responge to vacancies
arising and within the overall context of the balanice of
the Board; the Committee appoints apprepriate Search
Consultants to assist in the recruitment of new

board members.

Board Members' attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings during the year was:

Total number of meetings
Meétings attended

J N Bornar

PrGrréenhélgrh '

Mloven

HV Kelly

SPWhMay
T M McNally
RP Thian

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration
- - Committee  Committee  Committee

12 4 4 o7
2 N A A
12 NA NAA N/A
0 s 4 K
102 N WA WA
12 e 4 7
12 4 4 7
12 wa 4 NA

? In addiition 1o thege seven meetings, Turther meatings were hetd in connection with the approval of routine exercises of share options.

2 Maximum possible 10 (to date of ceasing board mermbership),
3 Maxirmum possible 1 {to date of ceasing committee membership).

Formal evaluation of the performance of the Board
and Board Committees, including their effectiveness
and arrangements for and content of meetings, was
conducted after the end of the year, and followed
reviews of the schedule of matters resarved for the
Board's approval and of the terms of reference of the
Board Committess. The senicr independent director
met with the other non-executive directors, without the
Chairman being present, to appraise the Chairman’s
parformance, and that appraisal has been discussed
with the Chairman.

In accorgance with the provisions of the Combined
Code, the directors are aware that independent legal

I :.‘

agvice is available to them, at the expense of the
Company, in connection with matters relating to the
business of the Company.

Relations with sharetiolders

The formal proceedings of the Annual General Meeting
include individual resolutions on separate issues, including
resolutions relating 1o adoption of the Annual Report and
Agcounts and to adoption of the Remuneration Report. Al
Board members usually attend the Annual General Mesting
and are avaiiable to respond to shareholders' questions.
As a further means of cormmunication with all sharehclders,
the Annual Report and Accounts contains information on
the Group's business activities, in addition to the statutorily
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Corporate Governance continued

required information. The Company’s web site,
www.whatman.com, also provides inferrnation about
the Group, including a secticn on investor relations,

While carefuily recognising statutory constraints concerning
disclosure of information, the Group endeavours to ensure
that members of the Board develop an understanding of
the views of major shareholders by providing cpporiunities
for satisfactory dialogue. These include presentations directly
related to the publication of preliminary and interim
staternents, discussions of the Group’s sirategies and
business plans and periodic visits 1o the Groun's
operational facilities.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board of directors has ultimate respensibility for
preparation of the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts.
The Board is required by the Companies Act 1986 o
prepare for each financial year financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss for the financial year.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial
staternents, the Group has used appropriate accounting
policies, consisiently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates. All accounting
standards which they consider to be applicable have
been followed.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the
Company and the Group keep accounting records which
disciose with reascnable accuracy the financial position of
the Cempany and the Group and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985,

The directors have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and {o prevent and detect fraud and
other iregularities.

Going concern basis

In vigw of the Group's satisfactory financial position, the
directors confirm that they have reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
have therefore used the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

Internal control

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the:
Growp's systemn of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The role of management is to implemeni
the Board's policies. The systern of internal conirol is
an ongoing process designed to identify, evaluate and
manage the significant risks facing the business. The
system has been in place throughout the year and up to

28 | Corporate Governance

the datie of approval of the Annual Repoeri and Accounts,
and is revigwed annually by the Board. This review
comprises appropriate consideration and discussion ¢f
business and financial reports, strategic ptans, capital
expendiure projects, product development projects, tax
and treasury issues, risk management and legal issues.
Tre internal control systern is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to meet business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absoluie assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group's system of internal contrels is communicated
through policy and procedure manuals. The Group uses
the corporate intranet as a communication channel to
ensure that all employees have easy accass fo

the procedures.

Internal financia! control

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committes, the
membership of which comprises sclely of non-executive
Board members, examines the sffectiveness of the
system of internal financial control.

Internal financial controls and procedures include:

» a clearly defined organisation structure and
the appropriate delegation of authoriiies to
operational management

* g budgeting system including the preparation of an
annual budget, approved by the directors, and a
re-forecasting process .

+ the monthly reporting and review of financial results
compared to budget and the actual resulis for the
previous year

* clearly defined guidelines for capital expenditure,
inchuding annual budgets, detailed approval procedures,
and post-completion appraisals

+ for all acquisitions, detalled due diligence procedures

= accounting and financial reporting policies 1o ensure
the consistency, integrity and accuracy of the Group's
accounting records

+ specific treasury policies and objectives, with the
reporting to the Board of all significant transactions
and exposures.

The Audit Committee:

* reviews the draft annual financial statements and other

formal announcements, with particular reference to

compliance with accounting standards, company law

and FSA requiremenits, before they are presented to

the Board

reviews the external and internal audit work plans

« considers reports from management, internal and
external audit on the systermn of internal control and
any material control weaknesses

+ discusses with management the actions taken on

probiem areas identified by Board members or in

the internal or external audit reports

monitors the objectivity, effectivensss and independence

[ ...
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of the external auditor, including the nature and extent
of non-audit services provided; additicnally, the
external auditors have processes in place to ensure
that their independence is maintained, including
safeguards, to ensure that where they do provide
non-audit services, their independence is not
threatened; they have confirmed to the Audit
Committee that in their opinion they are independent

* reviews arrangements by which staff of the Company
rmay, in confidence, raise concern about possible
imprepristies in matters of financial reporting or other
matters and by which the Company Investigates such
matters and implements appropriate actions.

Compliance with the internal financiat control system
is maintained by peer review by other members of
the Group's finance management crganisation and by
the periodic appaintment of consultants to conduct
specific internal audit activities and assist in the
implementation of appropriate action plans.

Operational and compliance controls

The Group’s operating policies are outiined in the Directors’

Report, Additional procedures and controls include:

* human resources: The Group has local policy manuals
and has maintained P Investor in People) status

* heaith, safely and environment: Risk managemant is
addressed by training, maintenance prograrimes and
the use of monitoring and control davices. The Group
also meets the standards of the \PC (integrated
Pollution Control body) and PABIAC [Paper and Board
Industry Advisory Commiittes)

* manufacturing, quality and research and deveiopment:
All cperations are required to be performed to
standards that meet ISO 9000. These procedures are
subject to independent audit

*» information technology systems: The Group has
internal procedures relating to access controls,
back-up procedures and disaster recovery plans.,

Risk management

The foliowing have been identified as the Group's
key risk areas:

* human resources

¢ health, safety and environment

¢ information technology

+ financial

* commercial

* business operations

+ science and technology

s regulatory

* facilities

= intefleciual property and corporate administration

Part of the Board's decision-making procedure is the
cansideration of the risks irvolved in particular proposals
and actions, and the control processes in place to manage
those risks within acceptable fimits. For example, in 2004

D

the Board infroduced a process of regular reporting

1o the Board of key business metrics, introduced a new
orocedure for Group-wide management of customer
complaints, and reviewed the Group’s policies and
procedures for hedging of foreign exchange exposures,
disaster recovery at the major operational sites and the
managerment of refationships with strategic suppliers.

Combined code compliance

During the year, in addition to their director's fees,

each of the non-executive directors received remuneration
for consultancy projects caried out for the Company,
the ameunts of which are detailed in the Remuneration
Report. However these projects were of a discrete
nature and the Board is confident that the amounts

of rernuneration involved did not compromise the
independance of any of the non-executive directars.
Althcugh Cr May has been a Board member for more
than nine years since his first election, during that time
the entire remaining Board membership has changed,
as has ihe entire level of management that reports to
the Board, except far the Company Secretary, as well

as much of the Group’s senior management below those
lgvels. This means that Dr May's position with respect to
the rest of the Board, all reports to the Board, and much
of the Group's senior management, confinues 1o be
independent in the ways envisaged by the Combined
Code. The Board thersfore considers that ail of the non-
executive directors were independent during 2004. The
Board alsc considers that Dr Kehler, who was appeinted
on 3 January 2005, is Independent notwithstanding his
interest in the contracts described in the Directors'
Report, as these contracts do not impinge on his normal
responsihilities as a non-executive director.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2004 the
Company has been in compliance with the Code
provisions set out in Secticn 1 of the Combined Code
except that:

i | following the departure of the Chisf Executive at the
end of Novermber 2004, Mr Thian’s role became that of
Chairman and Chief Executive, pending the appointment
of a new chief executive

i | appraisals of the Board and Board Committees

were carried out after the end of the year

it } although the members of the Committee have
extensive relevant business experience, as briefly
described in the introductory Section to the Annual
Report, and consequently a general awareness of inance
issues, they do not have specialist financial experience.

Board and Comnmittee structures and succassion issues
will be revisited during 2005.

By order of the Board
John Simmonds
Company Secretary
8 April 2005

Corporate Gavernange | 27




Auditors’ report
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Wnatman pic

We have audited the financial statements which comprise
the Group profit and loss acccunt, the balance shests, the
Group cash flow statement, the Group statement of total
recognised gains and losses, the Group note of historical
cost profits and losses, and the related notes. We have
also audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of
Scheduie 7A to the Companies Act 1985 contained in

the directors’ remuneration report (“the audiiable part”).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards
are set out in the statement of directors' respensibilities.
The directors are aiso regponsible for preparing the
directors’ remuneration report.

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements and
the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration report in
accordance with ralevant legal and regulatory requirements
and Wnited Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. This report, including the opinicn,
has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companigs Act 1885 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
respongibility for any other purmpose or to any other person
tc whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements and the auditable part of the
directors’ remuneration report have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.
We also report o you if, in our opinion, the directors’
report is not consistent with the financial statements,

if the Company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we nave not received all the information and explanations
we reguire for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ rermuneration and transactions is

not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual
report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatemenis or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. The ciher
information comprises only the chairman's statement, the
financial review, the directors’ repert, the unaudited part
of the directors’ remuneration report and the corporate
governance statement.

We review whether the corporate governance statement
reflects the Company's compliance with the nine
provisions af the 2008 FRG Combined Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required

o consider whether the board's statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s compcrate governance
procedures or its tisk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the auditable part of the directors’
remuneration repert. it also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policias are appropriate
to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and perforrmed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order io provide us with sufficent evidence
ta give reasenable assurance that the financial staiements
and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration
report are free from material missiatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
aur epinion we alsa evaluated the overall adeguacy of the
presentation of information in the financial staterments.

In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
31 December 2004 and of the loss and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended;

* the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1885; and

¢ ihose parts of the directors' remuneration report
required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies
Act 1885 have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985.

(2 ea Tt Lot 1L

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors

London

8 April 2005
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Group profit and {oss account

for the year ended 31 December 2004

LuFO\r’
Cost of sa|es

Distribution costs

Research angd development
Amortisaticn of goodwil
Other admmlstrative costs
Total administrative costs

Operating profit/loss)
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Operating profit/(lcss)

Loss on business closure contlnulng operations
Loss sl busrness drsposaf

Profit/lloss) on ordinary activities before interest

Net interest payable
gZ’ro"t uoss) on ordmary ac* \mes before tax

Tax on profitffoss} on ordinary activities

Profitioss) attributable to shareholders

Dividends

Retained loss for the year

Basic earnings/ioss) per share
Diluted earnings/(loss} per shara

Note”

4

2
2
,72.,
2
2

__1 -

3
continuing operatrons 8

4

19

A

25

A2

12

Before
goodwill

items items
Continuing  Acquisitions
£'000  £000
80,390 2,431
41,463) (1,249
378,92_7' 1 ,‘1782 o
(11,411) (603)
7”(‘!,5712) o (109)
7814 oy
{9,326) B17)
18180 82
_igaeo 62
C18390 0 82
(43?) .8
17 753 _7C
@408 - G4)
L13380 58
1045 003
10.25 0.03

Goodwill
goodwill amortisation amertisation
amortisation amortisation & exceptional & exceptional
& exceptional & exceptional

" Before

items items

Continuing Acquisitions

The notes to the financial staterments on pages 37 to 58 form part of these accounts.
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Goodwill

Total

£'000

82,821
(48,379)

34,442

(14,310)

{1,916)
@1y

(14,502)
(17,219)

BO00 000
186 (5,833
186 (5,839)
- (2,296)
- ( 95)
(570) 141)
2, 630) (3 740)
{3,200)  {4,176)
(3,034) (12,305)
(3,034 (12,305)
(1,128)
(462)  (12,308)
4162) (12,308
(706 3,287
_(a888) (@048
B8 {08
(3,74 (6.95)

2913

2,913

2 -

1,785

(429)
1,356

.. (1,886)
4530}
I A B
(6,454)

041p)

(0.41p)

" Before

‘Goodwill

goodwill amortisation
amortisation & exceptional

& exceptional
items

_E'000
83 803

4429

_ 39674

(13,607)

LRy -
(692
4133

(1 1,986

14078

14,078

(@08
13870

4388

7.45p

@8

14078

.. 9482

752p

items

_Fooa

(4,008)

4,099)

3,441

858

(10,294)
_82n

{11278

(11,278

({11,369)

(8.93p)

(1.542)

8sq)

YN

(.01p)

35,579 :'

(13 607) %
278

(692

12535 @
688 ¥

208)

5678
(8,548} &4

Total B

£'000 B
83, 803 .
(48 224) ]

13424 @

aozen §
o g

2,803 ¥t

259 §

7o) g

B s MRS R , .‘ “.\‘

P




Consolidated statement of recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Loss attr\butabie to shareholders

Currency translatlon differences on net mvestments o ]

Net exchamge (Loss)/gam aon forelgn currency borrowmgs
UK tax on exchange gain on foreign currency borrowmgs B
Overseas tax on exchange gain on foreign currency borrow?rigs

Jotal recognised losses for the year

Notz of historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Proflt oﬁ ordlnary actnntnes before taxatlon '
Impalrment of prewousﬂy revaiued freehold property

Hlstoncal cost proﬂt on ordmary actlvmes efore taxatton
Histerica! cost retained loss for the year

2004 2003
2000 £000

e (530 4, 883}
(1473)  (2958)

o @3y 9B
B - .
(38) (97)

{2,538) 4,009

2004 2003

. ... OO0 000
... 19586 2505

) ] o - 126
e 9 (9
1,337 2,702

(6,467) (7,228)
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Balance sheets
as at 31 Degcember 2004

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangiole assets
Invastments

Cutrent assets

Stock . . L.

Debtors due within one year _
Debtors due after more than one year
Investments

Cash

Creditors: amounts due within one year
Borrowings B
Gther creditors

Net current assets/{tiabilities)
Total assets less current liabilties

Creditors: amounts due after more than one year
Borrowings S
Prowvisions for liabilities and charges

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Sh'are premium; ) o
Revaluation reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserves

Prcfit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds

The notes to the financial statements on pages 37 to 58 form part of these accounts.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 4 April 2005 and signed on its behalf by:
P Greenhalgh Finance Diractor

R TThian Chairrnan
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VNQlB o

13
14
15

16

17
A7
18

19

20

19

21

24
24

25

25

25
26

Group
2004

£000.

36,640

81,757
- 18
68,413

16,736
24,589

15402
5128

9,082

71,027

(30

(25,428)

(25,518)
45,509

113,922

(39,328)

(34,380)

40,214

1,291

15,321
4478

.40
1,932
17,152
40,214

Greup Whatman plc Whatman ple 3
2003
(Hestated) §°
£000 4§

2003
(Restated)
Q’OQD

6,890

28,041

34,931

11,125

23201
.86z

3

8508
54,789

(11,274)
(15,968}

©7.240)

27,549
62,480

15,527}

46,953

1,269

13222
4538

40

2004
25,880

46,953

2004

£'0¢0

6,247

46,557

52,804

2,706
. 82,476
3,873

- 99
59,154

_877)

' (39,525)

(40,402)
18,752
71,556

(39,328)
. 654
31,574

1,291
15,321

3,398
4

11,973
9,551
31,574

L —

10,273 §
83,767 ¢
74,040 §

2507 §
5,226

981 |
8714

—

50,679

—

32,075

(587)
31,488

1,260 §
s §

3,379 ¥
L))
1973 §
11,605 §
31488 §

41,565} -

11,043 §
39,636) |
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Operating activities
Net cash inflow from operaling activities

Reuns on investmeant and servicing of finance

Interast received

irlterest pard _

Net cash outflow on returns on mvestment and serwcmg of f nance

Taxat'on paid

Cacitai expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed agsets

Purchase of tangible ﬂxed assets

Sale of tanglble fixed assets

Net cash outflow from capltal expendlture and fi nanCIaI |nvestment

Acguisitions and disposais

Acqmsmons

Cash ‘acquired W|th Schlemher & Schua1

Sa!e of businesses

Net cash (outﬂow)/mﬂow from acqursmons and dnsposafs

Equty dividends paid
Net cash {outfiow)/inflow before financing

Financing

Shares issued

Increase in borrowmgs

Repayment of borrowmgs .

Purchase of Employee Benefit Trust Shares
Net (:ash |nﬂow from flnancmg

Increase in cash in the period

. The notes to the financial statements on pages 37 to 58 form part of these accounts,

Nete

28

27
28

24

30, 31

2004
£'000

13,753

70

(958)

 (88)
(389)
(4,251}

(386}
41

©(4,5%6)

 (30,066)
1,138

(os00l)

- (5,635)

(26,683)

212
39,126

{12,991)

~ (398)
27,858

1,175

2003
_Booe

8,744

o9
) (324}
(231)

2,788

_(3.397)

48
(3,349)

4,026
4,026

(5,107)

1,265

827

2,138

(1,176}
1,789

3,084
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Accounting policies

Accounting Convention The financial
staterments are prepared under the histerical
cest convention, medified to include the
revaluation of certaln fixed assets in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable
accounting standards. Except as noted below,
these financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the prior year.

The Group has adopted UITF 38 "Accounting
for ESOP trusts” in these financial statements.
The adoption of this standard represents

a change in accounting policy and the
comparative figures have been restated
accordingly {see note 25).

Basis of consalidation The Group financial
statements are the consolidation of the
financial statements of the Company and alf
of its subsidiary undertakings. The acquisition
rmethod of accounting has been adopted.
Undler this method, the results of subsidiary
undertakings acquired and sold during the
year are included from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the date of

disposal respectively.

Deferred tax Deferred tax is recognised

in respect of all timing differences that have
originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, with the exception that provision
is not made on asset revaluations, or for tax
that would arise on the remittance of the
retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries,
unless there is a commitment tc do so.
Deferred tax is measured cn a non-discounted
basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that, more likely than nct, they
wili be recovered.

Fereign currencies and derivatives Assets
and liabitities in foreign currencies are translated
into sterliing at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date, except where covered
by forward contracts, when the forward rate
is used. The results of overseas subsidiary
undertakings are translated at average rates of
exchange. Differences on the translation of the
opening balance shests of overseas subsidiary
undertakings are takan directly to reserves, net
of differences on related currency borrewings,

‘ntangible assets Intangible fixed assets

cther than goodwill, which comprise patents,
licences and marketing rights, ars stated

at cost less a provision for amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost
of intangible assets in equal annual instalments
over the lower of their legal and estimated
useful lives, but no longer than 20 years,
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The carrying values of intangible assets are
subject to review when appropriate and any
impairment is charged to the profit and ioss
account. The amortisation periods currently
being used range from 10 to 20 years.

Goodwilt On the acquisition of a business,
fair values are atiributed to the net assets
acquired, Goodwill arising on acquisitions since
1 January 1998 is capitafised and amartised
over its estimated useful life which management
estimates to be not more than 20 years. The
carrying value of goodwill is subject to review
when appropriate and any impaiment is
charged 1o the proft and Joss account.

Priar to this, the Group’s policy was to efiminate
goodwill arising on acquisitions against reserves.
Under the transitional arrangements of FRS 10
“Goodwill and intangible assets”, reinstatement
of goodwil is not required. Consequently, such
goodwill has not been reinstated and any such
goodwill will remain eliminated against reserves
untl the disposal or termination of the business
acquired. The profit or loss on the subsequent
disposal or termination is calculated after
charging the amount of any such goodwill,

Tangibie fixed assets The book value of
tangible fixed assets is written off evenly over
thelr estimated useful lives. Plant and machinery
is normally depreciated over 4 to 10 years,
except where the estimated working life is

20 years or longer (e.g. papermaking machines),
when depreciation is provided over 20 years.
Freehold buildings are depreciated over

50 years and freshold land is not depreciated.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over
the shorter of the asset and the remaining life
of the lease. In accordance with the transitional
measures of FRS 15 “Tangible fixed assets”,
the Group has adopted a policy of not revaluing
properties since the 1926 valuations, and
accordingly the valuations obtained in 1996
have not been updated.

impairment An impairment is the reduction
in the recoverable amount of a fixed asset
or goodwill below its camying amount. The
recoverabile amount is the higher of net
reafisabie value and value in use. Value

in use is Measured using discounted

cash flows,

The carrying values of fixed assets are
reviewed for impairment when there is an
indication that the assets might be impaired.
First year impairment reviews are conducted
for acquired goadwill and intangible asssts.

interast Interest payable is charged ta the
profit and loss account as incurred, except
for Interest relafing fo major fixed assets
under censtruction, which is added 1o the
<ost until the project becomes operational.
Interest receipts and payments due under
interest rate swap agreements are taken
to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Leases Rentals undar operating feases are
charged to the profit and loss account on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Land and buildings leased Land and buiidings
leased 10 third parties Lnder operating leases
have been capitalised at fair value under the
acquisition methcd of accounting. Operating
lease income is accounted for on a straight
line basis with any rental increases recognised
in any period to which they relate.

Pansions The cost of providing defined
benefit pensions is charged against profits
on a systematic basis, with pension fund
surpluses and deficits arising allocated over
the expected remaining service lives of
scheme mempers. Differences between the
amounts charged or credited in the profit
and loss account and payments made arg
classified appropriately as assets or liabilitiss.
Contributicns to defined contribution schemes
are charged to the profit and loss account
as incurred.

Provisions Provisions are made for liabilities
whersg, in the directors’ opinicn, present
obligations exist and it is probable that
outflows of funds will be reguired to setile the
liabilities in the future and the amount of these
funds can be reasonably estimated, Where
material, future cash flows are discounted

in arriving at amounts to be providad,

Research and developnrent Research and
development expenditure is charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which
it is Incurred, Tangible fixed assets used for
research and development are depreciated
in accaordance with the Group's policy.

Stock Stock is vaiued at the iower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes
manufacturing overheads.

Turnover Turnover represents ihe tofal net
invoiced value of goods sold to external
customers, excluding all sales taxes. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised whan
the goods are despatched.

T
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notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

g1 [ Segmental analysis

The Group's reporting segments have changed. The changes wers first reported in the 2004 Interim Statement. These more appropriately
align external reporting with the customer focused product categories scld in the markets in which the Group operates. The segment previously
named “Filiration and Separation” has been divided inte “LabSciences” and “MedTech”; the segment previously named “Biotechnology”

has been renamed “BioScience”. The 2003 comparatives have been restated.

LabSciences is the preparation of non-cellular sampiles pricr to analysis, including envircnmental applications. Products include cellulose and
glass filtration media, membranes and chromatography; in addition to traditional products, this segment inciudes syringe filters, capsules and
other encapsulated products, as well as microbjological products.

MedTech comprises components supplied on an OEM basis to manufacturers of medical devices and dlinical diagnostic tests.

BioScience is the preparation of cellular samples pricr 1o analysis and storage for study of nucleic acids or proteins. it comprises FTA,
multiwell plates, column based DNA separation and electrophoresis products, protein micro-arrays, blotling and nec-natal paper.

e 2 2008
Continuing  Gontinuing
operations  operations

acquisitions {Restated)
T_LJF!’I_(?‘JEf by__‘pusirj_ess o . o ) o ) o ) ) o N E'QOO B '2’0007 _E',QDO, ) 72’7000
LabSciences S R 47,890 1,493 49,383 50,186
MedTech o ... 1ss28 4z 15735 16,084
BioSoience T 0748 5% 11274 9746
Total ongoing operations L oL ... 73981 - 2431 76392 76016
Operations 1o be discontinued 6,429 - 6,429 7,787
Total continuing operations ) 80,390 2431 82,821 83,803
N o 2004 . 2008

Before Before Goodwill Goodwill Before Goadwill

goodwill goodwill amortisation amortisation goodwill amortisation

amortisation amortisation & exceplional & exceptional amartisation & exceptional

& exceptional & exceptional items items & exceptional items
items items Total items Total
Continuing Acquisitions  Continuing Acquisitions {Restated)  (Restated) (Rastated)
- Operating profit/{ioss; by business segment £000 €00 000 €000 £000 000 £000 £000
_ LabSciences - - 18,752 19 (2,196) (5901} 8,674 16267  (4769) 11,498
Medtech . . _ ST 82 B0 @73y @214 (BCO)  (778)  (1.578)
BioScience - o 78) 11 5832 (1573 (2,272)  (2.278) (340)  (2,618)

© Total ongoing operations 17486 62 (3,034) (12308) 2,188 13,188  (5887) 7,802

Operations to be disconinves 725 - - - 725 B89 4345 5234
Total continuing cperations o 16,160 B2 (3034 (12,305 2,918 14,078  {1,542) 12,536
. Digcontinued operations o - - - ' - ) 888 888

Qperating _;:irofit/(\oss) 18,190 62 (3,034 {12,305) 2,913 14,078 Bb4) 13,424
Tha Group's three business segments operate in three main geographical areas even though they are managed on a worldwide basis.

The home country of the Gompany is the UK. The areas of operation are principally the manufacture and sale of products for applications in
LabSciences, BioScience and MedTech.

production activities of the Group are integrated, many of the assets are common to more than one business segment. Consequenty,
an analysis by business segment would not provide meaningful information and therefore has not been given.
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011 Segmental analysis (continuec!

By region of origin

Turnover

Sales - continuing
Sales acquusmons

Inter- segment sales '
Sales to third partles

Operating profitfjoss)
Before goodwill & exceptsonal |tems contmumg

Goodw l and exceptional items — contlnulng o

Segment pront/(loss) o
Discontinued operations

Unallocated costs B
Contmumg operatlons
Discontinued operations
Operating profit

Net assets

Caontinuing operations
Discontinued operations
Segment net assets
Unallocated net assets
Net borrowmgs

Net assets

Turnover by region of destination
North Amenca o
Umted Kfngdom B
Continental Europe '
A31a Pacmc

Rest of the world
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North America

‘2004

£°000

42011
R
(5,799)

37,130

4735
(2,658)

2,077

2,077 |

20418

20,415

2003

(Restated}
eoo0

43182

(5,324)
37,858

592

14,327

(67)
14270

2004

£7000

52,725

1,757
(18,243)
35,239

| 14082
- (12:560)

1,472

1472

R

81,741

Europe
2003
{Restated)
£°000

54,870

(19.227)

35,443

a8

438

14,531

14,831

19,028

19,028

. Asia Pacific

" 2004

£000

10,452

10,452

2,013

(121)
1,892

1,892

1,386

1386

£'000

36,706

9,612

20615
12,376

1,081
80,360

2003

(Restated)
€000

10,502

10,502

1,911
(190}

1,721

1721
 {2,528)

893

893

Caminui-ﬁ-g- Abquisi-tiﬂns
operations

. VE'DO_D_
787

123

1 274
171

2,431

‘2004

£'000

103,288
2, 575

| (25,042)

82,821

120,780

(15,339)
5,441

5441

2,913

2,913

53,542

53,542
26,000
(39,328)
40,214

| 2004

Total
£°000

37,493

9 ?35
21 889

12,547
76

1,157
82,821

Total
2003
{Restated)

£°000

108,354

(24,551)
83,803

16,596

(654)
15,942
~(889)

15,054

(2518

12,536

888
13,424

34,248

57)
34,191

15,528

(2,766)
46,953

.. 2003

Total
E 000

38,708

10,989

19,828

12,861

1,416
83,803




021 Cost of sales and operating expenses

L Aa . 2008
Gontinuing  Acquisitions " Total Continuing Discontinued Total
operations operations  operations
Cost of sales and operating expenses ... moo0  PO00 £9000 £'000 £°000 %000
Cost of sales before exceptional itams S . 41483 1249 42, 712 _ 44 129 - 744 129
Exceptional items 7 o o ) {1 66) 5, 833 5 6_6_7 4 2?57 (180) 4, 095
Total cost of sales ) ) _ 41,297 ‘7 082 - 48,379 48404  (180) 48 224
Distripution costs before exceptionaiitems 11411 €03 12014 13607 - 13607
Exceptlonal items _ ) - N N - 2 296 2,296 - - -
Total distribution Costs 7 ) C 114 2 899 14,310 13,607 - 18e07
Research and devetopment before exceptlonar ltems _- - ' _ 1,512 109 N 1,621 2178 ) C - 2178
Exceptlonalltems N o .- 295 295 o -
Total research and development _ o S o L5lz 404 18916 2178 - 2,178
Amertisation of intangible assets & goodwll ... B/ o ™M w92 - B892
Cther administrative expenses before exceptional items . 7814 408 8222 9811 - 9,811
Exceptional |tems o o S 2, 630 3740 6 370 (3 425 ) (708)‘ ) (4 133)
Total other admmlstratwe expenses o o o 10,444 4148 14,592 6,386 (vogy 5678
Total administrative expenses ' ' ' 12526 4693 17,219 9256  (708) 8,548
2004 2003
021Loss on business closure and disposals o . S Eoo o RO
Provision for loss on closure of Biometra GmbH - continuing operations
Write down of goodwill o o S S - )
Writedownofothertanglb!eassets_ S o e o - (1,508
Provision for closure costs S o S o - [erg
Provision against net assets _ o ) - ({128 -
Loss on business closure — continuing operations _ _ o - {(1,128) {10,294)
Loss on disposals - conunumg operations o N S S o o
Dlsposal coms;deratlon received S o o o ) S - 400
Deferrad conS|derat|on - o - - o ) o o N - 42
Lesscostsofdlsposel o o S o o o - (3
Write down of goodwill o o S o . (337)
Dnsposal of net tanglble aseets S ) - S o - (429)
Loss an business disposal —- contlnumg opera‘uons ) ) ) ) - {327)

In Decemper 2003, the Filter Cartridge business was scld to Graver Technologies Inc. In addition to the consideration received in 2003, a
further US $1.0m may be receivable contingent on future performance. This has not currently been recegnised.

2 2003
Frofit/ fioss) on disposal of the HemaSure blood filtration business - discentinued cperations o o _E’gg; £:000
Dlsposal eonmderatxon recelved o ] o o - - o o o - 3, 629
Digposal ofnetlntanglbleassets ) o o ' o o _‘ T o . o - _(2_8_89)
Disposal of net fangible assets _ ] _ ' - (740)

Profitilloss} on disposal ) . o : -
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

041 Net interest payable

Payable on borrowings repayable Wlthln f ve years 777777
Arnomsatlon of loan issue costs

TOtal payable 7777777777777777

Receivable

051 Profit/lioss) on ordinary activities before taxation

‘s stated after charging:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Operatmg lease rentals - plant and machlnery
Operating lease rentals land and buildings
Auidit work by Companys audltors‘

Audlt work Dy other firms

Non aud|t work by Company s audltors - further assurance serwces o
m—tax adwsory services
C—tax comphance serwoes o

Tax ad\nsory wc)rk camed out by non company auditors
Tax complfance work carried out by non-company auditors
'£45,000 (2003: £40,000} of this relates to the Company.

061 Goodw1 I amomsahon and exceptlonal nems

thlgatlon prowsmns (note 21) _ o
Bestructuring and onesrous lease provssuons (note 21) o
Write down/(wnte back) of stoc:k

Other exceptional iterns

Restructuring of Schlelche_.r & Schuell (note 21) o
Amortisation of mtanglbe assets and gocawill

Total oper_a_t!ng goodwil 2 amomsatlon and excepnonal rtems
Loss - on disposal of Filter Car’mdge Busmess )

Prowsmn for loss on closure ofrl3_|_ometra busmess (note 3 21)

Provision agamst net assets of Blometra
Total goodwill amortisation and exceptmnal items

2004
_£'000

2,340
" 200
711

15,339

16,467

(@33
269'.'_,,,...,,

1,352

1,128

327

10204

11,275

The stock write down of £769,000, which was incurred during the month of December, arises as a result of the product rationalisation project.
This project is a part of the integration process with Schisicher & Schuell.

Other exceptional items consist of closure costs incurred during the month of December relating to Schieicher & Schuell.

07 Employees

Weekly average number of employees i
NorthAmenca o S
Europ@__
Asia Pacific

Staft costs

Wages and salaries
Soctal securlty costs
Other pension costs

ﬂmﬁ ﬁsEOE 2004

2004
Number

290

473

49

812

2004

21 063

783
23,968

2003

Number

238
463
48
749

2003
£'000

23 T'l?

2122

218?

1,229
27,128
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081 Pensicns

Accounting policies adopted for pension schemes
The Group continuss te account for pension schemes in accordance with SSAP 24 “Accounting for pension costs”. Under the transitional
provisions of FRS 17 "Retirernant benefits”, the Group has also made certain disclosures in reiation to defined benefit schemes.

Defined contribution schemes
The Group cperates defined contribution or monsy purchase schemes in the UK, US and Germany. The benefits are determinad directly by
the value of contributions paid in respect of each member and the investment performance achieved on those contributions.

In the UK and Germany, all UK and German-based employess of the Group, respectively, are entitled to join the schemes. The assets of the
schemes arg held separataly from those of the Group in an independently administerad fund.

in the US cantributions are made annually to the 401(k) scheme. As at 31 December 2004, contributions of £348,000 (2003: £413,000) were
outstanding representing the unpaid contributions for the year.

The table below shows the reguiar cost to the Group of providing these pensions to employees. The regular cost represents contributions
payable te the scheme by the Group. Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they are incurred. As payments to the 401(k)
in the US are made annually by the Group, the regular cost below has still to be paid into the scheme.

2004 2003
Def_i_neq contribution schemes B ) o o o ) ) 2000 £'000
uwe o - ) S - 59 36
us L o ' S o 39 A3
Germany o ] o S o ' 32 -
Total defned contnbutlon schemes o o o ~ ' S S 483 449

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates & number of defined benefit or final salary schemes. These are located mainly in the UK and Germany.

UK defined benefit scheme
The scheme in the UK is funded and is now closed to new employees The benefits are determined with reference to the length of service
and final salary upon which employeas take retirement.

Under SSAP 24, contributions are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions cver employees’ working lives
with the Company. Contributions are determined by a qualified independent actuary on the basis of a triennial vaiuation. The last valuation was
done on 6 April 2003. Using the attained age method, this disclosed assets with a market value of £42,565,000, eguivalent to 111% of the
accrued liabilities, after allowing for expected future increasas in earnings. The main aciuarial assumptions used ware:

Valuation assumptions - B
Pre-retirement investment return L o ) - B.5%
Post- retlremernrtr lnvestment return current peﬂsmners ) - o o ) L 4.5%
Post-rettren{ént mvestment retur — employees yetto retlre ] '_ _' ) o L ) S 5%
Rate of | increase in salane'sm o 7 '7 B - ) ) ) N - 2 0
Rate ofmCrease cfpensuon payments e ] L - 25%

As at 8 April 2003 the MFR funding calcuiation showed a funding levei of 146%. The effective rate of the employer’s contributions decreased
from 16.2% to 10% from 1 January 2004 in accordance with recommendations submitted by the Scheme Actuary, Contributions from
employees for the year were 6.0% from 1 January to 30 June increasing to 6.75% from 1 July 2004.

The total contributions to the scheme over the year amounted to £481,000 (2003: £888,000). The prepayment at 31 December 2004 was
£4,902,000 (2003: £4,422,000).

The total charge in respect of the UK based defined benefit scheme is £256,000 (2003: £780,000). The reason for the decrease was the
reduction in UK based employees,
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08’ Pansions {continued)

German defined henefit schemes
The schemes in Germany were operated by Schleicher & Schuell, a company acguired by the Group on 30 November 2004 (see note 27).

Two different types of defined benefit pension are provided in Germany. These are the fixed amount plan and the final salary plan. Both of these
are ciosed to new entranis.

The fixed amount plan provides retirement and disability pensions and a dependent’s pension. The plan guarantees a fixed pension up to a
maximum of approximately €18,400 per annum. This is subject to an inflationary increase of 2% per annum up to the age of retirement and
3.5% thereafter. The normal retirernent age is 65.

The final salary plans provide retirernent, disability and dependents’ pensions. Pensicns are determined with respect to salary and years in
service to the Group.

Both these schemas are operated as fully provided but unfunded schemes. The Group pays into an insurance policy to cover the full pension
ligbility in the event of insolvency.

The gross liability of the defined benefit scheme was determined by a qualified independent actuary. The most recent valuation was as at 30
Novernber 2004, The valuation of the deficit under SSAP 24 was carried out using the same valuatich assumptions as those used to calculate
the deficit under FRS 17. This valued the deficit at £8,229,000 at 30 November 2004 and as at 31 December 2004, The regular cast of the
pension under SSAP 24 was £44,000 for the month of December.

A summary of the total group pension costs is given in the table below,

e e . 2004 .. 2003
. Cantinuing Acquisitions

Pensioncosts o o ) o o f000  £000  £006 €000
Defined benefit schemes .
Regular cost BT L L8044 T34 647
Actuarial (surplus)/defict allocated to year S (58 - (159) 407
Interest on prepayment. ) B ) - {278} {274
Total defined benefit schemes - ) o o 286 44 300 780
Defined contribution schemes
PensiongostUK T T sg L s 3%
PensioncostUS %8 - 39 4
Pension cost Germany - w82
Other pension costs ) 43 - 43 -
Total defined contribution schemes ' ' ) _ ' a5t 32 483 449
Total pension cost ) ) o _ o Far 78 783 1,229

Fension disclosures under FRS17
The Group accounts for retirement benefits In accordance with SSAP 24 “Accounting for pension costs” and the related disclosurss are
set out above,

The Group has adopted the transitional disclosure requirements of FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”. It differs from SSAP 24 principally with
regard to the cholce of assumptions and in that differences between the market value of the assets and liabilities of the scheme are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet whereas they are recognised on a smoothed basis through the profit and loss account under SSAP 24,

The Group is not required to account for retirement benefits under FRS 17 as full implementation has been deferred, but is required to

present certain transitional disclosures which are set out below.

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 6 Aprit 2003 and updated to 31 December
2004 by a qualified independent actuary. As the scheme in the UK is now closed to new employees, under the projected unit method, the
current service cost will rise as a percentage of salary as the scheme members approach retirement. The major assumptions used by the
actuary (in nominal terms) are set out in the following table.

[ B T o I




Germany UK
Defined benefit schemes ) 2004 2004 2003 2002
Fiate of general |n0rease !n salanes o ) 2 50% 4.30% 4, 80% 4 35%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment and deferment ] - R 5% -3 5% 2 80% 2. 80% 2 35%
Biscount rate 457%  6.20%  536%  5.47%
Infiation assumption 1.50%  2.80%  2.80%  2.35%
2004 2003 2002
Value Value Value
Tre assets in the scheme and t_hg e<pected rates of return were: __ PRate - E'000 Rate 2000 Rate  E'000
Equities 7.50% 23,484 7.80% 115 7.52% 106
Bonds/giits 4.90% 22,811 5.10% - 5.00% -
Cash 4.75% - 3.75% 43,104 4.00% 42,214
Total market value of assets 46,295 43,219 42,320
Actuarial value of liability {47,009) (46,483) {44,391)
s Hecoverable deficit in the scheme (710) (3,264] (2,071)
i Related deferred tax asset 213 979 621
Net pension liabillty e o _@en o eesy (1,450)
There Is no similar disclosure for the German defined benefit scheme acquired with Schielcher & Schuell because the scheme is unfunded.
l-_ If the amounts had been recorded in the financial statements, the following would have been recognised:
Germany UK Group
2004 2004 2004 2003
Araysis of amodnt charged 1 operating profit £'000  £'000 | 000 ~£'000
Current service cost - ) ) ) 9 653 662 599
. Curtailment gain - (400) (400) -
" Net amount charged to operating profit 9 253 262 699
o Anavsis of amount charged to other finance expense
i Expected return on pension assets - 18506 1,806 1,689
Interest on pension liabilities {39) (2 469) (2,504) (2,410)
Net charge (35} (863) (898) 721
=
ﬁ Anar'ss of amoLnt recogrisad in slatemant of 1ot resogrised gans and 0sses
; Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets - 2,488 2,488 (407)
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme ljabllltles - ) 6?2 ) 672 4,664
Changes in assumptions - 29 29 5,018
- 3,189 3,189 {761)
k wovemsntn aniiy auring tne year
: Deficit in the scheme at 1 January - (3284 (3,264 (2,071)
Acqurred with Sohielcher & Schuell S@osy) - (8,058 -
Current service cost ) © (B3 (862) (699
Curtaument gain - 400 400 -
Contnbunons 44 481 52§ 988
Net |nterest cost (39) (863)_ - (B9®)  (721)
% Actuzrial gain/foss) ] - 3189 3183  (761)
_ Foreign exchange loss (171N - a7y -
2 Defigit in the scheme at 31 December (8,229 {710} {8,939 {3,264)

{ et ey S L lE Tl o ot
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History of experience gains and losses £000
UK

Difference between expected gnd actual return on scheme assets 2,488
Experience gains and losses on scheme trablhttes

Shargholders’ funds and profit anc loss account reserve

Total including SSAP 24 pension prepayment as previously reported
Prior year ad;ustment [note 25) )

Total inciuding 5SAP24 pension prepayment as restated

{ ess S8AP 24 pension prepayment

Total excluding 3SAP 24 pension prepayment
Net pension liability under FRS 17
Total including FRS 17 habs!tty

091 Directors’ emoluments

672
Total amount recognnsed in the statement of tota recogntsed gatns and Iosses 3, 189_

) 2004
Percel ntage
of scheme
{liabilitiesy

assets

%
(8%

There was no history of experience gains and losses in respect of German defined benefit schemes.

2003

Pen:entage

of scheme

(liabilities)/

~ 000 assets
@on

4 664 10%

761y

Shareholders’

funds

2004 2003

{Restated)

£'000 £:000
(40,214 47216

- (263)
40,214 46953
(4 902] o (47-,4272)7 )

35312 425%

@497) (2,285

34 8156 4O 246

(1%)

(2%); -

2002

" Percentage

of scheme

(liabilities)/

_ FO00 - assets
670)  (1%)
1,683 4%
(999) _2%)
Profit and

. loss account
2004 2003
(Restated}

£000 €000
17,152 26,143
) - 263)
17 152 25 880
(4,902) (4,422}
12,250 21,458
@97) (2,285
1:!7‘@3 o 19 173

Cetails of remuneration, interest in shares, share options and compensation for loss of office for each Director are given in the Remuneration Report.

101 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax
UK Corporation tax for the year at 30% (2003: 30%)
Adjtjstmenté in respec:t of brio}; years '
Total UK ourrent tax

Forelgn tax for the year ) o
Adjustments in respect of prior years N

Total foreign current tex '

Total current tax

Ceferred tax

Crigination and reversal of timing différences
UK tax )
Forelgn tax

Total deferred tax )

Tax on proﬁ on ordtnary actlvmes N :

Included in the above s a credit of £nil (2003: £3,000 credit) of tax on exceptional items recognised below operating profit.

EEEE—— iﬂ ‘Nnitman Annual REEDn 2004

2004 2003
€000 000
© 1670
82 @4
(101) 1,636
1,048 745
193 18
test 78t
1,140 2,397
891 (539
55 2616
746 2,081
1886 4478




DT e s idaaria: Co i

Factors affecting tax charge for year
F’roﬂt on ordinary aotrwtres before tax N
Tax on profits at the UK standard rate of Corporatron tax of 30% )

Effects of:
Differences between UK and overseas tax rates

Items not currently | allowabie for tax purposes

Expenses not deduohble for tax purposes

Deprecranon for the year in excess of caprtal allewances
Unrelieved tax Iosses

Losses carned forward o
Adjustmeﬂts to tax charge |n respeot of prlor years ______
Other effects o

Curren@ tax charge for the year )

Factors that may affect future, tax charges

. F0a0 £a00

1356 2,595

) 407 779
(216) (34

387 (8,857)

33 2,670

208 535

(2) 1624

] 120 5676
101 (18)

B o 111””” 16
o 1140 2,397

No provision has been made for deferred tax in respect of potential gains arising from the sale of properties revalued to their market value
unless the sale is committed, the total amcount unprovided for this being £880,000. This amount would become payable if the properties were
sold without it being possible to claim rollover relief. Provision has not been made for tax of £710,000 in respect of prior year capital gains as
the gains have been rolled into replacement assets. This tax could become payable if the relevant replacement assets were scld. At present

it is not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the foreseeable future in respect of these gains.

A deferred tax asset of £5,000,000 in respect of trading losses has not been recognised. Recovery of this amount is dependent on the

profitability ¢f the relevant operations in the future.

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries, as the earnings are continually reinvested by the Group,

and hence no tax is expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future.

111 Dividends to equity shareholders
Interim pald 1.74p (2003 1 62p) )
Firal proposed 2.87p (2003: 2. 67p)

Total divid

end payabte 4.61p (2003 4 29p)

12| Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated on a toss of £530,000 (2003
number of shares in issue during the year:

Number of drdinery ehares ueed'for tfwe cél_ceiatibn ofrbaeic eern‘mge per share '
Exercise of outstandrng ehare opticns
Shares to be issued as deferred conaderatron for acqu:smons i

Number of ordrnary shares used for rhe calculatron of diluted ¢ eamrngs per share

2004 2003

£:000 7 72’000

2,032 2,053

- - 3892 8405
5924 5458

: £1,883,000) and the following weighted average

2004 2003

'000 V’QOD

127,808 126,130

2,446 1,054

o $130.254 127,250

Earnings per share before goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges have been shown after adding back, nat of tax, goodwill
amortigation of £641,000 (0.50p par share) {2003: £598,000 and 0.47p per share) and exceptional items of £13,898,000 (10.89p per share)

(2003: £10,769,000 and 8.54p per share).
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Goedwill Other Total |
intangibles

13Hntangible txed assets . .. ... .. fFoeo g0 060 |

Cost |

At 1 January 2004 1225 2524 14775

D|ﬁerenceson exchahge ) L o 168 ) (168) 77 -

Additions __ .. Bes | 338

Acquired thh Schlelcherand Schuell L S - 1,840 1,840

Goodwil arising on acqwsmon of Schisicher and Schueil 28,066 - 28,066

At 31 December 2004 ) ) 40,485 4,582 45,067

Amortisation

At1January 2004 L o 7345 (540 (7.885)

Differenoeson exchange ) e o 12247 89

Charge for year T (558) 1153) (711

At 31 December 2004 ) (7,781} (646)  (8,427)

Net book values

At 31 December 2004 32,704 3,936 36,640

At 31 December 2003 _ 4,906 1,984 6,890

Other intangibles include patents, ficences, marketing rights and trademarks. Three separabie assets were identified on the acauisition of

Schieicher & Schuell. These were:

« Trademark for Spartan

» Trademark for Protran

* Patent for Cellulose Acetate Membranes.

The fair value of these assets was determined by independent valuation experts using the income appreach. This is based on discounted cash
flow forecasts for each of these assets. The remaining useful economic lives are 8, 10 and 15 years respectively.

[, . Group . Whatman ple

Land and Plant and Total Land and Total

buildings  machinery buildings

41 Tangible fixed assets . mo 000 000 £000 €000
Cost or valuation

At January 2004 .. 8724 46325 65042 11,434 11,134
Differences onexchange gy fao)  @n - -
Additions S gsB 3,128 4084 11
Acguired w:th Schle:cher&Schue!l - e S 5291 3 gsc2 - -
Disposdls g (123 (23 - -
Impairment Y < NN 1) R =) R
Transfer to current asset investments ' (8 527) - 6,527} {4,549) {4,549)
At 31 December 2004 18,312 51,555 69,867 6,586 6,586
Degreciation
At 1 January 2004 L Been) (36834 (37,008 Bs1) _(8_6_1) ]
leferences on exchange o o ' N R 556 57572' ) - - ?
Chargefortheyear . @B (2738) (3189 (154 (154)
Disposals 2 e 10t -
Impairment e @) 3B 35 -
Transfer to cument asset investments ' ‘ ' B 1 399 . 1,399 876 676 4
Al 31 Decamber 2004 (2,725) (35,385 (38,110Q) (339) (339) i
Nt ponk vaiuss :
At 31 December 2004 15,587 16,170 3,757 6,247 6,247
At 31 December 2003 15,057 12,984 28,041 10,273 10,273
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e A S

L -

T i a i

2004

The net bock value of land and buldings comprises: . £000
Fresnold L L e o 10807
Leasehold 7 ‘ 4,780

15,387,

__ Group
2003

£:000

10964
4,003

15,067

_Whatman pic

" 2004
£1060

1,725
6,247

4522

2003
E'000

8519

1,754
110,273

irechold land and buildings were valued in 1896 by Chartered Surveyors and simitarly qualified professionals on an open market, existing use

pasis and the valuations were incorporated in the financial statements of that year.

e . Group . _Whatman plc
The net book value of freehold land and buildings at 31 December 2004 2003 2004 2003
on a nistorical basis would have been: .. Toob  £000 - £000 €000
Cost oo 8132 npaz 1311 7,665
Depreciation ) _ _ . S {2,090} 4,149 (633 {2,091}
Net book value ) ) ) ) o ] ) 7,042 6,898 678 5,574
At 31 December 2004 the group had contracted capital commitrments not provided of £nil (2003: £nil}.
~ Group __ Whatman plc
Investment in
o subsidiary undertakings
"~ Total Equity ~  Loans  Total
151 fixed assetinvestments_ e . ... fooo o £000 o £000 2000
Cost or valuation at 1 January 2004 - 46,557 17,210 83,767
Differences on exchange 1 - - -
Increase - -
Acquired with Schleicher & Schuell 15 - - -
Decrease e e T 17210 (17.210)
Cost or valuation at 31 Decernber 2004 o e _ 16 46,557 - 48,557
The cost of shares in subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2004 was £52,077,000 (2003: £52,077,000). The principal subsidiary
underiakings of the Group and the Company are shown in note 34,
2004 2003
1618tock S ~ £oo0 2000
Raw materials and consumables ] . 8758 4109
Work in progress 4135 2,836
Finished goods and goods for resale 5,848 4,180
16,736 11,125
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

c ... Groop .. Whatman plc
2004 2003 2004 2003
171 Debtors _ £'000 £000  £000 £'000
Due within one year
Trade debtors - 17,308 12317 - -
Amounts owed by subsmﬂary undertaklngs o ) - 1,150 ‘ B 1571
Otner debtors N 1731 8el 31 1
Taxation - 3429 6832 760 -
Prepayrnents anci accrued lncome B o . 2 121 8 281 785 2355
Debtors faliing due within one year i 24 5897 23 291 2706 2,507
Due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiaty undertakings o= - 48861 57226
PenSLon prepayment 4,902 4.422 - -
Other dettors ) w42 275 -
Deferred taxa‘non (note 21) 7526 7166 693 -
Prepayments and accrued mcome R 2,22 o 2122_ -
Debtors Talling due aﬂer more than one year o } ) ) 1 5;4921 1 17,8'627 ) 52 476 5,228
Total dettors 40081 35153 55182 7,783

Prepayments and accrued income inciudes prepaid royalties of £2,272,000 (2003: £2,321,000) recoverabie on future sales. In the current year,
£2.122,000 has been classified as due after more than one year.

L Group . Whatman ple

2004 2003 2004 2003

(Restated) {Aestated}

181 Current asset investments ... Eoo oeooD £'000 2000
Currerlt asset mvestments o o o 5128 3 3873 o

Current asset investments for the Group and Company include respectively £5,128,000 and £3,873,000 in respect of land and buildings
transferred from tangible fixed assets as they are held for resale. The 2003 comparatives have been restated fallowing the adoption of
WUITF 38; see note 25 for further details.

... ... Group .. _Whatman plc
2004 2003 2004 2003
191Berrowings. .. .. ... ... . goe o0 €000 2000
Short term borrowings
Unsecured bank loans e . IWoes o - 11,028
Unsecured bank!oansandoverdraﬁsq_ﬁ__7 o o %0 246 BY7 1B
_ .. .%0 1274 877 11043
Long term loans
Unsecured bark loans _ 39,328 - 39,328 -
Total borrowings T T T Tag418 11,274 40,208 11,043
Repayable
Within one year e 80 11274 877 11,043
Between one and two years T T T T 508 O 5086 -
Between two and five years o o o ___7_734262 - 7' 734262 '7 -

39418 11274 40,205 11,043




i
£
S

Bl

_. . Group S
2004 2003 2004
201 Other creditors £000  £000 000
Trade creditors ) o ) 5,204 3300 ' -
Amounts owedto subsmilary undertakmgs o ) T o __ S _~: ’ _. - ”-35 687
Proposed dvidend - agw2 3405 3892
Corporation tax_ o o , ‘ 1,058 37184 36
Other taxation and socral securlty o ” '_ h _ N o '_ T 4?4' h 422 N t?
Othercredntors o ' o - o ' o o B o 7710' 8676'" 7
Accruals and deferred income ' o o o S 6290” o 4,?89"“ " ss

25,428 15,066 39,525

.. Whatman ple

2003
£000
36,153
3,405
L]
R
39

S
39,636

OCther creditors includes deferred consideration and amounts cwed in respect of the acquisition of Schileicher & Schuell of £6.0 million,

Whatman plc
"Deferred
tax

. Bomo
..o87

&7

Gmu
Litigation = Biometra  Whatman Schieicher& ~ Pension  Onerous  Deferred Totsﬁ
Restructuring Schuell lease tax
Restructuring
211 Prov:suons .. .. go00  £000  £000  £000  £000 £000  £000 €000

At 1 January 2004 3 7026 4370 - - 3071 1024 15527
Differences on exchange o M 776 o (89) - (65) o 1?1 o (35} 33 391
Utllwsed ' @ (109) (3 543) (1 531) ) (44) (1.186) - (6,415}
Chargetotheproftandlossaccount T o o T T T
— exceptional ] - 1,128 701 11,352 - i85 - 14,886
Charge fo the prof it and loss account o
—non exceptional .- _s8e&e - - 44 - 748 1,588
Acquired S o - - - - 8058 - 145 8,203
Witenback @y @y - - - oqes - @y
Transfer to debtors - - - - - - 361 381
At 31 December 2004 - 8,857 1,439 9,756 8,229 3,489 2,610 34,380

654

Litigation provisions were ¢reated in 2002 in respect of an age discrimination case, a supply agreement case and for alleged patent infringement
by Biometra. The age discrimination and supply agresrent cases were settled in 2003 for amounts lower than those provided for and the
excess provisions written back. Following the decision to place Biometra into voluntary liquidation the provision for patent infringement was
released in 2003 and the balance combined with the newly created provision for the cost of ciosing Biometra. In addition, a provision against

the net assets of Biometra has besn made.

The restructuring provision for Whatman includes costs for the following:

= Site raticnalisation programme to reduce the number of manufacturing sites as announced in 2001

* Reducing worldwide headcount to around 800, as announced on 30 December 2002

* The increase in the provision of £701,000 relates mainly tc redundancy costs for the CEO and other senior management.

The Schisicher & Schuell restructuring provision relates to the facilities rationalisation programmes foliowing the acquisition of Schieicher

& Schuell resulting in a net headcount reduction of around 160 as announced on 31 December 2004,

The pension provision relates to the unfunded defined benefit liabilities acquired with Schlsicher and Schuell. This Is described in note 8.

The onerous lease provision relates 1o the costs of vacant possession of properties from which the business has been relocated. During

the year, additional amounts have been provided for the cost of the Parkweod and Larkfield onerous leases.

2004

y provis . meoo
W|th|n1year___ o o o o 213837
Between1and2years ) R ) o . 1,408
Between 2 and 5 years o ) B 3 695
Over 5years T ‘ - " 'Bo8e
31,770

2003
£oo0

12,595
584
1,211
- 113
14,503

In the prior year, £12,595,000 of provisions were expected to be utilised in the current year. Actual provisions utilised in the current year was

£6,415,000. This shortfall is mainly because the liquidation of Biometra is continuing.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

271 Provisions (continued)

.. ... . Group . Whatman plc

2004 2003 2004 2003

Deferred taxation is attributapisto .. ... ...... .. Foo0  £e00 €003 £000
Accelerated capital allowances . e . ... 1458 e 654 587
Ctoer timing differences _ .3y wrsy o - -
L Ay B4y 854 587
Included in debtors (note 17) _ 7,526 7,185 - -
Deferred tax provision _ ) _ 2,610 1,024 654 587

* Contingent liabilities

Whatman plc has given guarantess in respect of £72,376,000 (2003: £5,000,000) of borrowing facilities of subsidiary undertakings. Of this,
£39,328,000 has been drawn down. The increase relates to the loan facility of €95,000,000 {or the acquisition of Schleicher & Schuell and the
working capital requirement of the enlarged greup. The Group also has contingent liabilitiss in respect of leases sub-let and assigned in the
ordinary course of business.

i Derivatives and other financial instruments

In reporting derivatives and other financial instruments, the Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 13 not to provide
numerical disclosures in retation to short-term debters and creditors, other than in rejation to currency exposure disclosures.

Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, cash and equity capital. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to provide financing for the Group’s operations. The Group has various cther financial instruments such as trade debtars
and trade creditors, that arise directly from its operations.

The Group enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts. The purpose of such
transactions is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its financing. it is, and has been
throughout the period under review, the Group’s palicy that no dealing in financial instruments shall be undertaken, except for the purpose
of hedging the Group's financial risks.

The main risks arising frem the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liguidity risk and foreign éurrency risk. The Board considers
each of these risks on a regular basis and the Group's policy towards each of these risks has remained unchanged during the year.

interest rate risk )

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of equity capital, retained profits, cash, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings, The Group
finances its acquisitions primarily through bank barrowings. The Group borrows in the desired currencies mainly at flcating rates of interest and
uses interest rate swaps, as deemed appropriate, to manage the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Liguidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank
borrowings, The Group predominantly uses a medium term credit facility incorporating a term loan facility and a revolving credit facility from

a London bank. In addition, the Group maintains undrawn committed borrowing facilities, after laking into account anticipated expenditure on
acquisitions, of at least 10% cf borrowing facilities, in order to provide flexibifity in the management of the Group's liquidity. Shart term flexibility
is achieved by the use of bank overdrafts,

Foreign currency risk

The Group has a significant investment in overseas operations, primarily in the US and Centingntal Europa. As a resuli, the Group’s sterling
balance sheet can be significantly affected by movements in the US Dollar and Eurc exchange rates. The Group seeks to reduce the effect of
these currency exposures by matching its currency borrowings with the cverseas foreign currency assets to the extent that total borrowings do
not significantly exceed funding requirements. Approximately 80% of the Group’s investrnents in non-sterling operations are hedged in this way.

The Group alsc has a fransactional exposure with significant sales and a smaller element of purchases baing made in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operating units. In addition, the Group has an exposure in franslating the profits of overseas operations into sterfing.
The Group’s policy is to actively manage the currency risk by covering 100% of the anticipated exposures in major foreign currencies for a
period of between one and iwo years using forward foreign exchange contracts.

50 | Whatman Annuat Report 2004

AT

L

i i




sl

Fixed rate
.. Weighted average

© Total Nomeinterest  Floating “Fixed  interest Term
bearing rate rate rate
interast rate risk prefile of financia) liabilites £000 £'000 £2000 £°000 % years

2004

Pound sterling
US Dollar
Ewo

L 3bar 3046 T T
2770 428 2347 -
35567 20 35547

Japanese Yen 4,523 - - 1s28 19 3.7
42,907 3,489 97,895 1,523 19 37
2003
Pound steriing 2260 2,026 224 - - -
USDoler ... .. .88 0% 7 - -
fwo ' ) ' ' 200 20 T o -
Japanese Yen ' S ass2 o o asR2 190 a7
Singapore dofar T T T Tyegs L Tiees - o T T
14,345 3071 9712 1,562 19 47

The above takes into acoount interest rate swaps, which have had the effect of reclassifying £1,523,000 of debt from floating to fixed rate,
entered into by the Group to hedge against interest rate risks. The floating rate financial liahilities comprise bank borrowing bearing interest at
rates fixed in advance for periods ranging from one to three months by referance to the relevant foreign currency LIBOR and bank overdrafts.
in addition, the Group's provisions of £3,4839,000 for onercus lease contracts (note 21) meet the definition of financial liabilities. Of these,
£875,000 is expected to mature within ong year, £793,000 between one and two years, £1,469,000 between two and five years and
£352,000 in greater than five years. The maturity prcfile of interest bearing financial liabilities is shown in note 18

Borrowing facilities
The Group has various barrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at 31 December 2004 in respect of which
ali conditions precedent had been met at that cate were as follows:

2004 2003
Committed borrowing facilities e ee e ... _EDOD o £O0O
Expiting in less thancne year S 919 13972
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years s __2_;?_35_ i ,_5_1090
Expiring in more than twe years ' ' ' ' 26,438

' ' - ' 29,503 18,972

2004 2003
interest rate risk profile of financial assets ) - o B - . Epoo 000
Pourdsteding .. 24 150
UsDollar L e 3137
Eurc o S - - 8401 3192
Japaneseen o 4e2 1620
Singapore dollar i o e e
Swiss francs 7 ) o ) o129 -
Canadian doliar - _ _ 2 047

9,082 8508

All of the above are at floating rates and comprise cash balances with banks and overnight money market deposits.
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Currency exposures

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

The following table shows the Group's currency exposures that give rise 1o the net currency gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss
account. Such exposures comprise the menetary liabllities of the Group that are not dencminated in the operating {or ‘functional’y currency of
the operating unit invelved. Other than certain non-sterling borrowings treated as hedges of net investments in overseas cperations, gains and

josses are recognised in the statement of total recognised gaing and losses.

Net foreign currency monetary assets/{liabilites)

Functicnal currency of group operations

2004

Pound sterling

US Dollar
Euro

JapaneseYen
Singapere doflar

Canadian dollar

Totaf at 31 Cecember

2003

Pound sterling
U$ DoHe_i[ )
Euro

JepaneseYen
Singapore dollar

Canadian dollar

Totar at 31 December

GBEP US Doflar

Ee B0

B

(2,142}

o hey
s
oo

Euro

o Fooo

18

The amounts shown In the table above take into account the effect of forward contracts entered into 1o manage these currency exposures.
At 31 Becember 2004, the Group also held open various forward contracts that had been taken out to hedge expected future foreign

currency exposures.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabiiities

Frimary financial instruments
Short term borrowings and current portion of long term borrowings
Long term borrowings

Financial assets

Fixed __assei]nvesffnéfﬁé )

Darivative firancial instrumerts heid 1o manage interest rate risk
Interest rate swaps

Cearivative finarcial inatruments neid to hedge curency risk

Forward foreign currency contracts

‘Book

value
£'060

B0
- (39,328)
.go082
L

98

.. 2004
Fair
value

Lo

. 90)

- (89,328) _

_ 9,082

)

18

327

(11.274)

BS08

231

{11,274)

8.508

Lo A8

424

Market values have been used to determine the fair values of interest rate swaps and forward forgign currency contracts. The fair values of
other #termns have besn calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.
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Hedges

The Group's paolicy is 1o hedge interest rate risk using interest swaps and cumency exposures using forward foreign currency contracts. Gains
and losses an instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is itself recognised. Unrecognised gains
and losses on instruments used for hedging and the movernents therein are as follows:

Gairs and 10s3es on redges
Unrecognlsed at l January 2004

Ariging in previous years 1 Ihat were recogmsed Jn 2004

Arlsmg |n previcus years that were not recogmsed in 2004
Arising in 2004 that were not recognlsed in 2004

Unrecognised at 31 December 2004

Of which — expected to be recognised in 2005

- expected to be recognised in 2006 o later

241 Share capital

Authorreed Ordlnary sharee of 1p each

Ailot‘ted called up and fully paid ordmary shares of 1p each .

Shares o be issued

At 1 .January 2004

Share capital |ssued under share optlon schemes

At 31 December 2004

Cpt tons on ordinary shares outstanding at 3% December 200«

'Integrated lncentlve plan ‘A options
Integrated lncentrve plan ‘B’ “options

Integrated lncentlve plan C‘ options _

Long Term | Incentrve Optlon Scheme
2001 savings relared share Opt|0h scheme
2002 savings related share “option scheme

2003 Savings T related share ‘option soheme

2004 savings related share option scheme

2001 Whatman Inc - savings related share optlon pan

ZQQZ__Whatrnan NG savings related share 0pt|0n plan ' '__7 o

2004 Whatman In_c savings r related share option plan

2001 Germany savings n related share optlon echeme

2002 Germany savings related share option scheme

' Nurnber .

140 000 000

129,095,826

Number Share capital

126,870,840

2,224,986
129,095,826

Nuember of
shares

71,035,159

123,744
125414
| 301,892
14,689
76228
169,418

80,144

7,099
5,688,571

1085180

120,095,826

Gains Losses Total het

gain/{lass)

L B0 Eoo0 00
BN < B (22 R 1
%y 28 ey
..oy {ioy

562 310) 252

562 13 149
o562 358 208

- 67 &)

2004 B 2003
EOE_JO L !\I_Ll[r)?er £'000
1,400 140,000,000 1,400
1,291 26,870,840 1,268
- TeB280 14
1,291 126,937,120 1,260
Share premium Total

... wooo . _ .. F000_  £000
1,269 13222 14401
STz T T 2000 2.2
1,291 15,321 16,612
Option Psriod

o pn(.‘es o exercssab'le
_87p-225p 2005-2014
87p-225p  2005-2012
B7p-225p  2005-2012
251p 20052014

) esp 2005
Ttp 20052006
 104p 2006-2007
180p  2007-2008
~88p  2004-2005
7ip 20052008

T Taede o020

’ BBp  2004-2005
- 7p 2005-2006

Whatman Annual Report 2004 1 53




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

251 Reserves

Group

At 1 January 2004 as previously reported
Pnor yeariadlustment S
At 1 January 2004 as restated o
Forelgn exchange drfferences o
Retained losg for the year
Exchange gain on orrowmgs

Tax on exchange adjustments __ o
Emp[oyee Benefit Trust shares

Transfer to profit and (oss account

At 31 Decerber 2C_}O4

Whatman pic

At 1 January 2004 as previously reported
Prior year ad;ustment .
At 1 January 2004 as restateci

Retamed loss for the yaar '

Transfer to profit and loss accourrt
Employes Benefit Trust shares

At 31 December 2004

Revaluation

3379

3379

3,398

o Feon

Capital
redemption
£'000

40

Other

£'000

1,973

Profit
and loss

26,143
 pesy
25,880
7o

(6,454)

36

go3

(398)
53

17,152

11,868

- (263)

11,808
(1.837)

(19}
{398)
9,551

£'000

Total

_Fo00

32,725
(263)
32,462
(1,869)
(6,454)
(36}
103}

j,_.@e

23,602

17,260
(263)
16,997
(1.637)
' (398)
14,962

The cumulative amount of goodwill written off directiy to reserves in respect of undertakings forming part of the Group at 31 December 2004

was £17,532,000 (2003: £17,532,000). In accordance with the exemption available under section 230 of the Companies Act 1885, the

profit and loss account of Whatman plc is not separately presented. The profit attribuiabls to shareholders of Whatman ple is £4,287,000

(2003; £3,059,000).

The pricr year adjustment refates to the adoption of UITF 38 which requires that where a Company purchases its own shares held by
the Employee Beneiit Trust, these should be deducted in arriving at sharehclders’ funds. The tcial cost of the shares was £262,755 at
31 December 2003 resulting in a reduction to sharehclders’ funds of that amount. At 31 December 2004, 368,874 shares were held with

a nominal value of £3,690 (2003; 168,974 shares with a nominal value of £1,690). In accordance with UITF 38 during 2004, the cost of

shares acquired included as a deduction from the profit and loss account reserve was £397,732.

Shares in Whatman ple are purchased by the Company in the open market and held by the Employee Benefit Trust for the benefit of the
employee profit share scheme. Bonuses are payable to Whatman employees in the form of either cash or share equivalent based on the year
end share price. The cost ¢f bonuses has been charged to the profit and loss account in the year t¢ which they relate. All rights to dividends

on these shares have been waived.

261 Reconciliation of movement in equity shareholders’ funds
Loss a‘gtrlbutab e to shareho derS
Dlvrdehds .
Retamed toss fcr the year ‘
Other recogrnsed Iosses for the year
Employee Benefit Tmst _shares_ )
Writs back to pref it and loss of goodwrll on busmess closure
lssue of Shares ON exercise of share optlons B
Net decrease in equrty shareholders funds fo-r&ear ’
Equrty shareholders funds at 1 January
Prior year ad]uetment

Equrty sharehoiders” funds at 31 December
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(5,924
6454

_(2,008)
(308)

2121
 739)
46,953

40,214

2003
{Restated)
~ £'0op

49,833
© 1263)
46,953
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271 Acquisiticns
On 30 Novernber 2004, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Schieicher & Schuell, a company incorporated and based in Germany.

The fair value of the total consideration of £40.9 million (€58.8 million) was offset by amounts received in respect of excluded entities and
other similar adjustments of £4.9 million. Of this amount, £3.8 million (€5.5 million) is deferred for payment until 30 November 2005. It includes

transaction costs paid or accrued totaling £2.8 millicn, but excludes bank arrangement fees of £0.6 million, Cash acquired with the business
amounted to £1.1 milfion.

Table of agquirad assets and labilities
The following takle sets out the book values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, together with their fair vaiue to the Group:

’ Book Fair Fair

4 value value value

adjustments

el el ..., /EOOO - £000 £000

Intengible fixed assets L o_ees 1857 1840

3 Tenghle fixedessets .. . ... ... . 878 1551 _ 830

'- vestments ... @ a1

Stock _ o 8257 (@33 5904

4 Debtors ... ... a0 728 13,543

Cash L L oo tes o -0 1,138

BOMOWNGS .o A - (2139)

Other creditors B , o ... iBb49) 1539  (8,510)

Provisons for fiabilites and cherges 0 (B857) (2443 (9,300)

Netassetsacquired 10382 2417 12799

3 Goodwil - - 28,066

E Consideration - - 40,865

:

: Consigeration satsfied by:

] Amounts refating to excluded entities and other similar adjustments . ..o
Deferred consideration - - 3,818
Total - - 40,865

] The fair value adjustments represent valuation adjustments of £0.5 million and alignments with group accounting poilicies of £1.9 million. The fair

\ values and goodwill arising are provisional and subject to finalisation as the acquisition was made within one month of the year end.

? Schisicher and Schuell owns a 28% interest in BioDot ing, a private company incorporated in California. BioDot designs, manufactures, markets

and seils micro-scale liguid dispensing systems and related peripheral equipment and services. These are used to develop and produce

i diagnostic tests for markets. The markets include medical, food, environmental, veterinary and agricutture.

H

i BioDot Inc prepares financial statements to 31 October. 1t is accounted for as an associate undertaking using the equity method of accounting.

& Schleicher & Schuell's share of net assets totalled £177,000 as at 30 November 2004 and is reflected within fixed asset investments in the table

; of acquired assets and liabilities. The goodwilt net of acctimulated amartisation arising on the acquisition of £283,000 is within intangible fixed assets.

; The investment in BioDot has been fair valued to nil as no dividend has been paid since Schleicher and Schuell acguired BioDot. Furthermare,

no dividends are expected for the foreseeable future and there is no ready market in which tc sell the shares. As the investment has been

fair valued to nil, and has only been held for ong month of the year, further Group assogiate disclosures have not been given on the ground

M of materiality.

f Provisions for liabilities and charges includes amounts in respect of the pension liabllity and deferred tax Tiability.

There will be no material effect on deferred tax should the acquired zssets be sold at their fair value.

P
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Results prior to acquisition

in the year ended 31 December 2003, turnover was £34.8 million and profit after tax was £0.4 million (at an exchange rate of €1.42 to £1).
The summarised profit and loss account fram 1 January 2004 to 30 November is shown based on the accounting policies of Schleicher & Schuell
prior to the acquisition:

Eleven months
ended 30 November 2604
£ '000

Tumover ... .. . %%

Cost of sales __”;" e o o ) (16961)

Gross profit_ L .. 15897

Distrioutioncosts T meo)
Researcﬁ'&dévelogment e S L 77(1_07476)
Administrative expenses 0 {Ba4y)
Total operatlng expendlture e (14,789
Other income 1,600
Operatmg proflt _' o o e S o 2403
Net foss on disposal ofbusmesses ______ e o (2652)
Income from associale under‘taklng .
Interest L e T L
Lossbeforetax e e o L _ (600)

Tax T e00)
Loss after tax {1,500}

S‘"*e"wm of recognised gains and losses for Schleicher & Schuelt in 2004
ne elgven months erded 30 November 2004 prior to acquisition £000

Loss attributable to shareholders S e )

Curremcy translation differences on net investments - (59)
Total recognised losses for the pericd {1,559)

2004 2003

'Disposal of businesses ... . go00 000

Net proceeds from sale of Fiter Cartridge business o S - 397

Net proceeds from sale of HemaSure Blood Filtration business I 3629
- 4,026

2004 2003

+ Recongitiation of operating profit to net casn inflow from operating activities £1000 £2000

Operatmg proflt e L . 29713 13 424
Depreciation e 3189 4_08{3
Amortisation of lntaqglb_le assets and goodwm e 711 . B8z
Impairment of tangible ﬂxed assets e 54 1,571

Prpftonsateoftgrlglmefxed assets o i e h k_ (17) N ,,,,..@
4 . Bao
Stock write down/(write back) 769 6

Other non cash profit tems

Net provisions established o 7, 14,439

(667)  (301)

(noreaseydecreaseinstock o eesy T4
(ncrease)/decreaseindebters . _le56) 1939
Decrease incredtes o . O i B 42

Utilisation of provisions (6.415) (13 513)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 13,753 8,744

Gther non cash profit items refate primarily to the Increase in the pension prepayment.
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2004 2003
30! Reconciliation of net cash flow 10 movement n net debt £1060 £'000
Increase in cash in the year o i B ~ i . (1 175) - (3 084)
Net cash ﬂow from increase in borrowmgs S ' 26,135 962
Change in net debt resulting from cash fiows o T 24980 22
Acquisition of borrowmgs ] o S ~ 2133 3 o
Foreign exohange ds[fqrqnces ) o N o ) 477 ) (1_ 2?9)
Increase/{decrease) in net debt i |n the year o _ o _ o ~ 27 570 ' (3,401
Net debt at 1 January ’ ) 2,766 6,167
Net debt at 31 Dacember 30,336 2,768
At Cash Change Acquisition Exchange At 31

1 January flow in (excash& movement Detember

2004 maturity overdraft) 2004

311 Analysis of net debt o ) ~ _Eo00 £000 000 £'00D £'000 £'0p0
Cashinhandand atbank - o@8s08 (1,019 - T .0 445 (9,082)
Overdrafts 246 {156} - - - a0
Lo B2ey e - - 445 (8,992)

Debt due W|th|n one year ) . B 11,028 7(448_33) {8637 TBZ (340 -
Debt due aﬁer one year o i - 30888 6637 1351 372 39,328
11,028 28, 185 2,133 32 39,328

Net debt 2,766 24, 960 - 2,133 477 30,336

321 Related party transactions

TR Y

e R AR

Cn 21 December 2000, Schleicher & Schuell made a loan of $240,000 to BicDot Ing, an agsociate undertaking (note 27), which was due for
repayment on 1 June 2001, On 1 August 2002, the unpaid balance of this loan of $73,661 was exchanged for a three ysar £% convertible
debenture with a conversion rate of $5.00 per share. This batance s due for repayment or conversion on 1 August 2005.

Dr Hinrich Kehier was previously Chairman of the Advisory Board of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH. Dr Kehler {through a majority shareholding
in ConCap Beteiligungs und Vermogensverwaliungs GmbH ("ConCap™)) was a shareholder of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH (S&S) until the
acquisition of S&3 by Whatrman in November 2004. The former shareholders of S&S have provided indemnities to Whatman in relation to
representations and warranties contained in the safe and purchase agreement and payment tc them of part of the consideration for the
acquisition is subject to retention by Whatman through a warranty period. In addition, Dr Kehler continues to be a Director and {through

his shareholding in GonCap) has benreficial shareholdings in a number of companies which were previcusly subsidiaries of S&S but excluded
from the acquisition of S&S by Whatman. These companies are parties to certain contractual agreements with Whatman companies by
which, for a transition period, they supply products and services to Whatman and receive services from Whatman. These agreemenis were
negotiated on an arms fength basis. The total value of transactions between Whatman and these companies between 1 December 2004
and 31 Decernber 2004 was £41,000.

. Land and buildings . ... . [other

“2004 2003 2004 2003

331 Lease commitments ... EOOO o £000 000 €000
The Group has annual commitments under operatlng leases expwmg

Within cne year ... GE4 207 390 52

Betweenoneand fiveyears 706 588 489 158

After five years _ 643 413 - -

1,713 1,208 879 - 210

The Company had no commitments under operating leases.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

34| Principal subsidiary undertakings B
Biometra Bicrmedizinische Analytik GmbH‘""
Whatrnan Asia Pacific Pte Limited®
Whatrman Fi Frnance lelted’ -

Whatman GmpH‘ o

Whatman ‘Germany GmbH‘ o
Whatman_ He_maSure nct
Whatman Holdings GmbH‘
Whatman Holdings UK lelted
Whatman Inc! o
Whatman lnternanonal ijlled2
Whatman lre and lelted’ o
Whatman Japan KK . l
Whatman Canada lelted‘ L
Whatman Fleeve Angel Inc‘ L
W‘natman SA1

Whatman Luxemburg 2 ' ) '
Whatman Tuxemburg 3‘ )
Schlelcher & Schuell GmbH‘_ _
Schlelcher & Schuell B!oSCJence lnc‘

Scnlelcher & ‘Schuell BioScience | GmbH‘

Schlelcher & Schuel_M:croSc:ence GmbH‘
Schieicher & Schus MicroScience i’

~ Holding 7

o Manufacturlng, marketmg and development - N

_ Fnangng
) l:inaneing i

__ Principal activities o
Manufactunng marketlng and development

Marketing B
~ Holding and ﬁnancrng

_ l\/lanufactunng marketlng and development
_ Holding S
Menufactunng, marketlng and development

Holding
Holding
Manufacturlng marketlng and deve opment

I\/lanufacturing, marketing and development B
_ Holding and financing

Markenng )
Manufaeturlng and marketlng

__Finanging
- Holding

Manufacrunng marketlng and clevelopment_ N

 Manufacturing, marketing and gevelopment
Manufacturing, marketing and devslopment

Manufacturing, marketing and development

_Country of incorporation
. Gemary
 Singapore
__ reland
__ Germany
Germany

' __Germany
~ England

i US'

) England
Irefand
.. Japan
 Canada
o Us
... Beigium
Luxermburg

~ Luxemburg
_ Luxemburg
Germany
us
Germany
_ Germany
us

100% of the voting rights of all subsidiary undertakings are held directly or indirectly by Whatman plc. All shares held are ordinary shares,

except where indicated.

* Equity held by a subsidiary undertaking.
*Both ordinary and preference shares held.
* Biometra is in the process of being liquidated.
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Five year record

Turnover L
Operatlng prof U(Loss)
Profit on sale of fixed assets

Profb/{!oss) on busmess dnsposals ar?d cJosures o

Profit/{loss) before mterest o
Interest

Proﬁff(loss) before taxatuon )
Taxation ;
Profit/ (Ioss) aﬁer ta.xatlon

Minority interests o

Profi t/(loss) atmbutabie to sharehcﬂders
Dn.'ldends )

Shareholders funds )

Earnlngs/(oss) per share basm
Earnings/{loss) per share — diutea
Dividend per share
Share pribe high ' '
Share price — low

us dollar exchange rate at year end
US dollar exchange rate — average dunng year

2000
(Restated)

£000

| 98,859

34,857

(o3
33954
) (8815)____
25139 |

- 14
25,153

4885

83,184

| 208p

19.95p

. 390p

12,503

20G7

£000

90,351
(5,032
T Ags9
22,064

3373
) (1 OO)”
) (3 473]

2,286

(187
4895
77,713
085p)
. 0.84p)
380
283.0p_

- §146
$1.44°

1, 187):

2002 2003
{Restated}
_£ODD _ "E_QD_D__
87,284 83803
22, 065) 13424
(7090) (10,621)
(29,156 2,808
By (0g
(29.248) 2,595
9,090 @4are
20,186)  (1,883)
(20,156) (1,883
4901 5458
49,833 46,953
(16.04p)  (1.49p)
(5950 (1.48p)
390p - 420p
1320p  1635p
850p  6B.1p
$1e1 $179
$151 $184

Taxation and sharehclders’ funds have been restated in 2000 to reflect the change in accounting pclicy following the adoption of FRS19

“Deferred tax” in 2001.

2004

_E000
82 821
2, 91 3
7
(1 128}
1,785
(429)
1 ,356
(1 886)
(530)
. 530
5,924
40 214
(0 41p)
(0.41p)
4, 61 »
269 Op
155 5p
$1 .92
$1 83

Shareholders' funds in 2003 have been re-stated 10 reflect the change in accounting policy foliawing the adoption of UITF 38 “Accounting for

ESOP trusts” in 2004.
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Additional Company information

Annual Gereral Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is to be held at 27 Great Weast Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 9BW ¢n 20th May 2005,
The Notice of the meeting is contained in a separate circular to shareholders.

Financial calendar

Preliminary announcements of the results for the year are issued in April; annual reports are mailed to shareholders in May; final dividends
are paid in May. interim statements for the year are issued in September; interim dividends are paid in November.

Taxation of capital gains

For the purposes of Capital Gains Tax the adjusted market value of the Company’s shares at 31st March 1282 was 9.4p, fcllowing the

sub-division of each Ordinary Shave of 5p into 5 New Ordinary Shares of 1p each.

Compary Secretary
John Simmonds FCIS
Registered office

27 Great West Road
Brentford London
TW8 oBW

Registered number 630858

T 0208 326 1740
E information@whatman.com
www.whatman.com

Registrars

Capita plc

Bourne House

4 Beckenham Read
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

T 0870 162 3100

Lordon Stock Exchange
reference WM

Auditors

South European Sales Office
Whatman International Ltd
Springfield Mii

James Whatman Way
Maidstone

Kent ME14 2LE

UK

T 01622 676670

North Eurcpean Saies Office
Whatman Gmbh
HahnestraBe 3

37586 Dassel

Germany

T +49 5561 791 0

United States Sates Office
Whatman Inc.

200 Park Avenue

Suite 210

Florharm Park

NJ 07832

USA

T +1 973 245 8300

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Brokers and financial advisers
UBS Ltd
JP Morgan Cazenove Limited

Soicitors
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
Nabarro Nathanson

Trademarxs
‘Whatrman’ is a registered trademark
of Whatrman international Limited

‘EasyClone', ‘FTA', 'Fusion 5', ‘GD/X,
‘Mini-UniPrep’, ‘Purasil' and '903' are
also trademarks of companies within
the Whatman Group.

Japan Sales Office

Whatman Japan KK

JPR Ichigaya Building 6F 4-7-15
Kudan-Minami

Chiycda-ku

Tokyo 102-0074

Japan

T+81 35215 1242

Asia Pacific Sales Office
Whatman Asig Pacific Pte Lid
171 Chin Swee Road

#08-01 San Centre

Singapore 169877

T +65 6534 0138

Design “stilt waters run deep” Londen www.stillwaters-rundsep.com Photography David Parfitt Print Vertec
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Introduction to Whatman

The Whatman Business

Whatman is regarded as the world’s leading innovator,
developer, produger and distributor of high-end
laboratory separations products including fiter papers,
membranes, syringe filters, filters for use in breathing
apparatus, automated platforms and surgical devices.
From ¢ollection, storage and manipulation of DNA for
forensic applications, Whatman provides world class
solutions for life sciences, worldwide. Sciutions that
enable engineers, scientists and medical staff to carry
out their work more easily, quickly, acourately and safely,

Corporate headguarters
Brentford, West London

Sales and marketing offices

* Dassel, Garmany (North Europe)

» Maidstone, UK (South Europe)

¢ Florham Park, New Jersey, USA (North America)
*» Singapore {Asia Pacific)

« Tokyo {Japani.

Frincipal manufacturing locations
* Banbury, UK

* Maidstone, UK

= Sanford, Maine, USA

¢ Dassel, Germany.

Whatman's distribution, saies and service organisation
covers more than 70 countries worldwide.

For contact detalls, see page 80
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Whatman Board

Son Thiar?

Chairman and Chief Executive

Also Chalrman of Scuthern Water and Astron Group.
Praviousty Group Chief Executive of North West Waler
and of The Stationery Cffice; 22 years in healthcare with
Gilaxo, Abbott Laboratories and Novo Nordisk and
non-executive directorships with Celltech and Medeval,

Or Siron Meay?

Dreputy Chairman (and Nen-executive Director)

Also a mernber of the rvestment Cornmittee of ACTIV
Investments Fund, and a business consultant and author.
Previously Director of Business Devalapment, Nortel
Europe, and founder of Mondiale Information
Technology Associates.

Tom tAchNaily

Vice Chairmar

Appointed as Vice Chairman on 1 January 2005 with
executive responsibility for the Group's research and
developrnent, business development and sales functions;
non-executive director of the Company since March 2003.
Also a director of Pediatric Clinical Trials International.
Praviously 25 years in healthcare with Abbott Laboratories.

130 rACrana Jovan

Non-executive Director

Adso a venture partner with MPM Capital, and a director
of Zeolita Mira and FPanmaedix.

D iHindeh Keblar®

Non-executive Director

Appointed 1 January 2005. Also Chief Executive of
ConiCap GmbH and Chairman of ConCert GmbH,
DIA-Nislsen MicroTech GmbH, Hahnemiihle FineArt
GmbH and S&S Security Printing GmbH. Previcusly
Chairman of Schleicher & Schuel!l GmbH and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Sehaldus Group.

B Greanhalgn

Finance Director

lanr Bonneay
Operations Director

Joihn SEraonos

Company Secretary

" Ghairrar of the Nomination Committee.

? Gnairman of the Audit Gormmittee, memiber of the Norrination
and Remuneration Comimittees, and Senior independent Director.

*nvember of tne Norrination Cornmittee; untl 34 Decembear 2004,
also Chairmarn of the Rermmeration Commitles and mernber of
the Audit Cormmitiee.

* Mernbar of the Nomination Comrnittee; until 28 January 2004,
a0 a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committess.

% Chairman of the Remuneration Committes, meroer of the
Namination and Audit Gommittees.




Highlights of the Year
“QOperating Profit” up 20%"

Financial Highlights

Underlying sales™ up 6% (excluding Biomeira,

in fiquidation)

Operating orofit™ up 29% to £18.2 milion

(2003: £14.1 million)

Cperating marging” rise to 23% (2003: 17%);
LabScisnces marging up to 35% (2003: 32%,)
Adjusted EPS™ up 39% to 10.45p (2003: 7.52p)
Total dividend increased by 7.5% o 4.61p per share
(2003: 4.290).

Statutory Results

Turnover £82.8 million [down 1% on
2003: £83.8 miiffon)

Operating profit £2.9 millicn {down 78%
on 2003: £13.4 million)

Prafit before tax £21.4 milion (down 46%
on 2003: £2.6 miliion)

Basic loss per share of 0.41p (increase
of 72% on 2003: lpss of 1.49p).

Qperating Highlights

Solid sales growth in LabSciencas (up 7.1%) and
BioScience (up 16.8%; offset by weaker performancs
in MadTech (down 3.7%;} ail at constant exchange rates
FTA sales up 39% at constant exchange rates

to £4.8 million and licensing discussions progressing
Rationalisaticn of pre-acquisition Whatman
manufacturing facilities largely completed, on
schedule and within budget

Successiul acquisition of Schleicher & Schuell,

and integration defivering synergies on schedule
Search for new CEQ well underway

On track to deliver earnings accretion targets
announced last November.

* pre-goochwill amortisation and exceptional charges and excluding

H

acquisitions and disposals
at constant exchange rates and excluding acguisitions and disposals







Chairman’s statement

Overview

Two years on, and the renaissance of Whatman is well
underway. The initial restructuring of the organisation has
generated benefits to shareholders; sales have started to
grow ahead of the market, margins have improved and
the strengthening of the management has begun.

Nevertheless, there is still much to do:

s we have had some setbacks with key appointments,
in particiiar with the CEO and some of the regional
sales managers

* the organisation, prior to the acquisition of Schiaicher

& Schuell GmbH (“3&3"), is now broadly the right size

and shape, but the process of building additicnal skiils

has barely begun

whilst our LabSciences products have been growing

faster than the market, they have yet to realise their

full potentiat

BioScience news was mixed:

~ organic: growth of FTA - largely in the forensics
market — continued, but the out-licensing
programme is taking longer than we had hoped

— however, with increased knowledge of the patential
markets for FTA, our expectations for both the
forensics markat and the applications for which
we are negotiating licences are considerably higher

- multiwells ended the year most encouragingly,
after a slow start

* in MedTech, the OEM sales are by nature lumpy and
we continue to believe in their potential, but we shall
be reviewing the future of some of the lower margin,
lower growth product ranges in this segment

* the margin improvements achieved in the vear
exceeded expectations and we believe that there is
still a considerable way to go. The process improvement
programme has only just begun in all our factories.

Qverall, the promised improvernent in profitability
resulting from the upgrading of existing operations
has been substantially achieved and is starting to
yield improvements in business performance.

The acquisition of S&S towards the end of the year has
provided a unigue opportunity. The integration has got
off to a good start and is expected to meet the earnings
accretion targets published at the time of the acquisition.

Financiat Results

Excluding Biometra and S&S, sales were £74 million;
at constant exchange rates and excluding disposals
this represents a 6% increase over 2003, This reflects
a strong performance in the LabSciences segment
where we grew the business by 7.1% to £47.9 milfion
and in which we are outperforming the market. Total
Group sales in 2004 were £82.8 million, including one
month of S&S sales (2003: £83.8 million).

Operating profit (EBITA) in the year to 31 December
2004, including Biomstra (in voluntary liguidation), but
excluding goodwill amertisation and exceptional charges,
was £18.3 million, up 30% (40% at constant exchange
rates) on 2003 (£14.1 million}. This improvement has
resulted largely from further benefits of the restructuring
programme which started in early 2003.

Operating profit (EBITA) of continuing operations,

excluding S&S, goodwill amortisation and exceptional

chargss, was £18.2 million, up 29% on 2003 {(40% at

constant exchange rates). Operating (EBITA} margin

of the continuing operations increased to 23%

{(2003: 17%), resulting from:

¢ a solid improvement in LabSciences from 32% (2003}
to 35% (2004)

* an enceuraging improvement in BioScience to near
hreakeven against last vear's loss of 24%

s 3 limited improverment from MedTech, which increased
10 points from a loss of 5% in 2003 to a profit of
5% in 2004.

Earnings per share for the year, befare goodwil
amortisation and exceptional charges, were 10.45p,
39% higher than the 7.52p in 2003.

The Group has provided in the 2004 Accounts

for exceptional charges of £15.8 million (excluding

amortisation of goodwill):

» £12.4 million for the rationalisaticn of S&S facilities,
integration of the S&S product range and stock write
downs within S&S

* £2.3 million relating to onerous leases and continuing
restructuring within the established Whatman operations

+ £1.1 million in respect of Biometra in order to maintain
a full provision over its net assets.

After these exceptional charges and amortisation of
goodwili, the Greup's profit before tax was £1.4 million
(2003: £2.6 million) and the loss per share was 0.41p
{(2003: loss of 1.49p).

The Group incurred a tax rate on underlying profits
before goodwill and exceptional items of 25% in 2004
{2003: 32%). it is anticipated that the ongoing tax rate
of the combined Group in the near term will be 25%
at current levels of profit, with incremental profits
taxed at 35%.

Operating cash flow in the year was £13.8 million
(2003: £8.7 rillion). The total consideration for the
acquisition of S&S was €58.8 millicn {£40.9 million),
which was financed entirely by debit.

At 31 December 2004, the Group’s net debt was
£30.3 milllon, a gearing ratio of 75%. Interest cover
at 31 December 2004 was 43 times, based on the
combined 2004 profit of Whatman and S&3 before
goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges,

w



Chairman’s statement cantinued

In the announcement of the acquisition of S&S, the
Board indicated that the acquisition would be 7%
accretive (o sarnings in 2005, 39% accretive in 2006
and 48% accretive in 2007, With this expeciation for
very substantial improvement in profitability, but prudentiy
planning to repay the debt, the Boerd has decided 1o
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.87p
per share, making a total dividend for the year of 4.61p
per share, 7.5% higher than in 2003 (4.29p). This will
be paid on 27 May 2005 to sharehaolders on the
register at 22 Aprit 2005.

Business Restructuring

The restructuring projects initiated in 2002 are

all substantially completed:

+ headcount within the pre-acquisition Whatman
business (ie prior to the acguisition of S83) is
now steady at about 725 {down from 1,050
at the beginning of 2003)

+ reduction of the pre-acquisition Whatman range
of products from 16,000 lines to 4,000 lines was
completed. A further 500 lines were identified for
delstion, but implementation of this programme
has been combined with the rationalisation of the
S&S8 range {see below)

+ rationalisation of the principal Whatman pre-acguisition
manufaciuring faciities is complete, on schedule and
within budget, with production now concentrated at
Banbury and Maidsione in the UK and Saniord in
the USA, all of which have IS09001 certification.
Pegistration of the Banbury and Sanford sites to
1SO 13485 wil be completed during 2005. Relocation
of the membrane etching plant from Scarborough to
Sanford was completad in October, also within budget

¢ relocation of the North America headquarters from

Clifton to Florham Park, New Jersey and of the Japan

office to an improved location in Tokyo is also complete

» standardisation and upgrading of the Group's integrated
business software and telecom systems wili be
substantially completed during the first half of 2005

+ disposal and letting of surplus properties continues
to progress:

- agreement has been reached for the sale of the
Clifton site, with completion of the sale scheduled
for June

- leases of the Newtcn and Scarborough faciiities
have been surrendered

- the Ann Arbor facility has been subiet for the full
remaining period of the lease.

Acquisition of Schleicher & Schuell

The acquisition of S&S was completed on 30 November
2004 for a consideration of £568.8 miilion (£40.9 million),
financed eniirety by debt.

8&8's leading position in Germany complements

Whatman’s established presence in the UK and the
USA, and the combined Group is now the Clear

§ Chairrins s slatomrmant

number three in the global LabSciencas market,
with a 16% share.

The acquisition will allow the Group 1o offer a more
comprehensive product line with the same superior
quality our customers have come to expect. The
acquisition has also opened naw doors for Whatman
in markets and geographias in which Whatman has
not, historicaily, been present or strong.

Integration of the Whatman and S&S custcrmer service
and sales groups has been successfully completed
during the first quarter of 2005. Based in Florham Park,
New Jersey (North America), Maidstene, UK (South
Europe), Dassel, Germany (North Europe), Singapore
{Asta Pacific) and Tokyo (Japan), the combined teams
are now positiocned to provide existing and new
customers with a substantially broader product and
improved service capability. In North America and

the UK, the established Whatman presence will benefit

from the increased selling resocurces and additional

products, including:

* within the microbiology market (part of the LabSciences
segment), a range of leading products in feod and
beverage QA/QC applications with Industry-wide
application, including microbiological monitors and
media for culturing samples

* in the DNA blotting market {part of the BicScience
segment), S&S blotting membranes, which are
considered the premier brand available in the
market and complement Yhatman plotting paper

* in the diagnostics lateral flow market (pait of the
MeadTech segment), combined S&S and Whatman
product offerings provide customers with an optimised
range of products far lateral flow, making Whatman
the most comprehensive supplier of material for
lateral flow tests

* in Neonatal testing (part of the BioScience segment),
S&5 dominates the supply of printed cards for sample
ceilection using the 903 media.

The geographical strength of S&S in Germany and
Central Europe provides a considerable opportunity
to offer the combined product range to S&S's strong
loyal customer base.

Integration and rationalisation of the combined product
range will be completed by the fourth quarter of 2005.
The pre-acquisition Whatman range had already been
reduced from 16,000 products to under 4,000, A similar
programme te reduce the 5&S product range from
17,000 items, together with a further reduction of the
Whatman pre-acquisition range, is well underway and
will result in a compined offering of 7,000 produsts.

Initial stages of the integration of operations are
progressing well:
+ relocation of the S&3 LabSciences facility from Flarida




to Sanford will be completed in April 2005, earlier than
originally planned and within budget

relocation of the S&S BioScience manufacturing and
R&D activities from New Hampshire to Sanford will
be completed by August, and the New Hampshire
freehold site has been put up for sale

absorption of 588 head cffice functions into the
Whatman organisation was completed in the first
quarter of 2005.

Migration of S&S business cperating systems to

the upgraded Whatman platform is on scheduls, for
completion by the end of 2005. Completion of these
initial integration projects will reduce the combined

Whatman

2004 Underlying

£000 growth* %

LabSciences 47 890 7.1
MedTech 15,323 (3.7
BioScience 10,748 16.8
Ongoing aperations 73,8961 8.0
Biometra 6,429 (15.7)
Total 80,390 4.0

* at constant excharos rates

LabSciences

LabSciences is the preparation of non-cellufar samgles
prior to analysis, including environmental applications. It
comprises cellulose and glass filtration media, membranes
and chromategraphy. In adgition to traditional products,
this segment includes syringe filters, capsules and other
encapsulated products, and microbiological products.

Underlying sales {at constant exchange rales and
excluding the filter cartridge business which was sold
at the end of 2003) were up 7.1% in a market which
grew by about 3%. Within this overall growth, some
weakness in European demand was cutweighed by
particularly strong activity in the United States.

The traditional cellulese and glass fibre macrofittration
products continued to hold their own, together achieving
a 4% increase in sales (at constant exchange rates) in

a steady market,

Membrane sales in this segment were up 20% at constant
exchange rates, helped by the award of a five year US
contract for air pollution monitoring.

The Company’s latest generation of innovative products

centinues to provide new opportunities:

s Mini-UniPrep, used in HPLC sample preparation,
achieved a 53% year on year increase in sales

workforce from 1,170 at the date of acquisition to
980 by the end of the year.

A further stage of the integration will combing the
existing paper conversion operations at Banbury and
Dassel. This project will be completed by the end of the
year and will achieve a further reduction in headcount,

Segmental Review

As announced at the beginning of 2004, the Group now
has three reporting segments. The segment previcusly
named “Filtratior: and Separation” is now divided into
“LabSciences” and "MedTech”. The segment previously
named “Bictechnology” is now called “BioScience”.

The statutory accounts for 2004 include one month of S&S sales, post-acquisition. The analysis in the following table
shows the unaudited proforma total sales of the Group for the whole of 2004:

Standalone S&8§ Proforma Combined Group

2004 Underlying 2004 Underlying
£4300 growth* % £000 growth* %
20.621 75 68,511 7.2
5.337 9.0 20,650 (0.6)
9,031 7.9 18,779 12.5
34.559 g 103.950 6.6
- - 5,429 (15.7)
34,989 79 115,379 5.0

* GD/X, providing simple preparation of hard-to-filter
samples, achieved 18% sales growth

+ Purasil, a high purity silica gel for flash chromatography,
was successfully launched mid year.

The unigue features of these new products offer our
customers user-friendly and cest-reducing sclutions
in a wide range of applications, from QG testing in
an ervironmentaily friendly process which extracts
ethanol from comn to preparation of HPLC samples
in organic synthesis.

About half the Group’s sales in the LabSciences sector
are through specialist laboratory distributors. Recent
changss in this distribution channe!, while creating some
short term uncertainty in the market, provide the Group
with an opportunity for improved longer term growth.

MedTech

MedTech comprises filtration components supplied cn
an OEM basis to manufacturers of medical devices and
clinical diagnostics tests.

Underlying sales were disappointingly down 4% at
constant exchange rates, due to a shortfall in sales
of relatively low margin drug reconstitution products
resulting from a subcontract supply problem. This
shortfall was expected to be filled by increased sales
of membranes for clinical diagnostics. In the event,




Chairman’s statement continued

this did not come through in the second half of 2004
but we remain confident that this will happen in 2005,
as further applications continue to be found for the
Group’s unique portfolio.

In addition, Fusion 5, which enables five processes in
lateral flow diagnostic assays to be combined infe a
single process, was successfully iaunched during the
year and has already achieved sales to a number of
global diagnostics manufacturers.

BioScience

BioScience is the preparation of cellular samples prior
to analysis and storage for study of nucleic acids or
proteins. 1t comprises FTA, multiwell plates, column
based DNA separation, electrophoresis products,
protein microarrays, blotting and neo-natal paper.

Underiying sales were up 17% year on year at constant
exchange rales, with particularly strong second half growth.

Sales of FTA products, the unique technology for collection,
archiving and purification of DNA, were up 39% on the
prior year, The technology is now well established as the
worldwide standard in forensics applications. In addition,
we are now achieving sales to other sectors, including
entry into the food and agriculture marketplace and a
first application for epidemiological studies in the
pharmacogenomics sector.

Negotiaticns are progressing with potential partners

who will be licensed to market the FTA technclogy in
apglicational areas which are not directly accessible

through existing Whatman channels.

The margin on FTA sales continues to improve, resulting
frorm both manufacturing efficiency and customers’
evaluation of the effectiveness of the technology.

Sales of multiwell preducts were up 4% at constant
exchange rates, at last showing some signs of the
potential for specialised plates to OEM customaers,

Biometra

Sales from Biometra, which was pul intc voluntary
liquidation in mid 2003, fell during the period in line with
market conditions, but some significant progress was
achieved toward a resolution of the intellectual property
disputes. We continued to provide for the full net asset

value of this business pending resolution of these disputes.

Product Development

An extended R&D facility was commissioned at Sanford
in the first quarter of 2006 and the 3&S R&D team will
relocate during the second guarier, establishing an
excellent combined resource for membrane, FTA,
microarrays and engineering research and development.
Additionally, the S&S acquisition brings further expertise

B iOharans satamnent

in membrane engineering based at Dassel in Germany.
R&D expenditure for the combined group will constituta
arcund 2% of total revenue.

The Greup's FTA technology continues 1o be strengthened,
with three new US patents, for clone archiving, diagnostics
and DNA elution, and one European patent having been
granted in 2004, and a further US patent, for sample
visualisation, granted since the year end. Formats for
use In fully automated applications have been completed
and data collection for CE marking and for US 510k
FDA registration was alsc completed.

All three market segments continue to benefit from

exiensions of the Group's established technologies:

* in LabSciences, further developrment of the Mini-
UniPrep technology includes Minl-UniPrep amber,
for light sensitive samples, for exampie in vitamin
analysis, and Mini-UniPrep slit septa, for applications
requiring the use of very fine needies, for example
in HPLC autosamplers

+ EasyClone, launched on the market in December
2004, is a 384 well multiplate incorporating FTA
technology for high throughput manipulation and
archiving of bacterial clones, employed in
genomics projects

* Fusion 5, described in the Segmental Analysis above,
was launched in April 2004,

The acquisition of S&S orings to the Group a new protein
microarray technology, which although still in its infancy
has exciting potential for high throughput protecmics
applications, a new market area for Whatman.

Board and Staff

The search for a new CEO is now well underway and
we hope to be in a position to make an announcement
in the near future. Pending the appointment of a new
CEQ, | am personally overseeing the integration and
rastructuring of 5&S while also continuing to direct the
overall renaissance of the Group. Additionally, Finance,
Operations and Administration are reporting tc me until
the new CEQ is appointed.

Dr Hinrich Kehler {previously Chairman of the Advisory
Board of S&5) joined the Board as a non-executive
director on 1 January 2005 and brings extensive
business experience in addition to his knowledge

of the 5&S operations.

Torm McNally, who joined the Board in a nen-executive
capacity in 2003 foilowing an outstanding career with
Abbott Laboratories, has taken on executive responsibility
for the R&D, Business Development and Sales functions,
pending the appointment of a new CEQ.

A Scientific Advisory Board has been established
and the Group is very fortunate to have appointed




Dr Reger Ford, Professor of Innovation and Technology
Strategy at the University of Salford, and Dr Geoff
Mogaridge, Senior Lecturer in Chemical Engineering
at the University of Cambridge, to the Advisory Board.

| am very pleased o welcome the S83 employees
to Whatman and } am sure they will add considerably
to the strength of the Group’s human resources.

| would again like 1o record my thanks to all cur staff for
their continuing commitment to the business through
ancther year of transformation.

Qutlook

The achigvement of an acceleration of top fine growiti

in Q1 has been hampered by the lack of sales leadership
following the departure of cur CEC and two regional
sales managers in Q4 2004, This year got off to a slow
start which continued through January and February.

The Business Development and Sales reins were picked
up by Tom McNally in January, and March saw a pick up
in sales and crders. Cverall, (1 2005 was behind our
own expectations, but we believe that Q2 will see us
back on track.

In our search for a new CEO we have a good shortlist of
candidates from which we hope to make an appointment
in the near future. In addition, the full complement of
regional sales managers is now in place and this should
allow us to regain sales growth momentum.

Meanwhile, the integration pilans and product
rationalisation annouriced at the time of the acquisition
of 3&S are coming through on schedule and we are on
track to defiver the earnings accretion targets announced
at that time.

We still have some way to go on the restructuring of
the combined group and we shall be commencing a
manufacturing irmprovement programme at the beginning
of the summer which we expect to further enhance
operating margins.

Overall, we continue to make gocd progress and
| amn confident that there is considerable further
upside to come.

v

Bob Thian
Chairman
8 April 2005
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Financial review

Turnover

Group turnover of £82.8 milion was £1.0 million (1%)
below 2003. Turnover excluding Biometra and Schieicher
and Schuell was £74.0 miilion, £2.0 million (3% below
2003, the reduced lavel of activity being principally in
LabSciences and MedTlech, £2.3 million (£%) and

£0.8 million (5%) below 2003 respectively. BioScience
turnover was £1.0 milien {10%} above 2003.

On a like for like basis, excluding acquisitions, disposals
and exchange effects, LabSciences sales were 7% up

Operating profit
After goodwill
amortisation
& exceptional items

continuing

2004 2003

£m £m

LabSciences 14.6 11.5

MedTech 0.5 (1.6)

BioScience (0.8 (2.8)
Schleicher & Schuell {12.3) -
Total angoing 2.2 7.3
Biometra & Hemasure 0.7 6.1
Total 2.9 13.4

The improverment in the adjusted operating profit margin
for LabSciences from 32% to 35% of sales was due to
the increased sales volume and improvements in gross
profit margins resulting from a reduction in sales of lower
margin pleated encapsulated products.

MedTech made an adjusted operating profit margin of
5% comparad to a loss of 5% in the previous year as &
result of savings in sales and administrative overheads
and the loss of some lower margin business.

The adjusted operating loss of BioScisnce reduced from
24% to less than 1% of sales, largely due to improved
gearing as a resuit of the high sales growth and
improvements in FTA gross profit margins.

The Schleicher & Schuell business generated an operating
profit of £0.1 million before goodwill amortisation and
exceptional items for the one month since acquisition.

The adjusted operating profit of Biometra reduced to
£0.7 miflion from £0.9 million.

on the prior year, with membrane sales growing by
20% and encapsulated product sales growing by
10%; MedTech sales were 4% below last year largely
asg a result of a 9% deciine in sales of encapsulated
medical filters; BioScience sales were 17% above last
year, resulting from a growth of 39% in FTA sales.

Sales of Blometra in liquidation on a like for like basis
were 16% down on last year.

Befare goodwill
amortisation

& exceptional items Adjusted operating

continuing profit margin

2004 2003 2004 2003
£m £m % %
16.8 16.3 35 32
0.8 0.8 5 (5)
{0.1) {2.3) - 24)
01 - 4 -
17.6 13.2 24 17
0.7 0.9 11 12
18.3 14.1 22 17

Exceptional charges

Exceplional charges, including amortisation of goodwill,
of £16.4 milion includes £12.4 million for redundancies,
closure costs and stock write-downs in connection with
the integration of Schleicher & Schuell, £2.3 million
relating to increases in existing onerous lease provisions
and further redundancies and £1.1 milion to maintain

a full provision over the nst assets of Biometra.

interest

The net interest charge for the year increased by

£0.2 miliion to £0.4 milion as a result of an increase

in interest rates and the increase in debt 1o fund the
Schleicher & Schuell acquisition. Excluding goodwill
amortisation and exceptional charges, interast was
covered 43 times (88 times in 2003). Including goodwill
amortisation and exceptional items, interest cover was
4 times (13 times in 2003).

Profit/{loss} before tax

The pre-tax profit for the year of £1.4 million (2003:
£2.6 million) was after charging goodwili amortisation
and exceptional charges of £16.4 million. The profit
before tax, before goodwill amortisation and excseptional
charges was £17.8 miillion {2003: £13.9 million,.

Foagnon s 11



Financial review continued

Taxation Earnings per share

There is a tax charge of £1.9 million (228%) on the 2004 lLoss per share was 0.41p, down from a loss per share

profit of £1.4 million. Recenciliation to the standard UK of 1.49p in 2003. Earnings per share, before goodwili

rate of 30% is set out in the notes to the Accounts, amaortisation and exceptional charges, which reflects
the undeslying performance of the Group, was 10.45p,

The tax rate on underlying profits before goodwill and up from 7.52p in 2003.

exceptional iterms was 25% compared to 32% in 2003,

redlising the benefit from the Group's rationalisaticn and Dividend

internal refinancing. Tax of £3.4 million is recoverable It is proposed to pay a final dividend of 2.87p per share,

against profits in prior periods and advance payments, making a total dividend for the year of 4.61p per share,

primarily in the USA and the UK. In addition there is an increase of 7.5% over last year. The dividend is covered

a deferred tax asset of £7.5 million recoverable 2.3 times (1.7 times in 2003) by earnings from continuing

against future profits, offset by deferred tax liability operations before goodwil amortisation and excepticnal

of £2.8 milion. charges. Based on profit attributable to shareholders,

ihe dividend is not covered {2003: not covered),

2004 2003
Cash flow £m £m
Operating profit before goodwill amartisation and exceptional charges 18.3 14.1
Depreciation and other non-cagh items 2.7 53
Provisions utilised (6.4) {12.7)
Woarking capital movernent {1.3) 2.0
Operating cash flow 13.8 8.7
Net capital expenditure {4.6) (3.3)
Interest (0.9} 0.2}
Tax {0.4) 28
Free cash flow 7.4 2.4
Net acqguisitions {28.9) -
Sale of businesses - 4.0
Dividands pald 5.6) B
Shares issued 21 0.8
Movement in net borrowings {25.0) 2.1
There was a free cash inflow of £7.4 miliion in 2004, Net payments for acquisitions includes the total
after spending £6.4 million on provisions, comparad consideration of £40.9 milicn for S&S, offset by amounts
to £2.4 million in 2003. received in respect of excluded entities and other similar
adiustments of £4.9 million. Of this amount, £3.8 million
Working capital increased by £1.3 million in the year is deferred for payment until 30 November 2005. i
comprising increages in stock of £0.7 million, debtors includes transaction costs paid or accrued totafling
£0.3 million and a decrease in creditors of £0.3 million. £2.8 million, but excludes bank arrangement fees of
£0.6 million, Cash acquired with the business amounted
Net capital expenditure was up £1.3 million on 2003, to £1.1 million,
primarity as a result of the relocation of manufacturing
operations te Sanford and the relocation of the North Proceeds from the sale of businesses in 2003 comprise
American headguarters to Florham Park NJ. £3.6 million for the HemaSure business and £0.4 millicn

for the filter cartridge business.
Net tax paid reduced from £2.8 million in 2003 to
£0.4 million in 2004, primarily due to a tax refund of
£2.2 milicn being recelved in the US in respect of
prior year iosses.




International financial reporting standards

The Group’s plans to implement IFRS are on track
and will ensure that full compliance with the statutory
requirements wil be achieved.

Treasury

Treasury operates on & centralised basis as a cost
centre in line with policies set by the directors. Primary
objectives of the policies are to manage the effacts
associated with foreign exchange and interest rate
movements, to ensure the availability of a prudent level
of loan facilities on reasonable terms and 1o provide cash
management. Financial derivatives are used only

to reduce risk and speculation is not permitted.

The Group operates a finance company in Luxembourg
in order to improve the cost sffectiveness of the Group's
cash management. Cash management systems continue
o ke used with a number of banks to help reduce the
net interest charge.

The Group hedges its profits against short-term
exchange rate movements mainly by forward contracts
for pericds of up to twe years. Interest rate movements
are partially hedged by the use of interest rate swaps.
Foreign currency assets are partially hedged by matching
them 1o limited currency borrowings.

Curing the year the Group refinanced its barrowing
facilities replacing existing bilatera! facilities with a single
facitity syndicated with a small number of London banks.
This facility comprises a €95 milion amortising five yvear
term loan to finance the acquisition and integration of
Schileicher and Schuell and a five year revolving credit
facility. Further details of the borrowings are given in

the notes to the Accounts.
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Directors’ report
Including Summaries of Cperating Palicies

Results
The directors present their report on the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2004,

Details of profits and proposed dividend payments are
included in the Financial Review.

Principal activities and development of the business
The principal activities of the Group continue to be the
development, manufacture and marketing of filtration and
separations products which are used by laberatories for
industrial, healthcare and environmental applications, as
dascribed in mere detail in the Chairman’s Staterment.

On 30 November 2004, the Company acquired the entire
share capital of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH for a total
censideration of €58,8 millicn (£40.9 million), which was
financed in full by debt; further details are included it the
notes to the Accounts. Schleicher & Schuell's activities
are alsc in the development, manufacture and marketing
of filtration and separations producis.

The voluntary liquidation of Biometra Biomedizinische
Analytik GmbH (“Biometra”), which was announced
in July 2003, is centinuing.

Future developments

The Group will continue to focus on the strategic and
operational development of its businesses, including the
integration of the Schleicher & Schuell companies, as
described in detail in the Chairman's Statement.

Research and development
Expenditure on the development of new products in
2004 amounted to £1.9 million (2003: £2.2 million).

Directors
The names cf the directors are shown on page 2.

Mrian Bonrar was appointed a director on 28 January
2004 and was re-elected at the 2004 Annual
General Meeting.

Following the acquisition of Schigicher & Schuell in
November 2004 and the departure of Mr Howard Kelly
as Chisf Executive Officer on 25 November 2004,

Mr Beb Trian assumed additional responsibilities as
Chairman and Chief Executive, including overseeing the
integration and restructuring of Schleicher & Schuell and,
pending the appoiniment of a new Chief Executive, direct
responsiblity for Operations, Finance and Administration.

The Board has been furiher strengthened by the
appoeintments, with effect from 1 January 2005, of

M Tom MeNally as Vice Chairman and Dr Hinrich Weter
as a Non-executive Director.

Tom MciNally, who originally joined the Board as a
Non-executive Director in 2003, has taken executive

responsibility for the R&D, Business Develcpment and
Sales functions, pending the appointment of a new chief
executive, the search for which is progressing with the
assistance of an external search consultancy.

Dr Hinrich Kehler was previously Chairman of the Advisory
Board of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH, and brings extensive
husiness experience in addition to his knowledge of the
S&3 operations. He retires at the Annual Genera!l Meeting
but, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Dr Kehler
{through a majority shareholding in ConCap Beteiligungs
und Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH (*ConCap™) was a
shareholder of Schieicher & Schuell GmibH (S&S) until the
acquisition of S&S by Whatrman in November 2004. The
former shareholders of S&S have provided indemnities

to Whatman in relation to representations and warranties
contained in the sale and purchase agreement and
payment to them of part of the consideration for the
acquisiticn is subject to retention by Whatman through
a warranty period, In addition, Dr Kehler continues to be
a director and {through his shareholding in ConCap) has
beneficial shareholdings in a number of companies which
were previously subsidiaries of S&3 but excluded from
the acquisition of S&S by Whatman. These companies
are parties to certain confractual agreements with
Whatman companies by which, for a transition period,
they supply products and services to Whatman and
receive services from Whatman. Accordingly, Or Kehler
does not take part in any Whatman discussion or voting

in relation to any of the above-mentioned contracts.

At no time during the year has any other director had
any material interest in a contract with the Company, being
a contract of significance in relation to the Company’s
business (other than agreements for the payment of
directors’ fees to service companies, details of which
are included in the Remunaration Report).

Mr Bob Thian, whe was appointed a director on 7 October
2002, and Dr Simon May, who was appointed a director
on 30 June 1994, retire at the Annual General Meeting

but, being eligible, each offers himself for re-election.

The beneficial interests of directers in the shares of the
Company and details of service contracts are shown in
the Remuneration Report,

Litigation

On 12 March 2004, Biometra's appeal to the European
Patent Office in opposition to one of the patents which
have been the subject of infringement actions against
Biometra was successful and the offending patent was
revcked by the EFO.

Some significant progress has been achieved toward
a resolution of the other intellectual property disputes
refating to Biometra.



Directors’ report continued

Substantial shareholdings

The Company has been advised within the provisions of sections 198 to 208 of the Companias Act 1885 of the

following substantial shareholdings as at 8 April 2005:

Schroder Investment Management Ltd

J O Hambro Capital Management Limited

North Atiantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple
Oryx International Growth Fund Limited

Hermes Pensions Management Lid

Legal and General Investment Management Ltd
Prudential plc

Aegon Asset Management UK

Barclays plc

Shares Y% of issued

share capital

13,872,008 10.75
6,535,000 5.07
6,473,722 5.01
5,117,089 3.97
5102,775 3.95
4,782,638 3.71
3,821,804 3.04

The directors are not aware of any other interest of 3% or more in the shares of the Company which is reguired

to be disclosed.

issue of shares

Duwring the vear the Company issued 2,224,986 shares
for a total consideration of £2.1 miliion to directors and
employees exercising share options under the Company’s
Share Option Schemes.

Donations
During 2004 no donations were made to charities or
political parties.

Authoerities relating to share capital

At the last Annual Ganeral Meeting of the Company the
directors were given authority, within defined limits, to allot
shares pursuant to sections 83 and 95 of the Companies
Act 1985 ctherwise than to existing shareholders in
proportion to their existing noldings. Renewal of this
authority will be sought from shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

At the last Annual General Meeting the Company was given
authority, within defined limits, to purchase its own shares,
Although ne such purchases have been made and there are
no immediate plans to do so, renewal of this authority will
be sought from sharehoiders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting,

Qperating policies
The following are summaries of the Group's policies
on a number of important operational issues.

Hurnan resources

The Group promates to its employees the need for the
highest standards of integrity and ethics in business
dealings, including compliance with all relevant legislation
and codes of practice.

Employess are regarded as the key to being able to translate
pelicies and strategies into commercial success. The Group
is therefore committed to providing a working emvironment in
which this process can flourish.
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Procedures have been established to ensure that all
emplayees have the opportunity to understand and
appreciate the Group’s cbjectives, policies and strategies,
and to ensure that all employees and applicants for
employment recelve fair treatment and equal opportunity
without prejudice against age, disabflity or ethnic origin.
Employees who become disabled are retrained
wherever possible.

The Group aims to create opportunity for participation
and invclvement, to encourage the identification and
development of gkills and to promote the use of initiative
and stimulate personal advancement. Reward systems
recognise success at both the corporate and individual level,

Health and safety

The Group safeguards occupational health and hygiene by
providing a safe working environment and compiying with
all relevant statutory obligations and codes of practice.

Working metheds and procedures are properly
documented and appropriate risk assessment
programmes conducted, Spacific responsibiities are
assigned to designated employees and appropriate
training provided for all employees.

Social Responsibility

The Group provides active support to the communities in
which it operates, with particular involvement with schools
and further education coileges, including provision of
work experience opportunities, encouragement of Group
employess to paricipate in gaovernorships, and sponsaorahip
of local everts.

Environment

The Group is sensitive to the needs of the environment,
nat anly in terms of compliance with relevant statutory
regulations and codes of practice, but more generally in
terms of the need to be efficient in the use of raw materials,
energy and water and in reduging the production of waste.




Procedures have been established for the regular monitoring
and assessment of environmental impact, and targets set for
improvements in performance. The Operations Director has
overall responsibility for environmental management
including the identification and assessment of significant
risks and compliance with all statutory obligations, and
provides appropriate repoerts to the Group Beard.

Quality

The Group is committed to maintaining its long-established
reputation as a developer, manufacturer and supplier of
quality goods and services. Al employees are encouraged
to regard the continuous improverent of quality standards
as a personal cbiective and performance is monitored
against defined quality targets.

Suppliers

The Group has incorporated the CBI's Prompt Payrment
Code into the Group's operating policy relating to the
payment of suppliers. The Company had no trade creditors
as at 31 December 2004. The Group’s trade creditors as
at 31 Decemnber 2004 represented 35 days of average
purchases over the financial year (2003: 3C days).

Whatman Total Shareholder Returns

The graphs below show the total sharehoider return on

a holding of Whatman plc Ordinary shares compared to
that of the Financial Times All Share and FTSE techMARK
indices over the perods 1 January 2000 to 31 December
2004 and 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004. (The
directors consider these indices 1o be the most appropriate
as the Company is a constituent of the indices.)

Aninvestment in Whatman shares on 1 January 2000
would have produced a positive return of 4% at

31 December 2004 compared to a negative return of
14% in the FTSE All Share index and a negative return
of 57% in the FTSE techMARK Index over that pericd.

An investmeant in Whatman shares on 1 January 2004
would have produced a positive return of 52% at

31 December 2004 compared to a positive return of
13% in the FTSE All Share index and a positive return
of 12% in the FTSE techMARK Index over that period.

Total shareholder return: 1 January 2000 — 31 December 2004
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Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated their willingness to continue in office, and a
resolution 1o reappeint them will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
John Simmonds
Company Secretary
8 April 2005
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Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2004

This Report is unaudited except for those parts
which are indicated otherwise.

Policy for Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration policy of the Group, inchding

the policy for executive dirsctors, is determined by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board, the
membershio of which comprises sciely non-executive
Board members.

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors
is determined by the Board.

In determining remuneration policy, the cbjectives of
the Committee are, in relation to both the current and
subsequent years, to provide competitive remuneration
arrangements for executive directors and senfor
executives, which are commensurate with those of
other companies of a similar nature, size and standing,
which reflect the Group's business and financial
objectives, and reward individuals' personal
contributions to the Group's overall performance.

Remuneration arrangernents are addressed within
the context of the Group's current performance, its
progress towards strategic objectives and individual
executives’ personal performance. Arrangements are
tailored to reflect good practice within the particular
countries In which executives are based, and are
regularly reviewed.

In developing remuneration arrangements, the
Remuneration Committee (and, in regard to
non-executive diractors, the Board) refers to external
market survey data and has received advice from
Linklaters and Watson Wyatt LLP. In developing the
particular remuneration arrangements for the Chairman,
the Committee alsc consulted a number of the Group's
major shareholders.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of the Chairman

Until 25 November 2004, Mr Thian served as
Chairman, Subseaguently he has served as Chairman
and Chief Executive pending the appointment of a
new chief executive.

His remuneration comprises salary and fees, and

he received a grant of share options under the terms
of the Whatman ple Incentive Option Scheme for the
Chairman, which was approved by sharehclders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 November

2004. Details are contained in the notes to this Report,

He does not participate in any of the Company’s
insurance, retirement, or other benefit schemes.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors
Non-executive directors received remuneration
comprising fees and payments for consultancy activities
as detailed in the notes to this Remuneration Report.

Non-executive directors are encouraged to receive part

of their fees in the form of ordinary shares in the Company,
which are purchased quarterly by the Company at the

full market price, and Dr Jovan, Dr Kehler, Dr May and

Mr McNally have all elected to do so.

Through 2004, Mr McMally served as a non-executive
director and received remuneration comprising fees
and payments for consultancy activities, details of which
are contained in the notes to this Remuneration Report.
Following his appointment as Vice Chairman on

1 January 2005, Mr MciNally will participate in the
Whatman plc Share Award Plan for the Vice Chairman,
details of which are also contained in the notes to this
Remuneration Report.

Remuneration of Executive Directors

In addition to base salaries, which are determined by
the Remuneration Committee in relation to specific job
responsibiiities and individual capabilities, executive
directors participate in the Whatman Group Incentive
Scheme, with a maximum bonus potential of 100% of
base salary subject to achievernent of defined Group,
operational and individual objectives, including targets
relating to net sales, gross margin and operating
expenses, and quantitative measures of achievement
of strategic objectives. (Exceptionally in the first year
after appointment the Remuneration Commitiee may
in appropriate ¢rcumstances award a guaranteed
element of bonus.)

Executive Directors also recsive a cash allowancs

in lieu of a company car, participate in the Whatman
1898 Executive Share Option Scheme, in the Whatman
Defined Contribution Pensicn Scheme and in the
Group's health, sickness and life insurance schemes,

Details of the elements of Executive Directors’
remuneration are contained in the notes to this
Remuneration Report.

Executive directors are also eligible after an initial
period of service to participate in the Group's Save
As You Earn Scheme.

All share incentive arrangements incorporate performance
requirements, detaiis of which are included in the notes to

this Remuneration Report.

There are no cther current long-term incentive schemes.




Service contracts

Executive cirectors {not including Mr McNally following
his appointment 1o an executive role) have contracts
which are terminable by the Company or by the
executive on six menths' notice.

The Chairman and the non-sxecutive directors do not
have service agreements. It is the Company’s policy
that non-executive directors serve for renewable three
year periods.

None of the directors to he proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a
service contract.

Membership of the Remuneration Committee
During 2004 membership of the Committee comprised
Mr McNally (Chairman), Dr Jovan {retired from the
Committee on 29 January 2004) and Or May. Following
Mr MeNally's appointment as Vice Chaiman on 1 January
2005 he stepped down from the Remuneration
Committee, and | was appointed Chairman of the

ith Dr May continuing as a member.

N

'By‘order of the Board

Hinrich Kehler

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
8 April 2005

1



Remuneration Report continued

Notes
(Except for note {a), these notes to the Remuneration Report comprise audited information.)

a | The composition of each director's remuneration (excluding share-based incentives) is targeted to be:

Non-performance refated Performance-related
Yo %
J N Bonnar 55 45
P Greenhalgh 55 45
M Jovan 100 -
H Kehier 100 -
S P W May 100 -
T M MoNally 100 -
R P Thian 100 -
b | Directors’ monetary remuneration in 2004
2004 2003
Monetary value Compensation
Salary/fees of benefits in kind Bonus for Loss of Cffice Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
J N Bonnar
{appointed 28 January 2004} 130 2 - - 138 -
P Greenhalgh 130 6 - - 136 98
M Jovan 47 - - - 47 30
H Kehler
(appointed 1 January 2005} - - - - - -
HV Kelly
{left 25 Novermber 2004) 378 77 - 163 618 368
S P W May 63 - - - 63 48
T M McNally 76 - - - 76 37
R P Thian 185 - - - 185 265
Totals 1,009 N - 163 1,263 847
: fofa) eirnelioe s’ monetary remunerstion in 2003, molutieg et paad 1 threciors it il ~ot seree in 2004 was TAA26 000 The sniary ped 1o

M Greenialgh i 2053 was for the geriod “rom 2 s agpointm

or 4 August 2003,

1 Mr Kelly was the highest paid director in 2004, 5 The compensation paid to Mr Kelly was in accordance
with the terms of a binding compromise agreement

2 Benefits in kind include the provision of a car between Mr Kelly and the Company.
allowance, pension, medical and life insurances
and, in respect of Mr Kelly, reimbursement of 6 No payments were made fo former directors during
relecation costs {pension contributions are 2004 other than normal pension payments to the
stated in section {f) below). former directors or their surviving spouses.

3 Of the remuneration of Mr Thian, £120,000 was 7 Mo expense allowances chargeable o UK tax have
paid to Renex Ltd. in respect of executive services. been paid.

4 The amounts of salary/fees paid to non-executive
directors were inclusive of the following payments
for consultancy work: M Jovan £17,000; SP W
May £23,000; T M McNally £46,000.

2007 it Voo




¢ | Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company
The beneficial interests of directors and their families in the Ordinary 1p shares of the Company were:

J N Bonnar
P Greenhalgh
M Jovan

H Kehler

H WV Kelly

S P W May
T ™M McNally
R P Thian

A1 date of i2avirg

There have been the following changes in the

interests of the directors between 1 January and

8 April 2005:

1 Dr Jovan has acguired an additional 1,550 shares
in part payment of director’s fees.

2 Dr Kehler has acquired 775 shares in part
nayment of director's fees,

3 Or May has acquired an additional 827 shares in
part payment of director’s fees.

4 Mr McNally has acquired an additional 620 shares
in part payment of director’s fees.

The market price of the shares at 31 December
2004 was 232p (31st December 2003 - 155.5p).
The highest price during 2004 was 269p and the
lowest price 155.5p.

Information relating to total shareholder returns is
included in the directors’ report.

d 1 Save As You Earn Scheme

e

At 31 December 2004, Mr Greenhalgh held 5,938
options at an exercise price of 158.6p in the
Whatman plc Savings Related Share Option Schame
which matures in December 2007,

Share-based Incentive Schemes

il Whatman ple Incentive Cption Scheme for

thé Chairman

Mr Thian pariicipates in the Whatman plc Incentive
Option Scheme for the Chairman, which was
approved by shareholders at the Exiraordinary
General Meeting held on 30 November 2004.

Under this Schierme Mr Thian received a single grant
of 1,000,000 options on 30 Novembper 2004, which
are exercisable at any time subject to the following
performance reguirements. 500,000 of these options
will be exercisable if there is an increase in the
Crdinary Share price of 15% over the exercise brice,
the increase in price 1o be anaverage measured over
80 consecutive trading days.The remaining 500,000
options will be exercisable if there is an increase in

As al 31 December As at 31 December

2004 2003
24,175 14,739
5,032 -
6,480 2,704
1,685,220 842,610

the Ordinary Share price of 30% over the exercise
price, the increase o be an average measured over
60 consecutive trading days. Shares acquired by the
exercise of these options cannot normally be saieable
for as long as Mr Thian continues 1o e a director of
the Company.

i I Whatman plc Share Award Plan for the

Vice Chairman

Mr McNally participates in the Whatman plc

Share Award Flan for the Vice Chairman, which
was established in connection with Mr McNally'’s
assumption of executive responsibilities with effect
from 1 January 2005 after the Chief Executive left
the Company.

Under this Scheme Mr McNally was granted
250,000 restricted shares on 1 January 2005.
125,000 of these shares will vest if there is an
increase in the Ordinary Share price of 15% over the
price at 1 January 2005, increase in price to be an
average measured over 60 consecutive trading days,
but subject to a minimum holding pericd of 18
manths from date of grant. The remaining 125,000
restricted shares will vest if thers is an increase in
the Crdinary Share price of 30% over the price at
1 January 2005, the increase to be an average
measured over 80 consecutive trading days, but
subject to a minimum holding period of 36 months
fromn date of grant.

il - Whatrman 1998 Executive Share Option Scheme
Executive Directors participate in the Whatman
1998 Executive Sharg Option Scherne, which was
approved by shareholders in 1998, This comprises
an annual grant of up to 125,000 cpticns, the actual
number ¢ be granted to each particicant in each
year being determined according to an assessment
of corporate and individual performance.

One third of each grant of opticns becomes
axercisable three years afier the date of grant, a
further third becomes exercisable four years after




Remuneration Report continued

the date of grant, and the final third becomes
exercisable five years after the date of grant, in
avery case subject to the average of the middle
market quotations for Whatman Ordinary Shares
over any petiad of 20 consacutive trading days baing
at least 16% p.a. compound above the average
price over the five frading days prior o grant.

v | Whatman pic Long Term Incentive

Option Scherne

In January 2003, Mr Thian was granted 1,685,220
options under this Scheme. Of these options.
842,610 became exercisable when the Ordinary
Share price was higher than £1.00 over any period
of 20 consecutive days. The remaining 842,610
options became exercisable when the Ordinary
Share price was higher than £1.30 over any pericd
of 20 consecutive days.

v | Whatman pic Incentive Cption Scheme for the
Chief Executive

Mr Kelly participated in the Whatrnan plc Incentive
Option Scheme for the Chief Executive.

Under this Scheme, Mr Kelly received an initial
grant of 500,000 options on joining the Compary
on 25 August 2003 and was eligible to receive
further grants of up to 300,000 opticns per vear,
the actual number to be granted in each year
being determined according to an assessment

of corporate and individual performance.

On W Kelly's leaving the Company, the
Remuneration Committee determined that 166,666
options would vest immediately, a further 166,666
options will become exercisable hetween August
2005 and February 2006 and the remaining options
previously granted lapsed at the date of leaving.

The number of options held by directars under the share baged incentive schemes described abave were:

Whatman ple Incentive Option Scherme for the Chairman

At1.1.04 Grranted Lapsed  Exercised
during year  during year during year

R P Thian 1,000,000

1,000,000 251.33p

AT 311204 Exergise  Market Price at  Date from  Expiry date

Price date of which
exercise exercisable

30.11.14

‘These options become exercisable at any time in tranches upon achieverment of the performance requirements
described in sub-paragraph | [page 21}, but shares acguired by the exercise of these options cannot normally be
saleable for as long as Mr Thian continues to be a director of the Company.

Whatrman 1998 Executive Share Ogption Scheme

At1.1.04 Granted Lapsed Exercised
during year during year during year

J N Bonnar 100,000

125,000
P Greenhalgh 25,000

125,000

At 31.12.04 Exercise Market Price at Date from Expiry date

Price date of whigh

exercise exercisable
100,000 148.3p 22100138
125,000 195.67p - 7 11.05.14
25000 148.3p - ¢ 221013
125,000 195.67p - 711,050,714

" One third become exercisable from 22 Octeber 2006, one third from 22 Cctober 2007; one third from

22 (October 2008.

" One third become exercisable from 11 May 2007, one third from 11 May 2008; one third from 11 May 2008

Whatman plc Long Term Incentive Cption Scheme

At 1.1.04 Granted Lapsed Exercised
during year during year during year

R P Thian

Option 2 842,610 - - 842610

At 31.12.04 Exercise Market Prica at Date fromm  Expity date

Price date of which
exercise exercisabile

85.33p 158p

The gain ariging fram this exercige, caleulatad by referaence to the middle market auoted price at the relevant date,

was £620,751,




Whatman plc Incentive Option Scheme for the Chief Executive

At1.1.04 Granted

during year

Lapsed

HV Kelly 500.000 166,668

- 300,000 300,000

See details in sub-paragraph v (page 22).

f

Directors’ pensions
Executive Directors participate in the Whatm
Defined Contribution Pension Schame. The

during year

At 31.12.04 Exercise

Price

Exercised
during year

- 333332

116.4p

Market Price at

Date from  Expiry date
which
exercisable

date of
exercise

an tr Kelly). Participants contribute a minimum of

4.0% of base salary.

Company makes a contribuiion of 6.0% of base

salary in respect of each participant (In 2004,
£7,000 in respect of Mr Bonnar, £9,000 in respect

of Mr Greenhalgh and £15,000 in respact of

g | Directors’ Service Contracts

Date of Contract
2 June 2003

fAanpainted & diastor
o 79 January 20040

19 May 2003

J N Bonnar

P Greenhalgh

M Jovan 28 March 2003
H Kehler 1 January 2005
{un aROSiAtine:nt;

S P W May 11 August 1984
amended 7 Qctober 2002

T M McNally 28 March 2003
armended 1 Januawy 2005

R P Thian 3 October 2002

amended 29 anvary 2003,
23 July 2003 and 25 Febraary 2005

“Tne contracts for nor executave drectors de nolb neluds any prov S.on for compengation in the event of e e

suiect o rotationa retirement and re-election.

Notice Period
& months by Company,
& mornths by Director, at any tme

6 months by Company,

6 months by Diractor, at any time

Not applicale”

Not applicable”

Not applicable’

Not applicable”

Not applicable®

The Chairman and the non-executive directors
are not eligible for any pension entiterments.

Contractual Termination Provisions
At the Company's discretion.
payment in fieu of notice

Al the Company’s discretion,
payment in tieu of notica

Subject to rotational retirement
and re-election

Subject to rotational retirement
and re-election

Subject to rotational retirement
and re-election

Subiject to ratational retirement
and re-election

Subject to rotational retirement
and re-election

ation, the teme of appotment aing






Corporate Governance

Board of directors

The details of individual directors who served during the
year and changes in board membarship are set out in
the Introductery Section of the Annual Report and in
the Directors’ Report.

Non-exgcutive directors are usually appointed for periods
of three years, subject to Companies Act provisions.
Additionalty, in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Assoclation, all dirgctors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years.

All new directors receive full, formal and tallored induction
on joining the Beard, including formal documents relating
to the management and operaticn of the Company,
recent and current strategic and operational plans and
reports, and statutory and management accounts of the
Group and its subsidiaries; they also meet the Group’s
major shareholders and visit the Group's operating sites,
meeting with execulives, managers and siaff.

Formal Board meetings are held at least eight times a
year. Additicnal meetings are arranged as necesgsary 1o
censider urgent busingss. Information provided to the
Board includes monthly Group Cperating Reports and
Management Accounts, reports on treasury and foreign
exchange management, and specific business plans
and reports. The Board also meets for in-depth reviews

of strategy and discussions of particular business

issues and risks, including annual reviews cf business
development plans. The Board has a formal schedule

of matters reserved for its approval; these matiers
include acquisition ang disposal of businesses, issue of
shares, significant contractual commitments, effectiveness
of risk management review processes and major

capital expenditure.

Committees of the Board include an Audit Committes,

a Nomination Committee and a Remuneration
Committee, all of which function within formal terms

of reference. Membership of the Committess is set
out in the Introductory Section of the Annual Report.
The Audit Committee meets at least three times annually,
and its activities are outlined later in this Carporate
Governance Statement. The Remungration Committes
meets as required to fulfil its responsibilities, which are
outlined in the Remuneration Report.

The Nomination Committee mests as required to
consider appointments to the Board and 1o the position
of Company Secretary, both in response to vacancies
arising and within the overall context of the balance of
the Board; the Committes appoints appropriate Search
Consultants to assist in the recruitment of new

board memibers,

Board Members' attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings during the year was:

Total number of meetings

Meetings attended

J N Bonnar

P Greenhalgh

M Jovan

H v Kelly

S P W May

T M McNally

R P Thian

" In additor to thise seven meetngs. ‘unhiar mestings wers heid in co

T Maium possble 10 ito date of ceasing boarg memas
“Madmum possibie 1 e date of seasnig committos Marrs

Formal evaluation of the performance of the Board
and Board Committees, including their effectiveness
and arrangements for and content of mestings, was
conducted after the end of the year, and followead
reviews of the schedule of matters reserved for the
Board's approval and of the terms of reference of the
Beard Committees. The senior independent director
met with the other non-executive directors, without the
Chairman being present, to appraise the Chairman's
performance, and that appraisal has been discussed
with the Chairman.

In accordance with the provisions of the Combined
Code, the directors are aware that independent legal

E

Board Audiit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

12 4 4 A
12 NiA M iR
12 N NA M,
10 - 4 1
10 N-A NI A
12 4 4 7
12 4 4 7
12 NA 4 N,

it fre apnroval o rtuting exertises of share options.

advice is available to them, at the expense of the
Company, in connection with matters relating to the
business of the Company.

Relations with sharehclders

The formal proceedings of the Annual General Meeting
include individual resolutions on separate issugs, including
resolutions relating to adoption of the Annua) Report and
Accounts and {o adoption of the Remuneration Report. All
Board members usually attend the Annual General Meeting
and are available ta respand to shiareholders’ questions.
As a further means of communication with all sharshclders,
the Annual Report and Accounts containg information on
the Group's business activities, in addition to the statutorily



Corporate Governance continued

required information. The Company's web site,
www.whatman.com, alse provides information about
the Group, including a section on investor relations.

While carefully recognising statutory constraints congerning
disclosure of information, the Group endeaveours to ensure
that members of the Board develop an understanding of
the views of major shareholders by providing cpportunities
for satisfactory dialogue. These include presentations directly
related to the publication of preliminary and interim
statements, discussions of the Group's strategies and
business plans end pericdic visits to the Group's
operational facilities,

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board of directers has uitimate responsibility for
preparation of the Group's Annual Report and Accounts.
The Beard is required by the Companies Act 1985 to
prepare for each financial year financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss for the financial year.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates. All accounting
standards which they consider to be applicable have
been followed.

The directors have responsibility for ensuring that the
Company and the Group keep actounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial poesition of
the Company and the Group and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985,

The directors have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Going concern basis

In view of the Group's satisfactory financial pesition, the
directors confirm that they have reascnable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adecuate resources
o continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
have therefore used the going congern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

internal control

The Board of directors has overall responsioliity for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The role of management is to implement
the Board'’s policies. The system of internal contral is
an ongoing process designed o identify, evaluate and
manage the significant rigks facing the business. The
system has been in place throughout the year and up t¢

v LR T

the date ot approval of the Annual Report and Accounts,
and is reviewed annually by the Board. This review
comprises appropriate consideration and discussion of
business and financial reports, strategic plans, capital
expenditure projects, product development projects, tax
and freasury issues, risk management and legal issues.
The internal control system is designed 1o manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to meet business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
ahsolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group's systermn of internal controls is communicated
through policy and procedure manuals. The Group uses
the corporate intranet as a communication channel to
ensure that all employees have easy access (o

the procedures.

internal financial control

Cn behalf of the Beard, the Audit Committee, the
membership of which comprises solely of non-executive
Board members, examines the effectiveness of the
system of internal financial control.

Internal financial controfs and procedures include:

* a clearly defined organisation structure and
the appropriate delegation of authorities to
operational rmanagerment

+ a budgeting system including the preparation of an
annual budget, approved by the directors, and a
re-forecasting prccess

¢ the monthly reporting and review of financial results
compared 10 budost end the actual results for the
previous year

* clearly defined guidelines for capital expenditure,
including annual budgets, detailed approval procedures,
and post-complstion appraisals

» for aft acquisitions, detalled due diigence procedures

¢ accounting and financial reporting policies to ensure
the consistency, integrity and accuracy of the Group’s
accounting records

= specific treasury policies and chiectives, with the
reperting 1o the Board of all significant transactions
and exposures.

The Audit Committee:

» reviews the draft annual financia statements and cther
formal announcements, with particular reference to
compliance with accounting standards, company law
and FSA requirements, before they are presented to
the Board

reviews the external and internal audit work plans

= considers reports from management, internal and
external audit on the system of internal control and
any material control weaknesses

discusses with management the actions taken on
problem areas identified by Board members or in

the internal or external audit reporis

* monitors the objectivity, effectiveness and independence




of the exdernal auditor, including the nature and extent
of non-audit services provided: additionally, the
external auditors have processes in place to ensure
that their independence is maintained, Including
safeguards, to ensure that where they do provide
non-audit services, their independence is not
threatened; they have confirmed to the Audit
Committee that in their opinicn they are independent

* reviews arrangements by which staff of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concern about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other
matters and by which the Company investigates such
matters and implemeants appropriate actions.

Compliance with the internal financial control systam
is maintained by peer raview by other members of
the Greup’s finance management organisation and by
the pericdic appointment of consultants t© conduct
specific internal audit activities and assist in the
implementation of appropriate action plans.

Operational and compliance contrels

The Group's cperating policies are outlined in the Directors’

Report. Additional procedures and controls include:

= human resources: The Group has local policy manuals
and has maintained IIP (Investor in People} status

» heglth, safety and environment: Risk management is
addressed by training, maintenance programmes and
the use of monitoring and control devices. The Groun
also meets the standards of the IPC {Integrated
Pollution Control body) and PABIAC [Paper and Board
Industry Advisory Committee)

* manufacturing, quality and research and devslopment:
All operations are required to be performed to
standards that meet IS0 $000. These procedures are
subject to independent audit

» information technology systems: The Group has
internal procedures relating to acgess controls,
back-up procedures and disaster recovery plans.

Risk management

The following have been identified as the Group’s
key risk areas:

* human resources

« health, safety and environment

* information technology

= financial

s commercial

* business operations

* science and technology

* regulatory

« facilities

« intellectual property and corporate administration

Part of the Board's decision-making procedure is the
consideration of the risks involved in particular proposals
and acticns, and the control processes in place to manage
those risks within acceptable limits. For example, in 2004

the Board introduced a process of regular reporting

to the Board of key business metrics, introduced a new
procedure for Group-wide management of cusiormer
complaints, and raviewed the Group's policies and
precedures for nedging of foreign exchange exposures,
disaster recovery at the major operational sites and the
rmanagement of relationships with strategic suppliers.

Combined code compliance

During the year, in addition to their director’s fees,

each of the non-executive directors received remuneration
for consultancy projects carried out for the Company,
the amounts of which are detailed in the Remuneration
Report. However these projects were of a discrete
nature and the Board is conficdent that the amounts

of remuneraticn involved did not compromise the
independence of any of the non-executive directors.
Although Dr May has been a Board member for more
than nine years since his first glection, during that time
the entire remaining Board membership has changed,
as has the entire level of management that reperts to
the Board, except for the Company Secretary, as well
as much of the Group's senior management below those
levels. This means that Dr May's position with respect to
the rest of the Board, all reports tc the Board, and much
of the Group's senior management, cortinues to be
independent in the ways envisaged by the Combined
Code. The Board therefore considers that all of the non-
executive directors were independent during 2004, The
Board also considers that Dr Kehler, who was appointed
on 1 January 2005, is independent notwithstanding his
interest in the contracts described in the Directors’
Report, as these contracts do not impinge on his hormal
responsibilities as a non-executive director.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2004 the
Company has been in compliance with the Code
provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code
except that:

i | following the departure of the Chief Executive at the
end of November 2004, Mr Thian's role became that of
Chairman and Chief Executive, pending the apoointment
of a new chiet executive

i | appraisals of the Board and Board Commitiees

were carried out after the end of the year

iii } although the members of the Committee have
extensive relevant business experience, as briefly
described in the Introductary Section 1o the Annual
Report, and consequently a general awareness of finance
issues, they do not have spedialist financial experience.

Board and Commiittee structures and succession issues

will be revisited during 2005,

By arder of the Board | 5
John Simmoends
Company Secretary
8 April 2005
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Auditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Whatman plc

We have audited the financial staterents which comprise
the Group profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the
Group cash fiow statement, the Group statement of total
recognised gaing and losses, the Group note of historical
cost profits and losses, and the related notes. We have
also audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of
Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 contained in

the directors’ remuneration report (“the auditable part”).

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards
are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities.
The directors are also responsible for preparing the
directors” remuneration report.

Cur responsibiity is to audit the financial statements anc
the auditable part of the dlirectors’ remuneration report in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. This repart, including the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose.
We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or 1o any other person
1o whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our pricr consent
in writing.

We report 10 you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements and the auditable part of the
directors’ remuneration report have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.
We also report {o you if, in Qur opinion, the directors’
repert is not consistent with the financial statements,

if the Company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have nct received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions is

not discicsed.

We read the other information contained in the annual
report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstaternenits or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information comprises only the chairman’s statement, the
financial review, the directors’ report, the unaudited part
of the directors’ remuneration report and the corporate
governance statement.

We revisw whether the corporate governance statement
reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine
provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Autherity, and we report if it does not. We are not required

to consider whether the beoard’s statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
procedures or its risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements and the auditable part of the directors’
remuneration report. It aiso includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
1o the Company's circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain ail
the infarmation and explanations which wa consigerad
recassary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
and the auditable part of the directors’ remuneration
report are free from malerial misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the
presentation of information in the finandial staternents,

In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
31 December 2004 and of the loss and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended;

» the financial statements have been properly prepared
in a¢cordance with the Companies Act 14985; and

* those parts of the directors’ remuneration report
required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A 10 the Companies
Act 1985 have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985.

@Wf/vw : oLl

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and
Registered Auditors

London

8 April 2005
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Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 December 2004

Tumover
Cost of sales

Gross profit/lioss)

Distribution costs

Research and development
Amortisation of goodwill
Other administrative costs
Total administrative costs

Operaling profit/{loss)
Continuing cperations
Discontinued operations

Operating profit/loss)

L0ss on business closure — continuing operations

Loss on business disposal — continuing operations

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before interest

Net interest payable
Profittioss) on ordinary activities before tax

Tax on profit/ioss) on ordinary activities
Profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders
Dividends

Retained loss for the year

Basic earnings/{ioss} per share
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Note

[RS I RS R AT ]

[SN]

25

12
12

Betore
googwill

Before
goodwill

amortisation amortisation
& exceptional & exceptional

items items
Continuing  Acquisitions
£'000 £'000
80,390 2,431
{41,463} (1,249
38,927 1,182
(11,411) (803}
(1,512) 109)
(r.814) 408}
(9,226} i517)
18,190 62
18,150 62
18,190 G2
(437) 3
17,753 70
(4,403) {34)
13,350 36
10.45 G.03
10.25 0.03

Goodwill

Goodwiit

amortisation amortisation
& exceptional & exceplional

items

items

Continuing  Acquisitions

£'000

166

166

(3.034)

(1,128
(4,162)

(4,162)
(708

(4,868)

The notes to the financial statements on pages 37 to 58 forr part of these accounts.

£000
{6.833)

(5.833)

(12,305)

(12,305}

(12,308)

(12,305}
3257

(8.048]

Total

£'000

82,821
{48,379)
34,442
(14,310)
{1,916)
{711)

(14,592)
(17,219)

2,913

2,913

(1,128)

1,785

(429)
1,356

(1,886)

(530)
(5,924)
(6,454)

(0.41p)
{0.41p)

Before

Goodwill

goodwill amortisation
amaortisation & exceptional

& exceptional
iterns

£'000
83,803
(44,129;
39,674

{13,607}
{2478

@,811)
{11,089)

14078

14,078

14078

(208)
13,870

(4,388

9,482

7.52pn
7.45p

items
£'000
{4,095)

(4.095)

(62
4,133
3,441

(1,542}
568
(654)

{10,204)
(327}

(11,275)

(11,275]
(90)

{11,365}

(@.01p)
(8.93p)

Total

£'000
83,803
(43,224
35,579
(13,607
(2,178)
692)

(5.678)
(8,548)

12,536
868
13,424

{10,294}
{327)

2,803

(208)
2,595

(4,478)
(1.883)
(5,458)
(7.341)

{1.49p}
{1.48p)
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Consolidated statement of recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Loss aitributable to shareholders

Currency transiation differences on net investments

Net exchange {loss)/gain on foreign currency borrowings

UK tax on exchange gain on foreign currency borrowings
Owverseas tax on exchange gain on foreign currency borrowings
Total recognised loases for the year

Note of historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Impairment of previously revalued freehold property

Difference between historical cost and actual depreciation charge for the year
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Historical cost retained loss for the year

{530)
(1,473)
{432)
(69)
(34
(2,538)

2004
£'000

1,356

{19)
1,337
{6,467)

(1,883)
(2,958)
976
(40)
{97)
(4,002)

2003
£'000
0,595
126
(19
2,702
(7.228)



Balance sheets
as at 31 December 2004

Group Whatman plc Whatman plc
2003 2004 2003
(Restated) {Restated)
£'000 £'000 £°000

Fixed assets

Intangible assets 36,640 6,890

Tangitle assets N,757 28,041

Investments s 16 -
68,413 34,931

Current assets

Stock 16 16,736 11,125 - -
Debtors due within cne year 17 24,589 73,291 2,706 2507
Debtors due after more than one year 17 15,492 11,862 52,476 5,226
Investments 18 5,128 3 3,873 -
Cash 9,082 8,508 99 981

71,027 54,789 59,154 8,714

Creditors: amounts due within one year

Borrowings 19 90y (11,274} (877) (11043
Other creditors 20 (25,428) (15,966) (39,525) (39.636)
(25,518) (27,240) (40,402} (50,679)
Met current assets/lablities) 45,509 27,549 18,752 {41,065
Total assets less current liabilities 113,922 62,480 71,556 32,075
Creditors: amounts due after more than one year
Borrowings 19 (39,328} - (39,328) -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 (34,380) (15,527) (654) {H87)

40,214 46,963 31,574 31,488

Capital and reserves

Share capital 24 1,291 1,269 1,291 1,269
Share premium 24 15,321 13,222 15,321 13,222
Revaluation reserve 25 4,478 4,538 3,398 3,379
Capital redemption reserve 25 40 40 ap 40
Other reserves 25 1,932 2,004 1,973 1,973
Profit and loss account 25 17,152 25880 9,551 11,605
Shareholders’ tunds 26 40,214 46,953 31,574 31,488

The notes to the finangial staterments on pages 37 to 58 form part of these accounts.

Appraved by the Board of Directars on 4 Apel 2005 and signed on its behalf by:

R l;‘ Thian Chairman P Greenhalgh Finance Director
o e
A :

Yo Annosl




Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Operating activities
Net cash inflow from operating activities 29 13,753 8,744

Returns on investment and servicing of finance

Interest received 70 93
Interest paid (958) (324}
Net cash outflow on returns on investment and servicing of finance (888) (231
Taxation paid (389} (2,788)

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (4,251} (3.397)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (388) -
Sale of tangible fixed assets 41 48
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (4,596} (3,349)

Acquisitions and disposals

Acguisitions 27 (30,066} -
Cash acquired with Schleicher & Schuell 27 1,138 -
Sale of businesses 28 - 4,026
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from acauisitions and disposals (28,928) 4,026
Egquity dividends paid (5,635) (5,107)
Net cash (outflowl/inflow before financing (26,663} 1.295
Financing

Shares issuad 24 2,121 827
Increase in borrowings 39,126 2,138
Repavment of borrowings (12,991) (1,170)
Furchase of Employee Benefit Trust shares {398) -
Net cash inflow from financing 27,858 1,788
Increase in cash in the period 30, 31 1,175 3,084

The notes to the financial statements on pages 37 tc 58 form part of these accounts.




Accounting policies

Accounting Convention The financial
statements are prepared under the historical
cost convention, modified to include the
revaluation of certain fixed assets in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable
accounting standards. Except as noted below,
these financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the prior year.

The Group has adopted UITF 38 "Accounting
for ESOP trusts” in these financial statements.
The adoption of this standard represents

a change in accounting policy and the
comparative figures have been restated
accordingly (see note 25).

Basis of consolidation The Group financial
statements are the consolidation of the
financial staterments of the Company and all
of its subsidiary undertakings. The acquisition
method of accounting has been adopted.
Under this method, the results of subsidiary
undertakings acguired and sold during the
vear are included from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the date of

disposal respectively.

Deferred tax Deferred tax is recognised

in respect of all timing differences that have
criginated but not reversed at the balance
sheat date, with the exception that provision
i3 not made on asset revaluations. or for tax
that would arise on the remittance of the
retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries,
uniess there is a commitment to do so,
Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted
basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that, more likely than not, they
will be recovered.

Foreign currencies and derivatives Assets
and liakilities in foreign currencies are transtated
into sterling at the rates of exchange ruiing at
the balance sheet date, except where covered
by forward contracts, when the forward rate
is used. The results of overseas subsicliary
undertakings are translated at average rates of
exchange. Differences on the tranglation of the
opening balance sheels of overseas subsidiary
untertakings are taken directly 1o reserves, net
of differences on related currency borrewings.

Intangible assets Intangible fixed assets

ather than goodwil, which comprice patents,
licences and marketing rights, are stated

at cost less a provision for amortisation.
Armortisation is calculated to write off the cost
of intangible assets in equal annual instalments
over the lower of their legal and estimated
useful lives, but no longer than 20 years,

36 wWhatman Anoal Hoport 2004

The carrying values of intangible assets are
subiect to review when appropriate and any
impairment is charged 1o the profit and loss
account. The amaortisation periods currently
being used range from 10 to 20 years.

Goodwill On the acquisition of a business,
fair valugs are attributed to the net assets
acquired. Goodwill arising on acguisitions since
1 January 1998 is capitalised and ameortised
over its estimated useful life which management
estimates to he not more than 20 years. The
carrying value of goodwill is subject to review
when appropriate and any impaimrent is
charged to the profit and loss account.

Prior to this, the Group's policy was to eliminate
geodwil arising on acquisitions against reserves.
Under the transitional arrangements of FRS 10
“Goodwil and intangible assets”, reinstatement
of goodwill is not required. Consequently, such
goodwilt has not been reinstated and any such
gocdwill will remain eliminated agamst reserves
until the disposal or termination of the business
acquired, The profit or 10ss on the subseqguent
disposal or termination is calculated after
charging the amount of any such goodwill,

Tangible fixed assets The book value of
tangible fixed assets is written off evenly over
thelr estirmated usetul lives. Plant and machinary
is normally depreciated over 4 to 10 years,
except where the estimated working fife is

20 years or fonger {e.g. papermaking machines).
whan depreciation is provided over 20 years.
Freehold buildings are depreciated over

50 years and freehold land is not depreciated.
Leasehold improverments are depreciated over
the shorter of the asset and the remaining lfe
of the lease. In accordance with the transitional
measures of FRS 15 "Tangible fixed assets”,
the Group has adopted a palicy of not revaluing
propertias since the 1996 valuations, and
accordingly the valuations obtained in 1996
have not heen updated.

Impairment An impafrment is the reduction
in the recoverable amount of a fixed asset
or goodwill below its carrying amount. The
recoverabie amount is the Mgher of net
realisable value and value in use. Value

in use is measured using discounted

cash flows.

The carrying values of fixed assets are
ravigwed for impalrment when there is an
inclication that the assets might be impaired.
First year impairment reviews are conducted
for acquirsd goodwill and intangible assats.

Interast Interest pavable is charged to the
profit and loss account as incurred, except
for interest relating to major fixed assets
under construction, which is added to the
cost until the project becomes operationai.
Interest receipts and payments due under
interest rate swap agreements are taken
to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Leases Rentals under cperating leases are
charged to the profit and loss account on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Land and buildings leased Land and buildings
leased to third parties under operating leases
have been capitalised at fair value under the
acquisition method of accounting. Operating
lease income is accounted far on a straight
line basis with any rental increases recogniscd
in any period to which they relate.

Pensions The cost of providing defined
beneflt pensions is charged against profits
on a systematic basis, with pension fund
surpluses and deficiis arising aliocated over
the expected remaining service lives of
scherme members. Differences between the
amounts charged or credited in the profit
and loss account and payments made are
classified appropriately as assets or liabilities.
Caontributions to dafined contdbution schemes
are charged to the profit and loss accourtt
as incurred.

Provisions Provisions are mads for liabilities
where, in the directors’ opinion, present
obligations exist and it is probable that
outflows of funds will be required to settle the
liabilities in the future and the amount of these
funds can be reasonably estimated. Whero
material, future cash flows are discounted

in arriving at amounts ¢ be provided.

Research and development Research and
development expenditure is charged to the
profit and lass account in the period in which
it is incurred. Tangible fixed assets used for
research and development are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's policy.

Stock Stock is valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value, Cost includes
rmanufacturing overneads.

Turrrover Turnover reprasents the total nat
invoiced vakie of goods sold 1o external
customers, excluding all sales taxes. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are despatched.




Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2004

011 Segmental analysis
The Group's reporting segments have changed. The changes were first reported in the 2004 Interim Staterment. These more appropriately
align external reporting with the customer focused product categories sold in the markets in which the Group operates. The segment previously
named “Filtration and Separation” has been divided into *LakSciences” and “"MedTech™; the segment previously named “Biotechnaology”
has been renamed "BioScience”. The 2003 comparatives have been restated.

LabSciences is the preparation of non-cellular samples prior to analysis. including environmental applications. Products include cellulose and
glass filtration media, membranes and chromatography, in addition to traditional products, this segment includes syringe filters, capsules and
other encapsulated products, as well as microbiclogical products.

MedTech comprises components supplied on an OEM basis to manufacturers of medical devices and clinical diagnostic tests.

BiocScience is the preparation of cellular samples prior to analysis and storage for study of nugcleic acids or proteins, It comprises FTA,
multwell plates, column based DNA separation and electrophoresis products, protein micre-arrays, blotting and neo-natal paper.

2004 2003

Continuing  Continuing

operations  operations
acquisitions (Restated)
Turnover by business £000 £'000 £1000 £'000
LabSciences 47.820 1,493 49,383 50,186
MeciTech 15,323 412 15,735 16,084
BioScience 10,748 526 11,274 g,748
Total ongoing operations 73,961 2,431 76,382 76.015
Operations to be discontinued 6.420 - 6,429 787

Total continuing operations 80,320 2431 82,821 83,803
2004 2003

Befora Before Gaodwill Gaodwitl Before Goodwill

goodwill goodwill amortisation amortisation goodwill amortisation

amaortisation amortisation & exceptional & exceptional amaortisation & exceptional

& exceptional & exceptional items itams & exceptional items
items items Total iterns Total
Continuing  Acquisitions  Continuing  Acquisitions (Restated} (Restated) {Restated)
Operating profit/lioss) by business segment £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
lLabSciences 16,752 19 (2.198) (5,801} 8,674 16,267 {4,769 11,498
MedTech 791 32 306)  @4.731)  (4,214) (B00) (778) 11,578
BioScience (78} 11 {532} {1.673) {2,272) (2,278) (340) (2,618)
Total cngoing operations 17,465 62 {3.03 ) (12 300) 2,188 13,189 {5,887) 7,302
Operations to be discontinued 725 - 725 889 4,345 5,234
Total continuing aperations 18,180 62 (3.034) (1 2.305} 2,913 14,078 (1,542) 12,536
Discaontinued operations - - - - - - 888 888
Dperating profit/loss) 18,190 62 (3.034)  (12,305) 2,913 14,078 654 13,424

The Group's three business segments operate in three main geographical areas even though they are managed on a worldwide basis.

The nome country of the Company Js the UK. The areas of operation are principally the manufacture and sale of products for applications in
LapSciences, BioScience and MedTech.

Ag production activitics of the Group are integrated, many of the assets are commen ta mare than ane business segment. Consaquently,
an analysis by business segment wauld not pravide meaningful information and therefore has not been given.

WA Annunt Hee




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

011 Sagmeantal analysis (continued)

North Amarica Eurcpe Asia Pacific Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
{Restated) (Restated) {Restated} {Restated)
By region of origin £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Turnover
Sales — continuing 42,111 43,182 52,725 54 870 10,452 10,502 105,288 108,354
Sales — acquisitions 818 - 1,757 - - - 2,575 -
Intet-segment sales (5,799) (B.324) (19,243} (19.227) - - {25,042) (24.5651)
Sales to third parties 37,130 37.858 35,239 35,443 10,452 10,502 82,821 83,803
Operating profit/{loss)
Before goodwill & exceptionat items — continuing 4,735 592 14,032 14,083 2,013 1,911 20,780 16,506
Goodwil and exceptional itams — continuing {2,658) (902) (12,560} 438 (121) (180} (15,339 (B54)
Segment profit/{loss) 2,077 (310) 1,472 14,531 1,892 1,721 5,441 15,942
Discontinued operations - (B2 - - - - - (B85
2,077 (1,128) 1,472 14,531 1,892 1,721 5,441 15,054
Unalfocated costs (2,528) {2,518
Caontinuing operations 2,913 12,536
Discontinued operations - 888
Operating profit 2,913 13,424
Net assets
Continuing operations 20,415 14,327 3,741 19,028 1,386 833 53,542 34,248
Discontinued operations - =7 - - - - - (=7}
Segment net assets 20,415 14,270 31,741 18,028 1,386 893 563,542 34,191
Unallocated net asssts 26,000 15,628
Net borrowings (39,328) (2,7686)
Net assets 40,214 48,853
2004 2003
Continuing  Acquisitions
operations Total Total
Turnover by region of destination £7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
North America 36,708 787 37,493 38,709
United Kingdom 9612 123 9,735 10,889
Continental Europe 20,615 1,274 21,889 19.828
Asia Pacific 12,376 171 12,547 12,861
Rest of the world 1,081 76 1,157 1.416
80,390 2,431 82,821 83,803
38 Wt Annugl B 2000




021 Cost of sales and operating expenses

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Cost of sales before exceptional items
Exceptional items

Total cost of sales

Distribution costs before exceptional items
Exceptional iterns
Total districution costs

Research and development before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Total research and development

Amortisation of intangible assets & goodwill

Other administrative expenses before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Total other administrative expenses

Total administrative expenses

031 Loss on business closure and disposals

Provision for loss on closure of Biometra GmbH - centinuing operations
Write down of goodwill

Write down of other tangible assets

Provision for closure costs

Provision against net assets

Loss ¢n business closure — continuing operations

Loss on disposals — continuing operations
Disposal consideration received

Deferred consideration

Less costs of disposal

Write down of goodwill

Disposal of net tangible assets

Loss on business disposal — continuing operations

Centinuing  Acquisitions

operations
2000

41,463
(166)
41,297

11,411

11,411

7,814
2,630
10,444

12,526

£'000
1,24%
5,833
7,082

603
2,298
2.899

108
205
404
141
408
3,740
4,148

4.693

2004
Total
£'000
42,712
5,667
48,379

12,014
2,206
14,310

1,621
295
1,916
71
8,222
6,370
14,592

17,219

Continuing Discontinued

operations
£'000

44129
4.275
48,404

13,607

13,607
2,178
2178

692
9,811

(3,425

6,366

89,256

operations
£'000

(708)
(708)

(708)

2004
£'000

{1,128)
{(1.128)

2003
Total

£'000
44,129
4,095
48224
13,607
13,607
2178
2178
692
9,811
(4,133)
5,678

8,548

2003
£'000

In Becember 2003. the Filter Cartridge business was soid to Graver Technolegies Inc. In addition to the consideration received in 2003, a

further US $1.0m may be receivable contingent on future performance. This has not currently been recognised.

Profit/{loss) on disposal of the HemaSure blocd filtration business - discontinued operations

Disposal consideration received
Disposal of net intangible assets
Disposal of net tangible assets
Prafit/{loss) on disposal

2003
£'000

3,629
(2,889)
(740

Shornul Y0030



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
041 Net interest payable £7000 £'000
Payahie on borrowings repayable within five years 463 301
Amortisation of loan issue costs 61 -
Total payable 524 301
Receivable {95) (93)
429 208
2004 2003
05| Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation £'000 £'000
Is stated after charging:
Depreciation 3,189 4,088
Amortisation 711 6592
Operating lease rentals — plant and machinery 238 257
Operating iease rentals - land and buildings 1,687 1,595
Audit work by Company’s auditors’ 255 319
Audit work by other firms 182 -
Nen-audit work by Company's auditors — further assurance services 25 31
— {ax advisory services 87 345
- tax compliance services 99 45
Tax advisory wark carried out by non-company auditors 22 -
Tax compliance work carried out by non-company auditors 69 -
£45.000 (2003: £240,000} of this relates to the Company.
2004 2003
081 Goodwill amortisation and exceptional items £000 £:000
Litigation provigions {note 21} {33} (5,374)
Restructuring and onerous lease provisions (note 21) 2,340 5,342
Write down/{write back) of stock 769 (8)
Other exceptional items 200 -
Restructuring of Schigicher & Schuell (note 21) 11,352 -
Amartisation of intangible assets and goodwill 711 892
Total operating goodwill amertisation and exceptional items 15,339 6554
Loss on disposal of Filter Cartridge Business - 327
Provision for loss on closure of Biometra business (note 3, 21} - 10,284
Provision against net assets of Biometra 1,128 -
Total goodwill amortisation and exceptional itemg 16,467 11,275

The stock write down of £769,0C0, which was incurred during the month of December, arises as a result of the product rationalisation project.
This project is a part of the integration process with Schleicher & Schuell.

Other exceptional items congist of closure costs incurred during the month of Decermber relating to Schleicher & Schuell.

071 Employees

2004 2003

Weeakly average number of employees Number Number
North Amerfca 290 238
Europe 473 463
Asia Pacific 49 48
812 749

2004 2003

Staff costs £000 £'000
Wages and salaries 21,063 23,712
Social security costs 2122 2187
Other pension costs 783 1,229

23,968 27,128
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081 Pensions

Accounting policies adopted for pension schemes
The Group continugs ta account for pension schemes in accardance with SSAR 24 “Accounting far pension casts”. Under the transitional
provisions of FRS 17 "Retirement benefits”, the Group has also made certain disclosures in refation to defined benefit schemes.

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates defined contribution or monsy purchase schemes in the UK, US and Germany. The henefits are determined directly by
the value of contributions pald in respect of each member and the investment performance achieved on those contributions.

In the UK and Germany, all UK and German-based employees of the Group, respectively, are entitled to join the schemes. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group In an independently administered fund,

It the US contributions are made annually to the 401(k) scheme. As at 21 December 2004, contributions of £349,000 (2003: £413,000) were
outstanding representing the unpaid contributions for the year.

The table below shows the regular cost to the Group of providing these pensions to employees. The regular cost represents contributions
payable to the scheme by the Group. Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they are incurred. As payments 1o the 401(k)
in the US are made annually by the Group, the reqular cost below has still to be paid info the scheme.

2004 2003
Defined contribution schemes £'000 £000
UK 59 36
us 349 413
Germany 32 -
Qther 43 -
Total defined contribution schemes 483 449

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates a number of defined benefit or final salary schemes. These are located mainily in the UK and Germany.

UK defined benefit scheme
The scheme in the UK ig funded and is now closed to new employees. The benefits are determined with reference 1o the length of senvice
and final salary upon which employees take retirement.

Under SSAP 24, contributions are charged 1o the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives
with the Company. Contributions are determined by a gualified independent actuary on the basis of a triennial valuation. The last valuation was
dong on 8 April 2003, Using the attained age methaod, this disclosed assets with a market value of £42,565,000, equivalent to 111% of the
accrued fabilities, after allowing for expected future increases in earnings. The main actuarial assumptions used were:

Valuation assumptions % Rate
Pre-retirement investment return 5.5%
Fost-retirement investimeant return — current pensioners 4.5%
Post-retirement investment return — employees yet o retire 55%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.0%
Rate of increase of pension payments 2.5%

As at © April 2003 the MFR funding calculation showed a funding level of 146%. The effective rate of the employer's contributions decreased
from 16.2% to 10% from 1 January 2004 in accerdance with recommendations submitied by the Scheme Actuary. Contributions from
employees for the vear were 8.0% from 1 January to 30 June increasing to 8.75% from 1 July 2004,

The total contributions to the scheme over the year amounted to £481,000 (2003: £988,000). The prepayment at 31 December 2004 was
£4.902,000 (2003: £4,422,000).

The total charge in respect of the UK based defined benefit scheme is £256,000 (2003: £720,000). The reason for the decrease was the
reduction in UK based employees.

a1
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081 Pensicns {continued)

German defined benefit schemes
The schemes in Germany were opearated by Schleicher & Schuell, a company acquired by tHhe Group on 20 November 2004 (sce note 27).

Twao different types of defined benefit pension are provided in Germany. These are the fixed amount plan and the final salary plan. Both of these
are closed to new entrants.

The fixed amount plan provides retirement and disability pensicns and a dependent’s pension. The plan guaraniees a fixed pension up to a
maximum of approximately €18,400 per annum. This is subject to an infiationary increase of 2% per annurn up o the age of retirement and
3.5% thereafter. The normal retirement age is 65.

The final salary plans provide retirement, disability and dependents’ pensions. Pensions are determined with respect to salary and years in
senvice to the Group.

Both these schemes are operated as fully provided but unfunded schemes. The Group pays into an insurance policy to cover the full pension
liability in the event of insolvency.

The gross liability of the defined tenefit scheme was determined by a gualified independent actuary. The mos! recent valuation was as at 30
Novernber 2004. The valuation of the deficit under SSAP 24 was carried out using the same valuation assumptions as those used to calculate
the deficit under FRS 17. This vaiued the dsficit at £8,229,000 at 30 November 2004 and as at 31 December 2004. The regular cost of the
pension under SSAP 24 was £44,000 for the month of December.

A surnmary of the total group pension costs is given in the table betow,

2004 2003
Continuing  Acquisitions

Pensicn costs £000 £'000 £000 £000
Defined benefit schemes

Regular cost [$iol0] 44 734 647
Actuarial (surplus)/deficit allocated to year (159) - {159) 407
Interest on prepayment (275) - (275) (274)
Total defimed benefit schemes 256 44 300 780
Defined contribution schemes

Pension cost UK 59 - 59 36
Pension cost US 349 - 349 413
Pension cost Germany - 3z 32 -
Cther pension costs 43 - 43 -
Total defined coniribution schemes 451 a3z 483 449
Total pension cost 707 76 783 1,228

Pension disclosures under FRS17

The Group accounts for retirernent benefits in accordance with SSAP 24 “Accounting for pension costs” and the related disclosures are
set out above.

The Group has adopted the transitional disclosure requirements of FRS 17 “Retirement benefits”. It differs from SSAP 24 principally with

regard to the choice of assumptions and in that differences between the market value of the assets and liabilities of the scheme are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet whereas they are recognised on a smoothed basig through the profit and loss account under SSAP 24,

The Group is not required to account for retirement benefits under FRS 17 as full implermneantation has been deferred, but is required 10

present certain transitional disclosures which are set out below.

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 6 April 2002 and updated to 31 December
2004 by a qualified independent actuary. As the schemea in the UK is now ¢losed to new employees, under the projected unit method, the
current service cost wiil rise as a percentage of salary as the scheme members approach retirernent. The major assurnptions used by the
aciuary {in nominal terms} are set out in the following table.
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Germany

Defired beneiit schemes 2004
Rate of general increase in salaries 2.50%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment and deferment 1.5% - 3.5%
Discount rate 4.57%
Inflation assurmption 1.50%

2004

Value
The assels in the scheme and the expected rates of return were: Rate £'000 Rate
Equities o ~ B ) _ 7.50% 23,484 7.80%
Bonds/gilts - B . 490% 22811 510%
Cash ' - o ATs% - 375%
Total market value qf'éssgts ' ) ) T B ) B _ B ) 46,295
Actuarial value of liability - . {47,005
Recoverable deficit in the scheme i ] ] (M0
Related deferrad tax asset ] o ) o3
Net pension MabLIity - B ) B ' ) (497)

2003
Value
£'000

115

43,104
743,219
(46,483)
13,264)

979
(2.285)

Rate
7.52%
5.00%

| 4.00%

2002
Value
£'000

106

42214

42,320

(44,391)

2.071)
821

{1,450)

Trerg is no similar disclosure for the German defined benefit scheme acquired with Schizicher & Schuell because the scheme is unfunded.

If the amounts had been recorded in the financial statements, the following would have been recognised:

Germany
2004

Anaivsis of amount charged to operating profit £000
Current senvice cost 9
Curtailment gain
Net amount charged to operating profit G
Anaysis of amount charged o other finance expense
Expected return on pension assels -
Interast on pension fabilities (35)
Net charge (35)
Arz'ysis of amount recognised in staiement of total recognised gains and osses
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assels -
Experience gains and osses arising on the scheme liabilities -
Changes in assumptions _
sioverient 0 liability during the vear
Deficit in the scheme at 1 January -
Acguired with Schigicher & Schuel {8,058)
Current service cost D)
Curtailment gain -
Contributions 44
Net interest cost (35)
Actuarnal gain/(loss)
Foreign exchange loss (171
Deficit in the scheme at 31 December (83,229)

UK
2004

£'000

653

{400
253

1.606
(2.468]
(B63)

2488
672
29
3,189

(3,264

(653)
406
481
(863)
3,189

(710

Group
2004
£:000
662
{400)
262

1,606
(2,504}
{898)

2,488
672
29
3,189

(3,264)
{8,058)
(662)
400
526
{898)
3,189
(171)
(8,939)

2063
£'000

599

599

1,683
{2,410)
(721)

(407)
4,864
(5,018}

(761)

©.071)
(599)
938
721)
(761)

(3,264}
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Notes to the financial statements
far the year ended 31 December 2004

09| Directors’ emoluments

101 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Ad et Acrrsd S BV

History of experience gains and losses

UK

Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets
Experience gains and losses on scheme fiabilities

£'000

2,488
872

Total amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses 3,189

There was no history of experience gains and losses in respect of German detfined benefit schemes.

Sharehoiders’ funds and profit and Yoss account reserve

Total including SSAP 24 pension prepayment as previously reported
Pricr year adjustment note 25)

Total including SSARP24 pension prepayment as restated

Less SSAP 24 pension prepayment

Total excluding SSAP 24 pension prepayment

Net pension liability under FRS 17

Total inciuding FRS 17 liabifity

2004
Percentage
of scheme
(liabilitiesy
assets

5%
1%
8%

2002

Percentage

of scheme
(liahilitias)/

£000 assets
{407) (1%)
4 BB4 10%
(761) 2%

Shareholders'

funds

2004 2003
(Restated)

2000 £'000

40,214 47216

(263)

40,214 46,953

{4,002)  (4,422)
35,312 42,531

497) (2,285
34,815 40,248

2002

Percentage

of scheme
{liapilities)

£'000 assets
&670) {19%)
1,683 4%
1999) {2%)
Profit and

loss account

2004 2003
(Restated)

£000 £'000

17,152 26,143
- (263
17152 25880
(4,902)  (4,422)
12,250 21458
(497)  (2,285)
11,753 19,172

Details of remuneration, interest in shares, share options and compensation for 10ss of office for each Director are given in the Remuneration Report.

Current tax

UK Cerperation tax for the year at 30% (2003 302}
Adjustrments in respect of prior years

Total UK current tax

Fareign tax for the year

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total foreign current tax

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Qrigination and reversal of timing differences
I8 i8]

UK tax
Foreign tax
Total deferred tax

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

included in the above is a credit of Cnil (2003: £3,000 credit) of tax on exceptional items recognised below operaling prosit.

2004 2003
£'000 £a00
©@ 1670
(92) (34)
(101) 1,636
1,048 745
193 16
1,241 761

1,140 2397

691 (535)
55 2816
748 2081

1,886 4,478




Factors affecting tax charge for year
Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Tax on profits at the UK standard rate of corporation fax of 30%

Effects of:

Differences between UK and ¢verseas tax rates (216) [leX:))
lterms not currently allowable for tax purposes 387 (8.851}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 33 2,670
Depreciation for the year in excass of capital altowances 209 535
Unrelieved tax losses 12) 1.624
Losses carried forward 120G 5,676
Adjustrments to tax charge in respect of prior yvears 101 (18}
Other effects 111 16
Current tax charge for the year 1,140 2.397

Factors that may affect future tax charges

No provision has been made for deferred tax in respect of potential gaing ansing from the sale of properties revalued to their market value
unless the sale is committed. the total amount unprovided for this being £880.000. This amount would become payable if the properties were
sold without it being possible to claim rollover relief. Provision has not been made for tax of £710,000 in respect of prior year capital gains as
the gains have been rolled into replacement assets. This tax could become payable if the relevant replacement assets were sold. At present

it Is not envisaged that any tax will become payable in the foreseeable future in respect of these gains.

A deferred tax assat of £5,000,000 in respect of trading losses has not been recognised. Recovery of this amount is dependent on the
profitability of the relevant operations in the future.

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries, as the earnings are continually reinvested by the Group,
and hence no tax is expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future.

2004 2003

11| Dividends to equity shareholders £'000 £000
Interim paid 1.74p (2003: 1.62p) 2,232 2,053
Final proposed 2.87p (2003: 2,670} 3,692 3.405
Total dividend payable 4.610 {2003: 4.29p) 5,924 5,458

121 Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share have been caiculated on a logs of £530,000 (2003: £1.883 000} and the foliowing weighted average
number of shares in issue during the vear:

2004 2003
000 000
Number of ordinary shares used for the calculation of basic earnings per share 127,808 126,130
Exercise of cutstanding share options 2,446 1,054
Shares 10 be issued as deferred consideration for acquisitions - 66
Number of ordinary shares used for the calculation of diluted earnings per share 130,254 127,250

Earnings per share before goodwill amortisation and exceptional charges have been shown after adding back, net of tax, goodwill
amortisation of £841,000 (0.50p per share) {(2003: £528,000 and 0.47p per share) and exceptional items of £13,898,000 (10.89p per share)
{2003: £10,769,000 and 8.54p per share).




Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Goodwill Other
intangibles
131 Intangible fixed assets £'000 £'000
Cost
AL 1 January 2004 12,251 2,624 14,775
Differences on exchange 168 {168 -
Additions - 386 386
Acquired with Schisicher and Schuelt - 1,840 1,840
Goodwill arising on acquisition of Schigicher and Schuell 28,068 - 28,066
At 31 Decermber 2004 40,485 4,582 45,067
Amortisation
At January 2004 {7,345} {540) {7,885}
Differences on exchange 122 47 169
Charge for year (558) (153) 71713
At 31 December 2004 (7,781) (646) (8,427)
Net book values
At 31 December 2004 32,704 3,936 36,640
At 31 December 2003 4,906 1,084 6.850

Other intangibles include patents, licences, marketing rights and trademarks. Three separable assets were identifiad on the acquisition of
Schileicher & Schuell, These were:

» Trademark for Spartan

¢ Trademark for Protran

* Patent for Cellulose Acetate Membranes.

The fair value of these assets was determined by independent valuation experts using the income approach. This is based on discounted cash
flow forecasts for each of these assets. The remaining useful economic lives are 8, 10 and 15 years respectively.

Group Whatman ple
Land and Plant and Total Land and Total
buildings  machinery buildings
141 Tangible fixed asseis £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £500
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004 18,724 46,325 £5,049 11,134 1,134
Differences on exchange 87 (740 827} - -
Adlditions 856 3,128 4,084 1 1
Acquired with Schleicher & Schuell 5,291 3,011 8,302 - -
Disposals 2 (123) {125) - -
Irmpairment 43) {46) (89} - -
Transfer 1o curvent asset investments {8,527) - ©8.5273 14,545} {4,549
At 31 December 2004 18,312 51,555 69,867 6,586 6,586

Depreciation

At 1 January 2004 (3,667) (33,341) (37,008) (861) 861)
Differences on exchange (4 558 552 - -
Charge for the year {451} (2, 738) (3,189) (154) (184)
Disposals 2 29 101 - -
Impairment (4) 39 35 - -
Transfer to current asset investments 1,399 - 1,389 876 676
At 31 December 2004 (2,725) (35,385} (38,110) {339) (329}

Net book values

At 31 December 2004 15,587 16,170 31,757 6,247 6,247
At 31 December 2003 15,057 12,984 28,041 10,273 10,273
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2004
The net book value of land and buildings comprises: £'000
Freehold 10,807
Leasehold 4,780

15,587

Group
2003
£'000

10,064
4,083
15,067

Whatman pic

2004 2003
£'000 £'000
4,522 8,519
1,725 1,754
6,247 10,273

Freehold land and bulldings were valued in 1896 by Chartered Surveyors and similarly qualified professionals on an open market, existing use

basis and the valuations were incorporated in the financial statements of that year.

The net book value of freehold land and buildings at 31 December 2004
on a historical basis would have been: £'000
Cost 9,132
Depreciation (2,000)
Net book value 7,042
At 31 December 2004 the group had contracted capital commitments naot provided of Enil (2003: £nil).
Total
151 Fixed asset investments £'000
Cost or valuation at 1 January 2004
Differences on exohanggw o - ) - o o . - 1 '
Increase o 7_ ? L o B T
Actuired with Schieicher & Schuell ’ |-
eerease e S S ’
Cost or valuation at 31 December 2004 16

Group
2003
£'000

11,042
{4,149
6,893

Whatman pic
2004 2003
£000 £'000
1,311 7.665
633)  (2,001)
678 5574

Whatman plc
Investment in
subsidiary undertakings

The cost of shares in subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2004 was £52.077,000 (2003: £52,077,000). The principal subsidiary

undertakings of the Group and the Company are shown in note 34.

161 Stock

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for resale

Loans Total
£'000 £'000
17,210 63,767
(17.210)  (17,210)
- 46,557

2004 2003
£000 £'000
6,753 4,109
4,135 2,836
5,848 4,180
18,736 11,125
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17 | Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Cther debtors

Taxation

Prepayments and accrued income
Debtors falling due within cne year

Due after more than cne year

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Pension prepayment

Other debtors

Deferred taxation (note 21)

Prepayments and accrued income

Debtors faling due after more than one year

Total debtors

2004
£'004

17,308

1,731
3,429
2,121
24,589

4,902
942
7,526
2122
15,492

40,081

Group
2003
£000

12,317

861
6,832
3,281

23,291

4,422
275
7,165

11,862

35,153

Whatman plc

2004 2002
£Qa00 £nag
1,150 151
3 1
760 -
765 2,355

2,706 2,507

49,661 5,226

693 -
2,122 -
52,476 5,226

55,182 7,733

Prepayments and accrued income includes prepaid royalties of £2,272,000 (2003: £2,321,000) recoverable on future sales. In the current year,

£2,122,000 has been classified as due after more than one year.

181 Current asset investments

Currant asset investments

2004

£'000
5,128

Group
2003
{Restated)
£'000

3

Whatman plc

2004 2003

{Restated)

£°000 £'000
3,873

Current asset investments for the Group and Company include respectively £5,128,000 and £3,873,000 in respect of land and buildings
transferred from tangible fixed assets as they are held for resale. The 2003 comparatives have been restated following the adoption of

UITF 38; see note 25 for further details.

19| Borrowings

45

Short term borrowings
Unsecured bark loans
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts

Long term loans
Unsecured bank loans
Total borrowings

Repayable

Within one year

Between one and two years
Betweaen two and five years

Ve S T

2004
£000

90
90

39,328
39,418

90
5,066
34,262
39418

Group
2003
£:000

11,028
246
11,274

11,274
11,274

11,274

Whatman plc

2004 2003
£'000 £'000
- 11,028
877 15
877 11,043

39,328 -
40,205 11,043

877 11,043
5,066

34,262 -

40,205 11,043




2004
201 Other creditors £1000
Trade creditors 5,204
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings -
Proposed dividend 3,692
Corperation tax 1,058
Other taxation and social security 1,474
Other creditars 7,710
Accruals and deferred income 6,290
25,428

Group
2003
£'000

3,300
3,405
3,184
422
366
4,789
15,966

Whatman pic
2004 2003
£'000 £:000

35,687 36,153

3,692 3,405
36 18

17 11

7 Kje

86 10

39,525 39,636

Other creditors includes deferred consideration and amounts owed in respect of the acquisition of Schleicher & Schuell of £6.0 million.

Litigation Biometra Whatman Schieicher & Pension Onerous
Restructuring Schuell lease
Restructuring
211 Provisions £000 £'000 £7000 £°000 £000 £7000
At 1 January 2004 36 7,026 4,370 - - 3,071
Differences on exchange (1 76 89) 65) 171 (35)
Utilised @) {109) (3.543) {1,631) (44) (1,186)
Charge to the profit and loss account
— exceptional - 1,128 F4e) 11,352 - 1,805
Charge to the profit and loss account
- non exceptional - 2809 - - 44 -
Acquired - - - - 8,058 -
Written back (33) (73) - - - {166}
Transfer to debtors - - - - - -
At 31 December 2004 - 8,857 1,439 9,756 8,229 3,489

Deferred
tax

£'000
1,024
334

748
145
361

2,610

Group Whatman plc

Total Deferred
tax

£000 £7000
15,527 587
391 -
{6,415) -
14,986 -
1,589 67
8,203 -
(272} -
361 -
34,380 654

Litigation provisions were created in 2002 in respect of an age discrimination case, a supply agreement case and for alleged patent infringement
by Biometra, The age discrimination and supply agreement cases were settled in 2003 for amounts lower than those previded for and the
excess provisions written back. Following the decision to place Biometra into voluntary liquidaiion the provision for patent infringement was
released in 2003 and the balance combined with the newly created provision for the cost of ¢losing Biometra. In addition, a provision against

the net assets of Biometra has besn made.

The restructuring provision for Whatman includes costs for the following:
+ Site rationalisation programme to reduce the number of manufacturing sites as announced in 2001
* Reducing worldwide headcount to around 800, as announced on 30 December 2002

* The increase in the provision of £701,000 relates mainly to redundancy costs for the CEQ and other senior management.

The Schleicher & Schuell restructuring provision relates to the facilities rationalisation programmes following the acquisition of Schleicher

& Schuell resulting in a net headcount reduction of around 160 as announced on 31 December 2004,

The pension provision relates 1o the unfunded defined benefit liabillties acquired with Schleicher and Schuell. This is described in notg 8.

The onerous lease provision relates to the costs of vacant possession of properties from which the business has been relocated. During

the year, additional amounts have been provided for the cost of the Parkwood and Larkfield onerous leases.

Within 1 vear
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
Over 5 years

» crovisions axcluding deferrad iax

2004 2003
£:000 £000
21,383 12,595
1,406 584
3,695 1,211
5,286 113

31,770 14,503

In the prior year, £12,595,000 of provisions were expected to be utilised in the current year, Actual provisions utilised in the current year was

£6,415,000. This shortfall is mainly because the liquidation of Biometra is continuing.
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211 Provisiens {continued)

Group Whatman ple

2004 2003 2004 2003

Deferred taxation is attributable to £000 £'000 £:000 £:000
Accelerated capital allowances 1,455 1.641 654 587
Other timing difierences (8,371) (7.782) - -
(4,916) 6.141) 654 687

Included in debtors (note 17) 7.526 7.165 - -
Deferred tax provision 2,610 1.024 654 587

22| Contingent liabilities

Whatman plc has given guarantees in respect of £72 376,000 {2003: £5,000,000) of borrowing facilities of subsidiary undertakings. Of this,
£39,328,000 has been drawn down. The increase relates to the loan facility of €95,000,000 for the acquisition of Schieicher & Schuell and the
working capital requirement of the entarged group. The Group also has contingent liabilities in respect of leases sub-let and assigned in the
ordinary course of business.

23| Derivatives and other financial instruments

In reporting derivatives and other financial instruments. the Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 13 not to provide
numerical disclosures in relation to short-term debtors and creditors. ather than in relation to currency exposure disclosures.

Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial irstruments, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, cash and equity capital. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to provide financing for the Group’s aperations. The Group has varicus other financial instruments such as trade debtors
and trade creditors, that arise directly from its operations.

The Group enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts. The purpose of such
transactions Is to manage the interest rate and currency risks ariging from the Group’s operations and its financing. 11s, and has been
throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no dealing in financial instruments shall be undertaken, except for the purpose
of hedging the Group's financial risks.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Board considers
each of these risks on a regufar basis and the Group’s policy towards each of these risks has remained unchanged during the year.

interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of equity capital, retained profits, cash, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings. The Group
finances its acquisitions primarily through bank borrowings. The Group borrows in the desired currencies mainly at floating rates of interest and
uses interest rate swaps, as deemed appropriate, to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank
borrowings. The Group predominantly uses a medium term credit facility incorporating a term loan facility and a revalving credit facility from

a London bank. In addition, the Group maintains undrawn committed borrowing facilities, after taking Into account anticipated expenditure on
acquisitions, of at least 10% of borrowing facilities, in order to provide flexibility in the management of the Group's fiquidity. Short term flexibility
is achieved by the use of bank overdrafts.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has a significant investment in overseas operations, primarily in the US and Continental Europe. As a result, the Group's sterling
batance sheet can be significantly affected by movements in the US Dollar and Euro exchange rates. The Group seeks to reduce the effect of
these currency exposures by matching its currency borrowings with the overseas fareign currency assets to the extent that total borrowings do
not significantly exceed funding requirements. Approximately 60% of the Group’s investments in non-sterling operations are hedged in this way.

The Group also has a transactional exposure with significant sales and a smaller element of purchases being made in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operating units. in addition, the Group has an exposure in translating the profits of overseas operations into sterling.
The Group’s policy is to actively manage the currency risk by covering 100% of the anticipated expasures in major foreign currencies for a
period of between one and two vears using forward foreign exchange contracts.
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Fixed rate
Weighted average

Tetal Non-interest Floating Fixed Interest Term
bearing rate rate rate
Intarest rate risk profile of financial liabilities £000 £'000 £1000 £000 % years
2004
Pound sterling 3,047 3,046 1 - - -
US Dollar 2,770 423 2347 - - -
Euro 35,667 20 35,547 - - -
Japanese Yen 1,523 - - 1,523 1.8 3.7
42 907 3,489 37,895 1,523 1.9 3.7
2003
Pound sterling 2,260 2,026 234 - - -
US Dollar 8,848 1.025 7.823 - - -
Eurp 20 20 - - - -
Japanese Yen 1,562 - - 1,562 1.9 4.7
Singapore dallar 1.6855 - 1,655 - - -
14,345 3,071 9,712 1,562 1.9 4.7

The above takes into account interest rate swaps, which have had the effect of reclassifying £1,523,000 of debt from floating to fixed rate,
entered into by the Group to hedge against interest rate risks. The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank borrowing bearing interest at
rates fixed in advance for periods ranging from one to three months by reference to the relevant foreign currency LIBOR and bank overdrafts.
In addition, the Group's provisions of £3,489,000 for cnerous lease contracts (note 21) meet the definition of financial liabilities, Of these,
875,000 Is expected to mature within one yaar, £793,000 between one and two years, £1,468,000 between two and five years and
£352.000 in greater than five years, The maturity profile of interest bearing financial liabiities is shown in note 19.

Borrowing facilities
The Group has varicus borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at 31 December 2004 in respect of which
ail conditions precedent had been met at that date were as follows:

2004 2003
Committed borrowing facilities £'000 £'000
Expiring in less than one year 919 13,872
Expiring in more than one year bhut not more than two years 2,236 5,000
Explring in more than two years 26,438

29,593 18,872

2004 2003

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets £'000 £000
Pound sterling 294 150
US Dollar 1,617 3,137
Euro 6,401 3,192
Japanese Yen 462 1,620
Singapore dollar 177 162
Swiss francs 129 -
Canadian dollar 2 247
9,082 8,508

Al of the above are at floating rates and comprise cash balances with Ganks and overnight money market deposits.
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Notes to the financial staterments
for the year ended 31 December 2004

GUF[’E&E’ICV exposures

The following table shows the Group’s currency exposures that give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss
account. Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the operating (or “functional’) currency of
the operaiing unit irvoived. Other than certain nen-sterding borrowings treated as hedges of net investments in overseas operations, gains and

losses are recognised In the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Net foreign currency monetary assets/({liabilities)

Functional currency of group operations
2004

Pound sterling

US Dollar

Euro

Japanese Yen

Singapore dollar

Canadian dollar

Total at 31 December

2003

Pound sterling

US Dollar

Euro

Japanese Yen
Singapare dollar
Canadian dollar

Total at 31 December

GBP
£:00¢

US Dollar
£'000

264
{194)
459

534

(2,656)
21
162
582
13
(2,142)

Euro
£000

Yen
£°000

206

(14

192

447

Cther
£'000

35

Total
£'000

241
(220)
(334)
(164
445
5
(57)

(2,190)
34
51
164)
581
14
(1,645)

The amounts shown in the table above take into account the effect of forward contracts entered info to manage these currency exposures.

At 31 Decamber 2004, the Group aiso held cpen various forward contracts that had been taken out to hedge expected future foreign

curancy exposures.

Fair value of financial assets and financial lizbilities

Primary financial instruments

Short term borrowings and current paition of long term borrowings
Long term horrowings

Financial assets

Fixed assst investments

Derivative financial instruments held to marage interest rate risk
Interest rate swaps

Derivative iinancial instrumants heic to nedge currency risk
Forward foreign currency contracts

Book
valueg
£:000

(90)

(39,328)
9,082
16

98

2004
Fair
value
£'000

(90}

(39,328)
9,082
16

{80)

327

Book

valug
£'000

23

2003
Fair
value
£:000

(11,274)

8,508

(122

424

Market values have been used to determine the fair values of interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts. The fair values of
other items have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevalling interest rates.
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Hedges
The Group's policy is 1o hedges interest rate risk using interest swaps and currency exposures using forward foreign currency contracts. Gaing

and logses on instruments used for hedging are not recegnised until the exposure that is being hedged is itself recognised. Unrecognised gains
and losses on instruments used for hedging and the movements therein are as follows:

Gains and losses on hedges

Unrecognised at 1 January 2004

Arising in previous vears that were recognised in 2004
Arising in previous years that were not recognised in 2004
Arising in 2004 that were not recognised in 2004
Unrecognised at 31 December 2004

Of which — expected lo be recognised in 2005
- expected to be recognised in 2006 or later

24 { Share capital

Authorised: Ordinary shares of 1p each
Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 1p each
Shares to be issued

At 1 January 2004
Share capital issued under share oplion schemes
At 31 December 2004

Ootions on ordinary shares outstanding at 31 Decembar 2004
Integrated Incentive pian ‘A" options

Integrated Incentive plan ‘B’ options

Integrated Incentive plan ‘C’ options

Long Term Incentive Gption Scheme

2001 savings related share opticn scheme

2002 savings related share option scheme

2003 savings related share option scheme

2004 savings related share option scheme

2001 Whatman Inc savings related share option plan
2002 Whatman Inc savings related share option plan
2004 Whatman Inc savings related share option plan
2001 Germany savings related share option scheme
2002 Germany savings related share option schame

Number
140,000,000
129,095,826

129,095,826

Number

126,870.840
2,224,986
129,095,826

Number of
shares

1,035,159
1,035,159
1,725,862
1.000,000
23,863
123,744
126,414
301,892
14,689
76,228
189,418
50,144
7,098
5,688,571

Gains Losses Total net

gain/(loss)

£'000 £'000 £'000

193 (132) &1
(163) 29 (164)

- (103 103)

562 310 252

562 (413) 149

562 (356 208
(57) (57)

2004 2003
£000 Number £000
1,400 140,000,000 1,400
1,291 126,870,840 1,268
- 66,280 1
1,291 126,937,120 1,268
Share capital Share premium Total
£'000 £000 £'000
1,269 13,222 14,491
22 2,099 2323
1,2<N 15,321 16,612
Option Period

prices exercisabie

87p - 225p 2005-2014

875 — 225p 2005-2012

87p - 225p 2006-2012
251p 2005-2014

atp 2005

7ip 2005-2006

104p 2006-2007

160p 2007-2008

66p 2004-2005

71p 2005-2006

180p 2007-2008

86D 2004-2005

71p 2005-2006

Wetutman Arcaal Rooart 2004 183



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Revaluation Capital Other Profit Total
redemption and loss
251 Reserves £1000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Group
At 1 January 2004 as previcusly reported 4,538 40 2,004 26,143 32,725
Prior year adjustment - - - (263} (263
At 1 January 2004 as restated 4,538 40 2,004 25,880 32,462
Foreign excharge differences 7D - - {1,790y {1,869
Retained loss for the vear - - - (6,454 (6,454)
Exchange gain on borrowings - - - 136} {36)
Tax on exchange adjustments - - - (103) {103)
Employee Benefit Trust shares - (358) {398}
Transfer 1o profit and loss account 18 - (72) 53 -
At 31 December 2004 4,478 40 1,932 17,152 23,602
Whatman plc
At 1 January 2004 as previously reported 3,379 40 1,973 11,868 17,260
Prior year adjustment - - - (263) (283}
At 1 January 2004 as restated 3,379 40 1,873 11,605 16,997
Retained loss for the year - {1,837) (1.637)
Transfer to profit and loss account 19 - - (19 -
Employee Benefit Trust shares - - - {398) (398)
At 31 December 2004 3,398 40 1,973 9,651 14,962

The cumulative amount of goodwill written off directly 1o reserves in respect of undertakings forming part of the Group at 31 December 2004
was £17,532,000 (2003: £17,532,000). In accordance with the exemption available under section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the
profit and loss account of Whatman plc is not separately presented. The profit attributable to shareholders of Whatman plc is £4,287,000
(2003: £3,059,000).

The prior year adjustment relates to the adoption of UITF 38 which requires that where a Company purchases its own shares held by
the Emplovee Benefit Trust, these shaould be deducted in arriving at sharsholdars’ funds. The total cost of the shares was £262,755 at
31 December 2003 resulting in a reduction {o sharehgldars' funds of that amount. At 31 December 2004, 368,974 shares were held with
a nominal value of £3,890 (2003: 188,974 shares with a norminal vaiue of £1,690). in accordance with WTF 38, during 2004, the cost of
shares acquired included as a deduction from the profit and loss account reserve was 397,732,

Shares in Whatman plc are purchased by the Company in the open market and held by the Employee Benefit Trust for the benefit of the
employee profit share scheme. Bonuses are payable to Whatman employees in the form of either cash or share equivalent based on the year
end share price, The cost of bonuses has been charged to the profit and loss account in the year to which they relate. All rights to dividends
on these shares have been waived.

2004 2003
(Restated)

26| Reconciliation of movement in equity shareholders’ funds £'000 £'000
Loss attributable to shareholders (530)  (1.883)
Dividends {5,924) (5,458)
Retained loss for the year (6,454) {7.341)
Other recognised losses for the year {2,008) 2,119
Employee Benefit Trust shares (398) -
Wite back to profit and loss of goodwill on business closure - 8016
Issue of shares on exercise of share cptions 2121 827
Net decrease In equity shareholders' funds for year (6,739) (2,617}
Equity sharehciders’ funds at 1 January 46,953 49,833
Prior year adjustment - (263}
Equity sharehoiders’ funds at 31 December 40,214 46,953
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27 | Acquisitions
On 30 November 2004, the Group acguired 100% of the share capital of Schlsicher & Schuell, a company incorperated and based in Germany.

The fair value of the total consideration of £40.8 million (€58.8 milion} was offset by amounts received in respect of excluded entities and
other simitar adjustments of £4.9 miltion. OF this amount, £3.8 miflion (€5.5 milfion} is deferred for payment until 30 November 2005, It includas
transaction costs paid or accrued totalling £2.8 million, but excludes bank arrangement fees of £0.6 million. Cash acquired with the business
amounted to £1.1 million.

Table of acquired assets and liabilities
The following table sets out the bock values of the idenitifiable assets and liabilities acquired, together with their fair value to the Group:

Book Fair Fair

value value value

adjustments

£'000 £000 £1500
Intangible fixed assets 283 1.657 1,840
Tangible fixed assets 6,751 1,551 8,302
Investments 192 77 15
Stock 8,237 (333 5,804
Debtors 12,820 723 13,643
Cash 1,138 - 1,138
Borrowings {2,133) - (2,133)
Other creditors (8,049 1,530 6,510
Provigions for liabilities and charges (8,857) (2,443) (9,300}
Net assets acquired 10,382 2,417 12,799
Goodwill - - 28,066
Cansideration - - 40,865
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash - - 32,163
Amounts reiating to excfuded entities and other similar adjustments - - 4,884
Deferred consideration - 3,818
Total - - 40,865

The fair value adjustments represent valuation adjustrnents of £0.5 milion and alignments with group accounting policies of £1.8 million. The fair
values and goodwill arising are provisional and subject to finalisation as the acquisition was made within one month of the year end.

Schleicher and Schuell owns a 28% interest in BioDot Inc, a private company incarporated in California. BioDot designs, manufactures, markets
and sells micro-scale liguid dispensing systemns and related peripheral equipment and services. These are used to develop and produce
diagnostic tests for markets. The markets include medical, foed. ervironmental, vaterinary and agriculture.

BioDot Inc prepares financial statements to 31 October. It is accounted for as an associate undertaking using the equity method of accounting.
Schigicher & Schueli’s share of net assets totalled £177,000 as at 30 November 2004 and is reflected within fixed asset Investments in the table
of acquired assets and labilities, The goodwil net of accumulated amortisation arising on the acquisition of £283.000 is within intangible fixed assets.
The investment in BioDot has been fair valued to nil as no dividend has been paid since Schlsicher and Schuell acquired BioDot, Furthermore,
no dividends are expected for the foreseeable future and there is no ready market in which to sell the shares. As the investment has been

fair valued to nil, and has only been held for one month of the year, further Group asscciate disclosures have not been given ori the ground

of matariality.

Provisions for liabilties and charges includes amounts in respect of the pension liability and deferred tax liability.

There will be no material effect on deferred tax should the acquired assets be sold at their fair value.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Fesuhs prior to acquisition
In the year ended 31 December 2003, turnover was £34.6 million and profit after tax was £0.4 million {at an exchange rate of €1,42 o £1),

The summarised profit and loss account from 1 January 2004 to 30 Novermber is shown based on the accounting poficies of Schleicher & Schuel
prior to the acquisition:

Eleven months
ended 30 November 2004

£1000
Turncver 32,558
Cost of sales {16,961)
Gross profit 15,597
Distribution costs (8,300)
Research & development {1,046)
Adrninistrative expenses (5,443)
Total pperating expenditure (14,789)
Other income 1,600
Operating profit 2,408
Net 1033 on disposal of businesses {2,652)
Income from associate undertaking 44
Interest (400)
Loss hefore tax {(B00)
Tax {900)
Loss after tax (1,500)
Statement of recognised gains and losses for Schigicher & Schuell in 2004
the eleven months ended 30 November 2004 pricr to acquisition £'000
Losg attributable to sharehclders (1,500)
Currency franslation differences on net investments (59)
Total recognised losses for the period {1,559}
2004 2003
28 [ Dispasal of businesses £'000 £'000
Net proceads fram sale of Fitter Gartridge business - 397
Net proceeds from sale of HemaSure Bloed Filtration business - 3,629
- 4,026
2004 2003
291 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities £'000 £'000
Operating profit 2,913 13,424
Depreciation 3,189 4,088
Amortisation of intangible assets and goodwill 711 892
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 54 1,574
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets (17 6)
Net provisions established 14,439 820
Stack write down/fwrite back) 769 (@)
Other non cash profit items (B67) (301)
(Increase)/decrease in stock (665) 774
{Increasel/decrease in debtors (256} 1,939
Decrease in creditors (302) (738}
Utilisation of provisions (6,415) (13,513)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 13,7583 8,744

Other non cash profit items relate primarily to the increase in the pension prepayment.
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2004 2002

301 Recenciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt £'000 £000

Increase in cash in the year {1,175) (3,084}

Net cash flow from increase in borrowings 26,135 962

Change in net debt resulting from cash fiows 24,960 (2,122

Acquisition of borrowings 2,133 -

Foreign exchange differences 477 {1,279

Increase/(decrease) in net debt in the year 27,570 (3,401)

Net debt at 1 January 2,766 6,167

Net debt at 31 December 30,336 2,766

At Cash Change  Acquisition Exchange At 31

1 January flow in {ex cash & movement December

2004 maturity overdraft) 2004

311 Analysis of net debt £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £:000 £000

Cagh in hand and at bank {8,508) (1.019) - - 445 {9,082)

Overdrafts 246 {1586) - - - 90

(8,262 (1,175} - - 445 (8,992

Deabt due within one year 11.028 (4.833) 6,637} 782 {340) -

Debt due after one year - 30.968 6,837 1,351 372 39,328

11,028 26,135 - 2,133 32 39,328

Net debt 2.766 24 960 - 2,133 477 30,336
321 Related party transactions

On 21 December 2000, Schisicher & Schuell made a loan of $240,000 to BioCot Inc, an associate undentaking (note 27}, which was due for
repayment on 1 June 2001. On 1 August 2002, the unpaid balance of this loan of 573,661 was exchanged for a three year 6% convertible
debenture with & conversion rate of 35.00 per share. This balance is due for repayment or conversion on 1 August 2005.

Dr Hinrich Kehler was previously Chairman of the Adviscry Board of Schieicher & Schuell GmibH. Dr Kehler (through a majority shareholding
in ConCap Beteiligungs und Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH {(*ConCap™) was a sharsholder of Schleicher & Schuell GmbH (S&S} until the
acqguisition of 3&S by Whatman in November 2004, The former shareholders of S&S have provided indemnities to Whatman in relation to
representations and warranties contained in the sale and purchase agreemment and payment to them of part of the consideration for the
acquisition is subject to retention by Whatman through a warranty period. In addition, Dr Kehler continues to be a Director and (through

his shareholding in ConCap) has beneficial shargholdings in a number of companies which were previously subsidiaries of S&S but excluded
fromn the acquisition of S&S by Whatman. These companies are parties to certain contractual agreements with Whatman companies by
which, for a transiticn period, they supply products and services to Whatman and raceive services from Whatman. These agreements were
negotiated on an arms iength basis. The total value of transactions between Whatman and these companies between 1 December 2004
and 31 December 2004 was £41,000.

Land and buildings Other

2004 2003 2004 2003

33| Lease commitments £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
The Group has annual commitments under operating leases expiring:

Within one year 364 207 390 52

Between one and five years 706 586 489 158

After five yaars 643 413 - -

1,713 1,206 879 210

The Company had no commitments under operating leases.
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341 Principal subsidiary undertakings

Biometra Biomedizinische Analytik GmbH"™

Whatman Asia Pacific Pte Limited’
Whatman Finance Limited'
Whatrman Gt

Whatman Germany GmbH!
Whatman HemaSure fnc’

Whatman Holdings GmbH'
Whatman Holdings UK Limited
Whatman inc’

Whatman international Limitect
Whatman Ireland Limited’

Whatman Japan KK

Whatman Canada Limited’
Whatrnan Reeve Angel inc’
Whatman SA'

Whatman Luxemburg 1°

Whatman Luxemburg 2°

Whatman Luxemburg 3°

Schieicher & Schuel GmioH
Schleicher & Schuell BioScience Ing’
Schleicher & Schuell BioScience GmbH'

Schlgicher & Schuell MicroScience GrmbH’

Schleicher & Schuell MicroScience Inc’

Principal activities

Manufacturing, marketing and development
Marketing

Helding and financing

Manufacturing, marketing and development
Hoiding

Manufacturing, marketing and development
Holding

Hoidling

Mariufacturing, marketing and development
Manufacturing, marketing and developrment
Hoelding and financing

Marketing

Manafacturing and marketing

Holding

Manufacturing, marketing and developrnent
Financing

Financing

Financing

Holding

Manufacturing, marketing and development
Manufacturing, marketing and development
Manufacturing, marketing and development
Manufacturing, marketing and development

Country of incorporation
Germany
Singapore
Ireland
Germany
Germany
us
Germany
England
Us
England
Irefand
Japan
Canada
us
Belgiurmn
Luxemburg
Luxemburg
LLuxemburg
Germany
us
Germany
Germany
us

100% of the voting rights of all subsidiary undertakings are held directly or indirectly by Whatman plc. All shares held are ordinary shares,

except wheare indicated.
Equity hald by a subsidiary undertaking.

? Both ordinary and preference shares held.
“Biometra is in the process of being lquidatad,
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Five year record

Turmaover

Operating profit/loss)

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Profit/{loss) on business disposals and closures
Profit/loss) before interest

Interest

Profit/{loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profit/{loss) after taxation

Minority interests

Profit/{loss) attributable to shareholders
Dividends

Shareholders’ funds

Earnings/(loss) per share — basic
Earnings/loss) per share — diluted

Dividend per share

Share price - high

Share price - low

US dollar exchange rate — at year end

US dollar exchange rate — average during year

2000
(Restated)
£'000
98,6859
12,503

22,054
34,557
{603}
33.954
(8,815)
25139
4
25,153
4,885
23184
20.18p
19.83p
3.80p
3682.5p
151.0p
£1.49
$1.51

2001

£'000

90,351
(5,032)

1,659

(3.373)
(100}
(3,473}
2,286
(1.187)
(1,187
4,895
77713
(0.95p)
{0.94p)
3.90p
293.0p
77.5p
$1.48
$1.44

2002

€000
87.284
(22,065)

(7.090)
(09,155)
©1}
(29,248
9,080
(20,156)

(20,158)
4,801
49,833
(16.04p)
(15.95p)
3.80p
132.0p
65.0p
$1.51
$1.51

2002
{Restated)
£'000

83,803
13,424

(10,621}
2,803
(208}
2595
(4,478}
{1.883)
(1.883)
5,458
46,953
{1.49p)
{1.48p)
4.29p
163.5p
66.1p
$1.79
$1.64

Taxation and sharcholders’ funds have been restated in 2000 to reflect the change in accounting pelicy following the adoption of FRS19

“Deferred tax” in 2001,

2004

£:000
82,821
2,913
17
(1,128)
1,785
(429
1,356
(1,886)
{530)
(530)
5,924
40,214
(0.41p)
{0.41p)
4.61p
269.0p
155.5p
$1.92
$1.83

Shareholders’ funds in 2003 have been re-stated to reflect the change in accounting policy following the adeption of UITF 38 *Accounting for

ESOP trusts” in 2004.
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Additional Company information

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is to be held at 27 Great West Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 9BW ¢n 20th May 2005.
The MNotice of the meeting is contained in a separale circular 10 shareholders.

Financial calendar

Preliminary announcements of the results for the year are issued In April; annual reports are maited to shareholders in May; final dividends
are paid in May. Interim statements for the year are issued in September; interim dividends are paid in November.

Taxation of capital gains

For the purposes of Capital Gains Tax the adjusted market value of the Company’s shares at 31st March 1982 was 9.4p, following the

sub-division of each Ordinary Share of 5p into 5 New Ordinary Shares of 1p each.

Company Secretary
John Simmaonds FCIS
Registered office

27 Great West Road
Brentford Londan
TW8 9BwW

Registered number 630958

T 0208 326 1740
E information@whatman.com
www,whatman.com

Registrars

Capita plc

Bourne House

4 Beckenham FRoad
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

T 0870 162 3100

London Stock Exchange
reference WHM

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Brokers and financial advisers
UBS Lid
JP Morgan Cazencve Limited

Saolicitors
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
Nabarro Nathanson

Trademarks
‘Whatman' is a registered trademark
of Whatman International Limited

‘EasyClone', 'FTA!, ‘Fusion &', ‘GD/X’,
‘Mini-UniPrep’, ‘Purasil' and ‘803" are
also tradernarks of companies within
the Whatman Group.

South European Sales Office
Whatman Internaticnal Lt
Springfiefd Miil

James Whatman Way
Maidstone

Kent ME14 2LE

UK

T 01622 676670

North European Sales Office
Whatman Gmbh
HahnestraBe 3

37586 Dassel

Germany

T +49 5561 791 0

United States Salss Office
Whatman Inc.

200 Park Avenue

Suite 210

Florham Park

NJ 07932

USA

T+1973 245 8300

Japan Sales Office

Whatman Japan KK

JPR Ichigaya Building 8F 4-7-15
Kudan-Minami

Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 102-0074

Japan

T +81 3 5215 1242

Agia Pacific Sales Office
Whatman Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
171 Chin Swee Road

#08-01 San Centre

Singapore 169877

T +85 6534 0138
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